
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 7, 2019 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order Taylor Jones 

A. Pledge of Allegiance   

B. Our Mission and Vision Richard Mathey 

II. Agenda (For Approval) Taylor Jones 

III. Minutes (For Approval) Taylor Jones 

IV. Community Communication  Taylor Jones 

V. Old Business   

A. (From the Medical Staff) (For Approval) Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, Medical Staff President 

1. Proposed Changes to Medical Staff Bylaws 

B. (From the Human Resources Committee) (For Approval) Ed Tardoni 

1. Code of Conduct Policy 

C. Outstanding – Not Ready for Board Consideration (Placed on the agenda as a reminder of 
uncompleted business) 

1. Credentialing Policy 

VI. New Business       

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.    Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Barbara Sowada 

B. Human Resources Committee  Ed Tardoni 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Marty Kelsey  

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Approval) 

2. Narratives Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer 

3. Bad Debt (For Approval) Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Packet 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Ed Tardoni 

E. Foundation Board Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director 

F. Compliance Committee Barbara Sowada 

G. Joint Conference Committee Richard Mathey 
  

1/321



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

August 7, 2019 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive/General Counsel 

A. Contracts Consent Agenda (For Approval) 

1. Amendment to Affiliation Agreement with U of U 

2. Facility Use Agreement for U of U Dermatology 

3. NaVectis 

B. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Check List for American Association of Critical Care Nurses 

2. Check List for Gallagher Employee Engagement Survey 

3. Check List for Hospice Services Cowboy Cares 

4. Check List for Mission Health Clinical Agreement 

5. Check List for Vivor 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen  

XI. Good of the Order Taylor Jones 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. 16-4-405 (a)(ii), (ix), (x)) Taylor Jones 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Taylor Jones  

A. Approval of Privileges (For Approval) 

XV. Adjourn Taylor Jones 

2/321



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/321



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

July 10, 2019 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on July 

10, 2019, at 2:00 p.m. with Mr. Richard Mathey, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Mr. Mathey called the meeting to order and announced a quorum was present. The following 

Trustees were present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Mr. Richard Mathey, Dr. Barbara 

Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni. 

 

Officially present: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, 

Medical Staff President. 

 

Mr. Mathey led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. Mr. Tardoni read aloud the mission and 

vision statements.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the amended agenda to add approval of a resolution designating a public 

records person for MHSC was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the June 5, 2019, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Dr. Sowada presented names for officers on behalf of the Governance Committee: 

 

President – Mr. Jones 

Vice President – Mr. Mathey 

Treasurer – Mr. Kelsey 

Secretary – Mr. Tardoni 

 

The motion to close nominations and approve the names as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried. Mr. Mathey turned the gavel over to Mr. Jones. He noted 

the thank you note included in the packet. Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Mathey for all he has done for 

the Board of Trustees and the Hospital. Mr. Jones thanked the Trustees for voting him in and 

allowing him to serve.  

 

  

4/321



 

 

Minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Ms. Richardson presented a gift of appreciation to Mr. Mathey on behalf of the Board of Trustees 

and hospital staff. 

 

Ms. Jodi Corley, Clinic Systems Analyst, reported on the Merit-Based Incentive Payment System 

(MIPS) score for 2018 from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). 

 

Dr. Lauridsen recognized medical staff scholarship recipients Ms. Alyssa Klingensmith from Rock 

Springs and Ms. Joseline Alatorre from Green River. Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing and Public 

Relations Director, recognized Ms. Niushia Gonzales as the Rock Springs High School Health 

Academy scholarship recipient. 

 

CENTRAL PLANT UPGRADE ENGINEERS PRESENTATION 

 

Mr. Jake Blevins of Spacek, Timbie and Blevins (ST&B) Engineering provided an update on the 

central plant upgrade project. The bid document package is progressing nicely. The bid opening 

will be at the August Building and Grounds Committee meeting.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

Quality Assessment Performance Improvement (QAPI) Plan 

 

Ms. Kara Jackson, Quality Director, reviewed the information provided in the meeting packet. She 

said we are focusing efforts to bring in Lean as our quality improvement methodology. The motion 

to approve the QAPI Plan as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion 

carried. Ms. Jackson said additional in-depth information will be provided at the special workshop 

on quality in August.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Approval of Proposed Changes to Medical Staff Bylaws 

 

Dr. Lauridsen reviewed the changes to current bylaws approved by the general medical staff on 

June 25. Mr. Jones said the Board will take action at the August meeting.  

 

Resolution Designating a Public Records Person at MHSC 

 

The motion to approve and adopt the MHSC resolution to designate a public records person as 

presented by Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Executive and General Counsel, was made by Mr. 

Mathey; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided a Strategic Plan update. She said we continue to work on medical staff 

bylaws. The next ambulance service discussion is August 5 and we continue to look at all options. 

Ms. Richardson provided a physician recruitment update. An annual report was presented to the 

Board of County Commissioners in June 18. Town Halls will be held the weeks of July 15 and 22. 

5/321



 

 

Minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Ms. Richardson thanked Mr. Kelsey for walking with hospital staff at the Flaming Gorge Days 

Parade in Green River.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

Quality Committee 
 

Ms. Jackson announced the Hospital received a quality award from the Mountain-Pacific Quality 

Health (MPQH) regional quality group. The application focused heavily on the patient experience. 

We detailed our work with Planetree and care coordination. Ms. Jackson said another focus was 

opioid reduction, readmissions, adverse drug reactions, and MIPS. She said a lot of work is being 

done across the organization and expressed appreciation for everyone’s hard work. 

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said work on the code of conduct has become more complex. He thinks we made 

some progress. The Committee is reviewing legal requirements and implementation procedures 

for telecommuting.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Capital Expenditures: The motion to approve FY20-1 for hospital website redesign and host 

service as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. The motion 

to approve FY20-2 for intranet upgrades and website design as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

Narratives: Ms. Love reviewed the narrative highlights included in the meeting packet. We 

continue to see an increase in reductions of revenue. Mr. Kelsey suggested including more detailed 

information in reports when there is a discrepancy to explain the differences and why. Mr. Kelsey 

thanked Ms. Love and her staff for their efforts.  

 

Bad Debt:  The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,035,513.85 as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried. Mr. Kelsey said we talked about 

adding more metrics regarding what is represented behind these numbers. 

 

Building & Grounds Committee 

 

Mr. Jim Horan, Facilities Director, referenced the minutes from the last meeting in the packet. He 

reported we have LED lighting throughout the parking lot. The retaining wall project is almost 

complete. We experienced sprinkler and water issues. Mr. Horan apologized for the way the grass 

has looked and said things are turning around. He announced the Building and Grounds Committee 

meeting is moved to July 11 to take advantage of meeting with ST&B while they are on-site.  

 

  

6/321



 

 

Minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

Foundation Board 

 

Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Director, said the golf tournament August 18 at Rolling Green 

in Green River is trending very nicely. The Donor Wall is still a work-in-progress. She hopes to 

have it up by the end of the year. The employee campaign third quarter numbers are higher than 

the annual goal and we still have three months to go. Dr. Jake Johnson has taken a step back from 

service on the Foundation Board. We hope to have a replacement medical staff representative soon. 

Trustees are invited to attend the Cancer Center 5 Year Celebration on August 22.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada reported Mr. Clayton Radakovich, Director of Compliance and Risk Management, 

continues to work on the risk assessment update. We are rolling out Fair Warning software which 

flags employees inappropriately in others’ medical records. OSHA was onsite to look at heat in 

the laundry. Dr. Sowada reported we used a large part of the work Mr. Tardoni did when the Board 

first came together on the project to correct the heat issues. The Code of Conduct review continues. 

 

Mr. Jones announced a ten-minute recess. 

 

Mr. Jones called the meeting back to order at 4:10 p.m.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 
 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute the contracts on behalf of MHSC as presented was 

made by Mr. Mathey; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Lauridsen reported the Medical Executive Committee met June 18 and the General Medical 

Staff met June 25. Ms. Richardson treated the Medical Staff to a Bingo Night June 27. Dr. Israel 

Stewart is hosting Walk With A Doc July 16. Dr. Lauridsen said we need to meet as the Joint 

Conference Committee whenever the Board would like to meet. He reported the first half of the 

new bylaws are ready for review. Dr. Lauridsen presented an appreciation gift to Mr. Mathey and 

thanked him on behalf of the Medical Staff.  

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 

Mr. Jones thanked Mr. Mathey for the note he included at the beginning of the meeting packet. 

The committee assignments will remain the same with the exception of Mr. Mathey replacing Mr. 

Jones on the Finance and Audit Committee. Mr. Jones said he is not a fan of keeping things the 

same but there is a lot going on right now and we will benefit from keeping things moving forward. 

Mr. Jones said that, as the new President, he will do things different. He asked that people not read 

anything into that. He is not sure what he will do different yet. Mr. Jones said Mr. Mathey did an 

excellent job and is to be commended because of his tremendous commitment of time and effort.  

 

Mr. Kelsey asked again for staff to work with I.T. for microphones because the microphone we 

have on the podium is useless. He asked for information on anti-venom supplies at the hospital. 

Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director, reported we have anti-venom on-hand.  

7/321



 

 

Minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the increases in bad debt and reductions in revenue are significant. He said we 

are not going to compete our way out of it. He asked what can we do locally that is under our 

control. Mr. Tardoni asked if the Board would consider forming an ad hoc committee to see what 

we can do, something local and under our control to supplement these forces to find a gate in the 

fences closing in on us. Ms. Richardson agreed we want to look at every possible option to help 

us adjust to this new norm. She said the aggregate collected on charges for Medicare patients is 

33%. Mr. Jones said he does not want to duplicate or create extra work. He asked Ms. Richardson 

and Ms. Love to get a group together to discuss.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into Executive Session for personnel reasons was made by Dr. Sowada; second 

by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 

 

The motion to reconvene the meeting at 5:15 p.m. was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. 

Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 

 

The motion to approve the June 11, 2019, Credentials Committee Recommendations  for privileges 

as presented was made by Dr. Sowada; second by Mr. Mathey. Motion carried. 

 

1. Initial Appointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1year) 

 Dr. Janene Glyn, Pediatrics 

2. Initial Appointment to Consulting Staff (1year) 

 Dr. Dipayan Chaudhuri, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Albert Ybasco, Tele Radiology (Vrad) 

o VRad schedule 1 list of Physicians 

3. Initial Appointment to AHP Staff (1year) 

 Jacquelyn Lindsey, FNP Oncology 

4. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Peter Hannon, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Roger Freedman, Cardiovascular Disease (U of U) 

 Dr. Lauren Theilen, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Marcela Smid, Maternal/Fetal Medicine (U of U) 

5. Reappointment to Locum Tenens Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mary Murphy, Radiology (Advanced Medical Imaging) 

 Dr. Graham Brant-Zawadzki, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Taylor Delgado, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

6. Reappointment to AHP Staff (2 years) 

 Bonnie Collins, LCSW (SWCS) 

 

8/321



 

 

Minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

The motion to authorize the CEO to execute a new Chief Medical Officer agreement as presented 

was made by Mr. Mathey; second by Dr. Sowada. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:17 p.m.   

 

        

 

        ___________________________________ 

        Mr. Taylor Jones, President 

 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Mr. Ed Tardoni, Secretary 

9/321



10/321



11/321



12/321



13/321



14/321



15/321



16/321



17/321



18/321



19/321



20/321



21/321



22/321



23/321



24/321



25/321



1 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws 
Table of Contents 

PREAMBLE 4 

DEFINITIONS 5 

ARTICLE I 7 
NAME 7 

ARTICLE II 7 
MEDICAL STAFF ORGANIZATION 7 

Section A.    PURPOSES 7 
Section B.    GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF APPOINTEES 8 
Section C.    PRINCIPLES OF PRACTICE 9 

ARTICLE III 9 
CATEGORIES OF THE PHYSICIAN STAFF 9 

Section A.    THE PHYSICIAN STAFF 9 
1. The Honorary Physician Staff 9 
2. The Active Physician Staff 9 
3. The Associate Physician Staff 10 
4. The Consulting Physician Staff 10 
5. Locum Tenens Staff 11 
6. The Affiliate Physician Staff 11 

ARTICLE IV 12 
LICENSED INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER 12 

Section A.    QUALIFICATIONS 12 
Section B.    CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 12 
Section C.    PODIATRISTS 13 

ARTICLE V 14 
ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONALS 14 

Section A.    QUALIFICATIONS 14 
Section B.    CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 14 
Section C.    LIMITATIONS & GRIEVANCES 14 

ARTICLE VI 14 
APPOINTMENTS, REAPPOINTMENTS AND PRIVILEGES 14 

Section A.    GENERAL 14 
Section B.    APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS 15 

1. Medical Staff 15 
2. Allied Health Professionals 15 
3. Terms of Appointment 15 
4. Procedure for Appointment/Reappointment 15 

Section C.    REQUESTS FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES 32 
Section D.    RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PRIVILEGES 32 

1. Clinical Privileges: 32 
2. Threshold Requirements 32 
3. Burden of Proof 33 
4. Emergency Privileges 33 
5. Disaster Privileges 33 

26/321



2 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

6. Temporary Appointments 34 
7. Telemedicine Privileges 34 
8. Board Certification 36 

Section E.    AGREEMENT OF APPLICANTS 37 
Section F.    LEAVE OF ABSENCE 37 

ARTICLE VII 38 
OFFICERS 38 

Section A.    OFFICERS OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 38 
Section B.    QUALIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS 38 
Section C.    NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS 38 
Section D.    TERM OF OFFICE 39 
Section E.    VACANCIES OF OFFICE 39 
Section F.    DUTIES OF OFFICERS 39 

1. President 39 
2. Vice President 40 
3. Secretary 40 

Section G.    REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 41 

ARTICLE VIII 41 
CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS 41 

Section A.    ORGANIZATION OF CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS 41 
1. Surgery Department 41 
2. Medicine Department 41 

Section B.    FUNCTIONS OF DEPARTMENTS 42 
Section C.    QUALIFICATIONS, SELECTION AND TENURE OF DEPARTMENT CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 42 
Section D.    ASSIGNMENT TO DEPARTMENTS 45 

ARTICLE IX 45 
COMMITTEES OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 45 

Section A.    COMPOSITION 45 
Section B.    APPOINTMENT AND TERM 45 
Section C.    CHAIRS 45 
Section D.    REMOVALS AND VACANCIES 45 
Section E.     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (MEC) 46 
Section F.     CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE 48 
Section G.    JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 49 
Section H.    NOMINATING COMMITTEE 50 
Section I.     SPECIAL COMMITTEES 51 
Section J.     REMOVAL 51 

ARTICLE X 52 
MEDICAL STAFF MEETINGS 52 

Section A.    STAFF MEETINGS 52 

ARTICLE XI 53 
COMMITTEE AND DEPARTMENT MEETINGS 53 

Section A.    REGULAR MEETINGS 53 
Section B.    SPECIAL MEETINGS 53 
Section C.    NOTICE OF MEETINGS 53 
Section D.   ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS 53 
Section E.    QUORUM 54 

27/321



3 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section F.    MANNER OF ACTION 54 
Section G.   RIGHTS OF EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 54 
Section H.   MINUTES 54 
Section I.     REQUIREMENTS FOR MANDATORY MEETING ATTENDANCE 54 

ARTICLE XII 55 
CORRECTIVE ACTION 55 

Section A.    CORRECTIVE ACTION 55 
Section B.    SUMMARY SUSPENSION 60 
Section C.    AUTOMATIC SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION 61 

ARTICLE XIII 63 
HEARING PROCEDURE 63 

Section A.    LIMITATION 63 
Section B.    APPLICABILITY 64 
Section C.    NOTICE 67 
Section D.   CONDUCT OF HEARING 68 

ARTICLE XIV 74 
IMMUNITY 74 

Section A.    IMMUNITY FROM LIABILITY 74 
Section B.    FOR ACTION TAKEN 75 
Section C.    FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION 75 
Section D.    REVIEW ACTIVITY IMMUNITIES 76 

ARTICLE XVIII 76 
AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS 76 

Section A.    AMENDMENT UPON INITIATION OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 76 
Section B.    AMENDMENT UPON INITIATION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 77 

ARTICLE XV 77 
RULES, AND REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 77 

Section A.    CREATION OF RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES 77 
Section B.    APPROVAL OF RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES 78 

BYLAWS 78 

ARTICLE XVI 78 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES BETWEEN THE MEDICAL STAFF AND THE MEDICAL EXECUTIVE 
COMMITTEE 78 

ARTICLE XVII 79 
MEDICAL STAFF CODE OF CONDUCT 79 

ARTICLE XX 84 
PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 84 

ARTICLE XXI 84 
GOVERNING LAW 84 

ADOPTION AND APPROVAL 85 

 

28/321



4 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS 

 

 

PREAMBLE 

 

 

WHEREAS,  Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (the “Hospital”) is a County 

Hospital organized and acting under the laws of the State of Wyoming; 

and 

 

WHEREAS,  the purpose of the Hospital is to serve as a general Hospital providing 

patient care, education and research; and 

 

WHEREAS,  The Practitioners and Allied Health Professionals providing patient care 

and services recognize their overall responsibility for the quality of the 

professional services provided by individuals with clinical privileges on 

the Medical Staff, as well as the responsibility to the Governing Board; 

and 

 

WHEREAS,  Cooperative efforts of the Medical Staff, Administration and Governing 

Board are necessary to fulfill the Hospital's aims and goals in providing 

patient care, education, and research. 

 

WHEREAS,  The Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and policies and those 

of the Governing Board Bylaws are free of conflicting statements. 

 

THEREFORE, The Practitioners and Allied Health Professionals who provide 

professional services at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County orga-

nize themselves into a Medical  Staff, pursuant to the terms hereof (the 

“Bylaws”), and those other Policies, Rules and Regulations contemplated 

herein. 

29/321



 

5 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

DEFINITIONS 

 

1. ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONAL or AHP means an individual, other than a 

licensed Practitioner as defined by these Bylaws, who exercises independent judgment 

within the areas of his/her professional competence and who is qualified to render direct 

or indirect medical, dental, or surgical care under the supervision of a Practitioner who 

has been afforded privileges to provide such care in the Hospital.  Such AHP’s shall 

include, without limitation, Bacteriologists, Chemists, Clinical Pharmacologists, Clinical 

Psychologists, Dental Auxiliaries, Nurse Clinicians/Practitioners, Certified Lactation 

Consultants, Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists, other Doctor Scientists, Physician 

Assistants, Physiologists and qualified Therapists (e.g., occupational, physical, 

respiratory); anyone who can be licensed or certified by the State of Wyoming. 

 

2. APPLICANT means any Practitioner applying for appointment to the Medical Staff or 

requesting any privileges to perform medical services at the Hospital, including, without 

limitation, any existing Appointee to the Medical Staff requesting additional privileges or 

appointment to any department or committee. 

 

3. APPOINTEE means a Practitioner duly appointed to, and serving as a member of, the 

Medical Staff. 

 

4. BYLAWS means these Bylaws and each of its exhibits, attachments, or other items 

incorporated herein by reference, as each may be amended, from time to time. 

 

5. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER means the individual appointed by the Governing 

Board to act on its behalf in the overall administrative management of the Hospital.   

 

6. CLINICAL PRIVILEGES or PRIVILEGES means the permission granted to 

Practitioners to provide patient care and includes access to those available Hospital 

resources (including equipment, facilities and Hospital personnel) which are necessary to 

effectively exercise those privileges. 

 

7. EX-OFFICIO means serves as a member of a body by virtue of an office or position 

held and, unless otherwise expressly provided, without voting rights.   

 

8. GOVERNING BOARD or BOARD means the Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital 

of Sweetwater County. 

 

9. LIMITED INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER or LIP means any medical Practitioner 

other than Physicians who are authorized to practice in Hospitals by the applicable law 

then existing in Wyoming and is licensed by the State of Wyoming. 

 

10. INVESTIGATION COMMITTEE means a committee appointed to investigate a 

request for corrective action regarding an Appointee pursuant to Article XII hereunder. 

 

 

30/321



 

6 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

11. MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE or EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE or MEC 

means the Executive Committee of the Medical Staff, as constituted pursuant to these 

Bylaws. 

 

12. MEDICAL STAFF or STAFF means the formal organization of all Licensed 

Practitioners who attend patients in the Hospital. 

 

13 MEDICAL STAFF YEAR means the period from the first day of January to the thirty-

first day of December. 

 

14. PHYSICIAN means an individual with an M.D. or D.O. degree who is fully licensed and 

authorized to practice medicine in the State of Wyoming. 

 

15. POLICIES mean those policies and procedures for the operations and management of 

the Hospital enacted by the Medical Staff, the Medical Executive Committee, or the 

Governing Board pursuant to these Bylaws. 

 

16. PRACTITIONER means any appropriately licensed healthcare professional granted 

privileges to practice in Hospitals by the applicable law in Wyoming applying for, or 

exercising, clinical privileges in this Hospital. 

 

17. PRESIDENT means the President of the Medical Staff, who shall also serve as the Chair 

of the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

18. PROFESSIONAL REVIEW ACTIVITY means any activity of the Hospital with 

respect to a Practitioner (i) to determine whether an Applicant or Appointee may have 

clinical privileges at the Hospital or membership on the Medical Staff; (ii) to determine 

the scope of conditions of such privileges or membership; or (iii) to change or modify 

such privileges or membership. 

 

19. RULES AND REGULATIONS mean those Rules and Regulations regarding Medical 

Staff Appointees, committees, and other operational matters at the Hospital enacted by 

the Medical Staff, the Medical Executive Committee, or the Governing Board pursuant to 

these Bylaws. 

 

20. TELEMEDICINE means the provision of clinical services to patients by Practitioners 

from a distance via electronic communication. 

 
21.   VACANCY means that period when an appointed or elected position is unoccupied, the 

time of which is recognized by the President of the Medical Staff. 

31/321



 

7 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

 
ARTICLE I 

 

NAME 

 

The name of this organization shall be the "Medical Staff of Memorial Hospital of 

Sweetwater County.” 
 

 

ARTICLE II 

MEDICAL STAFF ORGANIZATION 

 

Section A.    PURPOSES 

 

The purposes and responsibilities of the Medical Staff are:  

 

1. To be the formal organizational structure through which the benefits of appointment to 

the Medical Staff may be obtained by individual Practitioners and the obligations of 

Medical Staff appointment, including the requirement that Appointees work 

cooperatively with each other and with Hospital staff, may be fulfilled; 

 

2. To serve as the primary means of accountability to the Governing Board for the 

appropriateness of the professional performance, cooperative behavior, and ethical 

conduct of Appointees, to monitor the patient safety, patient satisfaction and quality of 

patient care delivered in the Hospital, and to make recommendations thereon to the 

Board; 

 

3. To establish procedures whereby issues concerning the Medical Staff and the Hospital 

may be discussed both within the Medical Staff and with the Governing Board and to 

provide a means through which the Medical Staff may participate in the Hospital's 

policy-making and planning process; 

 

4. To recommend to the Board action with respect to appointments, staff categories, clinical 

privileges, specified services for Allied Health Professionals, and corrective action; 

 

5. To ensure that all patients, regardless of race, creed, color, sex or national origin, 

admitted to the Hospital or treated in the ambulatory facilities shall receive appropriate 

patient care; and 

 

6. To provide an appropriate educational setting that will maintain scientific standards and 

that will lead to continuous advancement in professional knowledge and skill through 

educational activities that relate at least, in part, to the type and nature of care offered by 

the Hospital, as demonstrated through the Hospital's quality improvement activities and 

the Medical Staff’s focused and ongoing professional practice evaluations. 

 

32/321



 

8 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section B.    GENERAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF APPOINTEES 

 

As a general responsibility of Medical Staff appointment, each Appointee agrees to participate in 

the functions performed by departments, divisions, Medical Staff committees, Medical Staff 

Officers or interdisciplinary Hospital committees, as assigned, in accordance with these Bylaws 

as approved and upheld by the Governing Board. 

 

1. Responsibilities: 

 

a. Monitoring and evaluation of care provided and the development and periodic 

review and amendment of written Policies for special care areas such as medical 

imaging, laboratory, pulmonary medicine, physical medicine, anesthesia, emer-

gency, outpatient, home care and other ambulatory care services, and such other 

areas as directed by the MEC from time-to-time; 

 

b. Coordination and performance of quality and appropriateness reviews including 

but not limited to;  tissue, blood usage, antibiotic and drug usage, medical records 

and surgical case review, participation and cooperation in any investigation and/or 

the resolution of sentinel events; 

 

c. Coordination, cooperation with, and performance of utilization review; 

 

d. Provision of continuing education opportunities responsive to quality activity 

findings, new state-of-the-art developments, and other perceived needs; 

 

e. Development, administration, and recommendation of amendments, to seek and 

enforce compliance with these Bylaws, Policies, Rules and Regulations of the 

Medical Staff and Hospital, and the enforcement and compliance thereof; 

 

f. Assistance in identifying community health needs and in setting appropriate 

institutional goals, and implementing programs to meet those goals; 

 

g. Development and maintenance of drug utilization policies and surveillance of 

drug usage; and 

 

h. Development of complete admission histories and physical examinations 

performed and recorded within twenty-four (24) hours of inpatient admission.  

Such reports should include identifying data, chief complaint, history of present 

illness, significant past medical and surgical history, relevant family history, 

social history, a review of all systems of the body, physical examination, 

significant laboratory results, provisional diagnosis, and treatment plan. If a 

complete history has been recorded and a physical examination performed within 

one week prior to the patient's admission to the Hospital, a reasonably durable, 

legible copy of these reports may be used in the patient's Hospital medical record 

in lieu of the admission history and report of the physical examination, provided 

these reports were recorded by a member of the Medical Staff.  In such instances, 

33/321



 

9 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

an interval admission note that includes all additions to the history and any 

subsequent changes in the physical findings must always be recorded. 

 
 

Section C.    PRINCIPLES OF PRACTICE 

 

All health care rendered in this institution shall be based on accepted biomedical, scientific 

principles and current information.   

 

 

ARTICLE III 

CATEGORIES OF THE PHYSICIAN STAFF 

 

 

Section A.    THE PHYSICIAN STAFF 

 

The Physician Staff shall be divided into Honorary, Active, Associate, Affiliate, Consulting, and 

Locum Tenens Staff categories, as further defined below and in the Rules, Regulations, and 

Policies. 

 

1. The Honorary Physician Staff 

 

a. The Honorary Physician Staff shall consist of Physicians recognized for their 

outstanding reputations, their noteworthy contributions to the health and medical 

sciences, and their previous service to the Hospital. 

 

b. Honorary Physician Staff members are not eligible to admit patients to the 

Hospital.  They may, however, attend staff meetings and any staff or Hospital 

education meetings.  Honorary Staff Members shall not be eligible to vote or to 

hold office in the Medical Staff organization. 

 

2. The Active Physician Staff 

 

a. The Active Physician Staff shall consist of Physicians who care for patients at the 

Hospital, who are located within the Hospital’s service area, as defined in the 

Rules, Regulations and/or the Policies, from time to time so as to provide 

continuous care to their patients, and who assume all the functions and 

responsibilities of membership on the active Physician Staff, including, where 

appropriate, providing emergency service care and consultation assignments.  

 

b. Members of the Active Physician staff shall be appointed to a specific 

department, shall be eligible to vote, to hold office, to serve on Medical Staff 

committees and it is recommended that they attend meetings of the Medical Staff, 

such as Physician’s departmental meeting and any committee meetings on which 

Physician serves.  

 

34/321



 

10 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

3. The Associate Physician Staff 

 

a. The Associate Physician Staff shall consist of Physicians who, following their 

initial appointment, are being considered for advancement to the Active Physician 

Staff.  The duration of Associate Medical Staff status shall be for one (1) year 

from such Applicant’s initial appointment to the Medical Staff.  During this time, 

the Associate Medical Staff Appointee’s performance will be monitored to 

determine the eligibility of such Associate Medical Staff Appointee for 

appointment to the Active Physician Staff.   

 

b. Monitoring of the Associate Staff member shall be accomplished through Focused 

Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE) as provided for in these Medical Staff 

Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and policies.  The Associate Staff Member must 

successfully complete FPPE to determine their competence to practice the clinical 

privileges granted. The results of such FPPE shall be considered in conjunction 

with the Associate Staff Member’s application for renewal of clinical privileges. 

 

c. If the Associate Staff Member does not complete FPPE within the required time 

period, he/she shall not be eligible to apply for renewal of clinical privileges, and 

his/her grant of clinical privileges shall expire at the end of the initial grant 

period.  This expiration of clinical privileges will not entitle the Associate Staff 

member to a fair hearing, as their failure to complete FPPE will be interpreted as 

not meeting threshold criteria. 

 
d. Appointments to the Associate Medical Staff may not exceed one (1) full year 

with an additional one (1) Medical Staff Year extension for up to 12 months, for 

good reason, as recommended by Credentials Committee and approved by the 

Medical Executive Committee, at which time failure to remove such provisional 

status shall be deemed a termination of his/her Medical Staff appointment.  An 

Associate Medical Staff member whose membership is terminated shall have the 

rights accorded by the Medical Staff Bylaws to an Active Physician Staff member 

who has failed to be reappointed to the Active Medical Staff. 
 
e. The Associate Staff shall be appointed to a specific department, shall be eligible 

to vote and serve on all Medical Staff committees, and it is recommended that 

they attend all meetings of the Medical Staff, such Physician’s department 

meetings, and any committee on which such Physician serves.  The Associate 

Staff members shall be ineligible to hold office in this Medical Staff organization.  

They shall assume all other duties and responsibilities of a Medical Staff member. 

 

4. The Consulting Physician Staff 

 

a. The Consulting Physician Staff shall consist of Physicians of recognized 

professional ability, experience, and maturity who occasionally come to the 

Hospital on a pre-defined schedule or to act as a consultant upon request of any 

credentialed of the Medical Staff.   

35/321



 

11 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

b. The Consulting Physician Staff must possess expertise or training materially 

valuable to the Hospital, as such is determined by the MEC, and approved by the 

Governing Board, not available from active or Associate Staff members.  

Consulting Physician staff members may admit patients under special 

circumstances, not to exceed 12 admits per year.  Non-admitting Physicians 

(radiologists, pathologists, emergency Physicians, etc.) working at the Hospital 

may not engage in more than 50 hours of work, per year.  

 

c. Consulting physicians will provide documentation for the hospital’s EMR. This 

documentation will be entered directly, scanned in, or dictated. 

 

d. Consulting Physician Staff members shall not be permitted to vote or hold office.   

Consulting Staff members may attend meetings of the Medical Staff and 

Departments of which he/she is a member and any staff or Hospital educational 

programs. 

 

e. Consultation shall not be limited to members of this Medical Staff category. 

 

f. Each member of the Consulting Physician Staff expressly authorizes the Hospital 

to monitor and evaluate such member’s professional performance in such manners 

as authorized pursuant to the Rules and Regulations and the Policies, regardless of 

whether such member comes to or sees patients at the Hospital’s facilities. 

 

5. Locum Tenens Staff 

 

This category is for Physicians who provide temporary service to the Hospital.    Locum 

Tenens Privileges may be granted only for a specific period of time, not to exceed twelve 

(12) months per appointment, and shall automatically expire at the end of the specified 

period, without recourse by the Practitioner under the Medical Staff Bylaws.  Locum 

Tenens Appointees shall not be eligible to vote or to hold office in the Medical Staff 

organization.  They may, however, attend staff and departmental meetings and any staff 

or Hospital education meetings 

 

6. The Affiliate Physician Staff 

 

a. The Affiliate Physician Staff shall consist of Physicians who perform same-

day/outpatient surgery procedures at the Hospital.  Affiliate Staff members shall 

have a permanent medical office located within the primary geographic area 

served by the Hospital.   

 

b. Members of the Affiliate Physician Staff shall be appointed to a specific 

department, but shall not be eligible to vote, hold office, or serve on Medical Staff 

committees.  Affiliate Physician Staff members may attend meetings of the Staff 

and departments of which he/she is a member and any staff or Hospital education 

36/321



 

12 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

programs.  Affiliate Physician Staff members are not required to provide 

emergency service care or take call unless residing in Sweetwater County. 

 

c. Each member of the Affiliate Medical Staff is required to provide assurance of 

immediacy of adequate professional care for his/her patients in the Hospital by 

being available or having available, within a reasonable period of time, an eligible 

alternate Practitioner with whom prior arrangements have been made.  Affiliate 

Physicians that will be unavailable immediately following a patient procedure 

shall file a Plan of Care outlining plans for continued coverage arrangements.  

The Plan of Care shall indicate in writing on the order sheets of the patient’s chart 

the name of an eligible alternate Practitioner (same surgical subspecialty) who 

will be assuming responsibility for the care of that patient or for stabilizing and 

transferring the patient, if necessary due to complications, during the Physician’s 

absence. 

 

d. The quality of care rendered by Affiliate Physician Staff will be reviewed by the 

same standards applied to Active Physicians and they will be appointed and 

reappointed according to Article VI of these Bylaws, A. and B. of the Rules and 

Regulations. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

LICENSED INDEPENDENT PRACTITIONER 

 

Section A.    QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Classes of health care Practitioners, other than Physicians, authorized to practice in Hospitals by 

the applicable law in Wyoming, approved by the Governing Board, who have been licensed by 

their respective licensing agencies and who desire to provide professional services in the 

Hospital, are eligible to serve as Licensed Independent Practitioners on the Medical Staff. 

 

Section B.    CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

 

1. Responsibilities  

 

a. Licensed Independent Practitioners may admit patients only in conjunction with 

an Active or Associate Staff Member.  They shall be located within the 

geographic service area of the Hospital required of Active Physician Staff, close 

enough to fulfill their responsibilities and to provide such services as allowed by 

their clinical privileges on the Medical Staff.  They may not hold office.  

 

b. Licensed Independent Practitioners may not hold office and/or serve on 

committees, subject to those limitations provided in these Bylaws, the Rules and 

Regulations, and/or the Policies.  

 

 

37/321



 

13 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

c. All Licensed Independent Practitioners within each department may attend 

department and general Medical Staff meetings. 

 

d. All Licensed Independent Practitioners will be eligible to vote in the general 

Medical Staff election of Medical Staff officers.  

 

2. Quality Assurance, Appointments, Reappointments, and Privileges 

 

a. Licensed Independent Practitioners will be appointed and reappointed to the 

Medical Staff in accordance with the same requirements applicable to Physicians 

pursuant to Article VI of these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, and the 

Policies. 

 

b. Licensed Independent Practitioners may, within the scope of his or her 

professional licensure, certification, and practice privileges, and consistent with 

these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, and the Policies, provide patient care 

services and exercise independent judgment in his or her area of competence and 

participate directly in the management of patients, provided that a Physician 

Medical Staff member within the appropriate department or specialty has overall 

responsibility for the care provided to each patient. 

 

c. The quality of care rendered by Licensed Independent Practitioners will be 

reviewed by the same standards applied to Physicians pursuant to these Bylaws 

and the Rules and Regulations, and the Policies adopted hereunder. 

 

Section C.    PODIATRISTS 

 

1. Podiatrists with appropriate two-year residency training, documentation, and 

recommendations will be allowed to perform surgery including, and not to extend 

beyond, the midfoot. 

 

2. Podiatrists will be allowed to document his/her portion of the pre-operative physical 

examination.  

 

3. Any post-operative podiatry patient requiring admission or readmission after surgery will 

be co-admitted by a qualified MD or DO physician.  The podiatrist will be allowed to 

document his/her portion of the admission/readmission physical exam with the remainder 

being completed by a qualified MD or DO physician member of the medical staff. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38/321



 

14 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

ARTICLE V 

ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONALS 

 

Section A.    QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Classes of health care professionals, other than Physicians and Licensed Independent 

Practitioners, approved by the Governing Board, who have been licensed or certified by their 

respective licensing or certifying agencies and who desire to provide professional services in the 

Hospital, are eligible to serve as Allied Health Professionals. 

 

Section B.    CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

 

Allied Health Professionals are not entitled to the rights, privileges, and responsibilities of 

appointment to the Medical Staff.  They may only engage in acts within the scope of practice or 

clinical privileges specifically granted by the Governing Board. They shall be located within the 

geographic service area of the Hospital, required of Active Physician Staff, close enough to 

fulfill their responsibilities, and to provide such services under the supervision of Physicians who 

are presently members of the Medical Staff; as further defined in these Bylaws, the Rules and 

Regulations, and the Policies. 

 

Section C.    LIMITATIONS & GRIEVANCES 

 

Nothing contained in the Medical Staff Bylaws shall be interpreted to entitle an Allied Health 

Professional to the procedural rights set forth in Article XIII of these Bylaws. An Allied Health 

Professional who receives an adverse privileging decision may challenge such action by filing a 

written grievance with the Medical Executive Committee within fifteen (15) days of the action. 

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the grievance, the Medical Executive Committee will 

conduct an investigation. The Allied Health Professional will have the opportunity for an 

interview with the Medical Executive Committee concerning the grievance at which time the 

Allied Health Professional may present relevant information. Such interview shall not constitute 

a "hearing" as established by the Medical Staff Bylaws, and shall not be conducted according to 

the procedural rules applicable to such hearings. The Medical Executive Committee shall make a 

decision regarding the issue and make a recommendation to the Governing Board. The 

Governing Board will take final action. 

 

 

ARTICLE VI 

APPOINTMENTS, REAPPOINTMENTS AND PRIVILEGES 

 

Section A.    GENERAL 

 

Membership on the Medical Staff of the Hospital is a privilege extended only to Practitioners who 

continuously meet the qualifications, standards, and requirements set forth in these Bylaws, the Rules 

and Regulations, and the Policies.  All appointments, reappointments, and privileges are recommended 

by the Medical Staff and are granted by the Governing Board. Appointments to the Medical Staff are 

made without regard to gender, race, creed, age, national origin, or disability, provided that the 

39/321



 

15 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

individual is competent to render care consistent with the professional level of quality and competence 

established by these Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations and the Policies of the Hospital. 

 

Section B.    APPOINTMENTS AND REAPPOINTMENTS 

 

1. Medical Staff 

 

All healthcare professionals authorized to practice in Hospitals by the applicable law in 

Wyoming, who are licensed to practice in the state of Wyoming and who desire to 

provide professional services in the Hospital, are eligible to apply for appointment to the 

Medical Staff of the Hospital. 

 
2. Allied Health Professionals 

 

All Allied Health Professionals as defined by these Bylaws are eligible to apply for 

appointment to the Allied Health Professional Staff of the Hospital. 

 

3. Terms of Appointment 

 

Unless otherwise specified, all initial appointments to the Medical Staff and Allied 

Health Professional Staff will be for a one (1) year period.  Subsequent reappointments 

shall be for no longer than two (2) years excluding Locum Tenens subsequent 

reappointments, which shall be for a one (1) year period. 

 

4. Procedure for Appointment/Reappointment 

 

a. Medical Staff Appointment  

  

i. Application: 

 

Each application for appointment to the Medical Staff shall be signed by 

the Applicant, and shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the 

Governing Board after consultation with the Medical Executive 

Committee.  The application shall require detailed information concerning 

the Applicant's professional qualifications including: 

 

1. All schools attended and date of degree; 

 

2. All postdoctoral training programs with dates of successful 

completion; 

 

3. All special training programs with dates of successful completion; 

 

4. All state licenses,  licensure dates, and history of adverse actions, if 

any; 

 

40/321



 

16 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

5. All staff membership and privileges at other institutions, dates of 

privileging, and history of adverse or corrective actions, if any; 

 

6. A statement specifying any circumstances and judgments and/or 

settlements of any previous or pending malpractice actions 

involving the Practitioner; 

 

7. The names of three medical or healthcare professionals who have 

personal knowledge of the Applicant’s current clinical abilities, 

ethical character, and ability to work cooperatively with others and 

who will provide specific written comments on these matters.  The 

named individuals must have acquired the requisite knowledge 

through recent observation of professional practice over a 

reasonable period of time and preferably have a current affiliation 

with an acute care institution and at least one must be from a 

colleague in the Applicant's specialty.  The references may not be 

relatives or have any recently initiated, or impending, professional 

partnership/financial associations with Applicant; 

 

8. A statement that the Practitioner has received or been given access 

to, and read the Bylaws and Rules and Regulations of the Medical 

Staff and that he/she agrees to be bound by the terms thereof if 

he/she is granted membership and/or clinical privileges and to be 

bound by the terms thereof without regard to whether or not he/she 

is granted membership and/or privileges in all matters relating to 

consideration of his/her application; 

 

9. Information as to whether any of the following has ever been, or is 

in the process of being, denied, revoked, suspended, reduced, not 

renewed, or voluntarily relinquished: 

 

a. Staff membership status or privileges at any other Hospital 

or healthcare institution; 

 

b. Membership/fellowship in local, state or national 

professional organizations; 

 

c. Specialty board certification; 

 

d. License to practice any profession in any jurisdiction;  

 

e. Drug enforcement agency or other controlled substances 

registration; 

  

 

 

41/321



 

17 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

10. A statement of experience during the most recent five (5) years, 

including a consent to the release of information by his/her present 

and past malpractice insurance carrier(s); 

 

11. A statement whereby the Practitioner agrees that, when an adverse 

ruling is made with respect to his/her staff membership, staff status 

and/or privileges, he/she will resort to the administrative remedies 

afforded by the Medical Staff Bylaws Rules & regulation before 

resorting to formal legal action; 

 

12. Evidence of current, adequate professional liability insurance as 

determined by the Governing Board;  

 

13. A statement regarding physical/mental health status, including 

alcohol abuse and/or drug dependency, as permitted by applicable 

law; 

 

14. Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements 

as may be imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable 

accreditation agencies and as required by the Wyoming Board of 

Medicine to maintain licensure;  

 

15. A statement as to whether the Applicant has ever withdrawn 

his/her application for appointment, reappointment, or clinical 

privileges, or resigned from a Medical Staff before the final 

decision of the Governing Board of such entity; 

 

16. Information as to whether the Applicant has ever been named as a 

defendant and/or convicted in a criminal action and details about 

any such instances; 

 

17. Information on the citizenship or visa status of the Applicant; and 

 

18. Information regarding whether the Applicant has ever been 

sanctioned by, or excluded or suspended from participation in, 

Medicare, Medicaid or any other government reimbursement 

programs. 

 

ii. Responsibility of the Applicant 

 

The Practitioner shall have the burden of producing adequate information 

for a proper evaluation of his/her competence, character, ethics, health 

status and other qualifications, and for resolving any doubts about such 

qualifications. Any material misrepresentation in, or omission from, the  

 

 

42/321



 

18 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

application and related documents shall be grounds for denial of privileges 

or corrective action regardless of when the misrepresentation or omission 

is discovered.  

 

iii. Applicant Authorization and Consent 

 

By applying for appointment to the Medical Staff, each Practitioner 

thereby signifies: 

 

1. His/her willingness to appear for interviews in regard to his/her 

application; 

 

2. His/her authorization for the Hospital to consult with members of 

Medical Staffs of other Hospitals with which the Practitioner has 

been associated and with others who may have information bearing 

on his/her competence, character, health status and ethical 

qualifications, including otherwise privileged or confidential 

information, provided by third parties bearing on his or her 

credentials, and agreement that any information so provided shall 

not be required to be disclosed to him or her if the third party 

providing such information does so on the condition that it be kept 

confidential; 

 

3. His/her consent to the Hospital's inspection of all records and 

documents that may be material to an evaluation of his/her 

professional qualifications and competence to carry out the clinical 

privileges he/she requests as well as his/her moral and ethical 

qualifications for Medical Staff membership; 

 

4. His/her release from any liability of all representatives of the 

Hospital and its Medical Staff for their acts performed in good 

faith and without malice in connection with evaluating the 

Practitioner and his/her credentials;  

 

5. His/her release from any liability all individuals and organizations 

who provide information to the Hospital concerning the 

Practitioner's competence, ethics, character, health status and other 

qualifications for Medical Staff appointment and clinical privileges 

including otherwise privileged or confidential information; 

  

6. His/her authorization to third parties to release information, 

including otherwise privileged or confidential information, as well 

as reports, records, statements, recommendations and other 

documents in their possession, bearing on his/her credentials to the 

Hospital, and consents to the inspection and procurement by the 

Hospital of such information, records and other documents;  

43/321



 

19 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

7. His/her authorization to release information about such individual 

to other healthcare entities and their agents, who solicit such 

information for the purpose of evaluating the individual's 

professional qualifications pursuant to the individual’s request for 

appointment, reappointment or clinical privileges;  

 

8. His/her authorization to maintain information concerning the 

Applicant’s age, training, board certification, licensure, and other 

confidential information in a centralized physician database for the 

purpose of making aggregate physician information available for 

use by the Hospital;  

 

9. His/her authorization to release confidential information, including 

peer review and/or quality assurance information, obtained from or 

about the Applicant or Medical Staff Appointee to peer review 

committees of the Hospital for purposes of reducing morbidity and 

mortality and for the improvement of patient care; 

 

10. His/her consent to the reporting by the Hospital of information to 

the National Practitioner Data Bank established pursuant to the 

Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986 which the Hospital 

believes in good faith is required by law to be reported; and 

 

11. His/her agreement that the foregoing provisions are in addition to 

any agreements, understandings, covenants, waivers, 

authorizations or releases provided by law or contained in any 

application or request forms. 

 

iv. Discrimination 

 

No considerations of sex, race, creed, and/or national origin may be used 

in the granting or denying of Medical Staff membership or clinical 

privileges. 

 

v. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff Services Manager 

 

1. The completed application shall be submitted to the Hospital's 

Medical Staff Services Manager.  The Medical Staff Services 

Manager shall be responsible to review the application for veracity. 

The credentialing process requires that the Hospital verify in 

writing and from the primary source, whenever feasible, the items 

listed below. Initiation of the verification process of at least the 

following items will begin within a reasonable time after receipt of 

a completed application: 

 

2. Degrees conferred, when and the institution;  

44/321



 

20 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

3. Completion of training programs, specialty, date of completion; 

 

4. The granting of state licenses, dates, and history of adverse action; 

 

5. The granting of staff membership and privileges at other 

institutions and adverse actions; 

 

6. Specialty board certifications; 

 

7. Querying the National Practitioner Data Bank;  

 

8. At least three references from persons who can provide adequate 

references pertaining to the Practitioner's professional competence 

and ethical character; and 

 

9. Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements 

as may be imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable 

accreditation agencies and as required by the Wyoming Board of 

Medicine to maintain licensure. Beginning their fourth year after 

completion of residency or fellowship, Physicians who are not yet 

board certified must complete and provide documentation of CME.  

Physicians who have a lifetime certification and are not 

participating in Maintenance of Certification must also provide 

CME documentation.  Documentation must be provided for 20 

hours of CME per year, or at least sixty (60) hours of CME within 

the previous three (3) years. 

 

10. Upon completion of the verification, the Medical Staff Services 

Manager will forward the application to the appropriate staff 

Department Chair. 

 

vi. Responsibilities of Department Chair  

 

The Department Chair or his/her designated representative, to which the 

application is forwarded, will review the application, and within ten (10) 

working days make a written report to the Credentials Committee on the 

qualifications of the Practitioner for admission to the Medical Staff as well 

as for specific privileges requested.  In making this report, the Department 

Chair or his/her designated representative shall examine evidence of the 

character, professional competence, qualifications, health status, and ethical 

standing of the Practitioner, and shall determine, through information 

contained in the references given and from other sources available to 

him/her whether the Practitioner has established and meets all of the 

necessary qualifications for the Medical Staff category and the clinical 

privileges requested by him/her. 

45/321



 

21 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

vii. Responsibilities of the Credentials Committee 

 

1. The Credentials Committee shall review the Practitioner's 

application for staff membership as well as for specific clinical 

privileges along with the report of the Department Chair or his/her 

representative at its first meeting following receipt of all these 

materials/documents.  The Credentials Committee shall review the 

Chair’s recommendation, and either approve and adopt the Chair’s 

recommendation, in whole, or in part, or formulate its own written 

recommendation, and transmit the recommendation to the Medical 

Executive Committee.   

 

2. Following the review of the Practitioner's application and report of 

the Department Chair or his/her designated representative; the 

Credentials Committee shall make a recommendation with respect 

to the Practitioner's appointment and/or clinical privileges. If 

favorable, it will be submitted, together with all supporting 

documentation, to the Medical Executive Committee for review 

and comment, and then to the Governing Board for final action. 

 

viii. Adverse Recommendation of the Credentials Committee 

 

When the recommendation of the Credentials Committee is adverse to the 

Practitioner either in respect to appointment or clinical privileges, the 

Medical Executive Committee shall be so advised and the Medical Staff 

Services Manager shall promptly notify the Applicant by certified mail, 

return receipt requested.  No such adverse recommendation may be 

forwarded to the Governing Board until after the Applicant has exercised, or 

has been deemed to have waived, his/her rights to a hearing as provided by 

Article XIII of these Bylaws. 

 

ix. Favorable Recommendation of Credentials Committee 

 

At its next regular meeting after receipt of a favorable recommendation by 

the Credentials Committee, along with comments from the Medical 

Executive Committee, the Governing Board shall act in the matter.  If the 

Governing Board’s decision is adverse to the Practitioner in respect to either 

appointment or clinical privileges, the Medical Staff Services Manager shall 

promptly notify him/her of such adverse decision by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, and such adverse decision shall be held in abeyance until 

the Applicant has exercised, or has been deemed to have waived, his/her 

rights under Article XIII of these Bylaws.  The fact that the adverse decision 

is held in abeyance shall not be deemed to confer clinical privileges where 

none existed before. 

 

46/321



 

22 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

x. Responsibilities of the Governing Board  

 

1. At its next regular meeting after all of the Practitioner's rights 

under Article XIII of the Bylaws have been exhausted or waived, 

the Governing Board or its duly authorized committee shall act in 

the matter.  The Governing Board's decision shall be conclusive 

except that the Governing Board may defer final determination by 

referring the matter back to the Credentials Committee for further 

reconsideration.  Any such referral back shall state the reasons, 

therefore, shall set a time limit within which a subsequent 

recommendation to Governing Board shall be made, and may 

include a directive that an additional hearing is conducted to clarify 

issues which are in doubt.  At its next regular meeting after receipt 

of such subsequent recommendation, and any new evidence in the 

matter, if any, the Governing Board shall make a decision either to 

provisionally appoint the Practitioner to the Medical Staff or to 

reject him/her for Medical Staff membership. 

 

2. Whenever the Governing Board's decision will be contrary to the 

recommendation of the Credentials Committee, the Governing 

Board shall submit the matter to the Joint Conference Committee 

for review and recommendation and shall consider such 

recommendation before making its decision final. 

 

3. When the Governing Board's decision is final, it shall send notice 

of such decision through the to the Secretary of the Medical Staff, 

the Chair of the Medical Executive Committee, the Chair of the 

Credentials Committee and the Chair of the department concerned, 

and by certified mail, return receipt requested to the Practitioner. 

 

b. Medical Staff Reappointment 

 

i. Reappointment Application 

 

Each application for reappointment to the Medical Staff shall be signed by 

the Applicant and shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the 

Governing Board after consultation with the Medical Executive 

Committee. 

 

ii. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff Services Manager 

 

The reappointment process shall begin at least ninety (90) days prior to the 

termination of current appointment and privileges.  Requests for additional 

privileges or for change in a staff category shall be made to the Medical 

Staff Services Manager at this time with accompanying documentation of 

further training and/or clinical experience.  The Medical Staff Services 

47/321



 

23 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Manager shall gather all pertinent information relating to the staff 

member's professional competence and clinical judgment in the treatment 

of patients (as determined by ongoing peer review and quality assurance 

activities), his/her mental and physical condition, ethics, conduct, 

compliance with Hospital and Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, cooperation with Hospital personnel, and shall check all new 

information for veracity.  The Applicant shall report the circumstances and 

outcome of any malpractice judgment(s) delivered against him/her during 

the previous appointment period as well as the circumstances of any 

pending malpractice action against him/her.  The Medical Staff Services 

Manager shall deliver that information to the appropriate Department 

Chair or his/her designated representative for review within ten (10) 

working days. 

 

iii. Responsibilities of Department Chair 

 

The Department Chair or his/her designated representative, to which the 

application is forwarded, will review the application (within ten (10) 

working days) and make a written report regarding the qualifications of 

the Practitioner to the Credentials Committee.  In making his/her report 

the Department Chair or his/her designated representative shall examine 

the evidence of the character, professional competence, qualifications, 

health status and ethical standing of the Applicant and shall determine, 

through information provided by the Medical Staff Services Manager 

whether the Practitioner has established and meets all of the necessary 

qualifications for staff membership and the clinical privileges requested by 

him/her.  Any requested change in the staff category and/or clinical 

privileges requested by the Practitioner will be supported by evidence of 

further training and/or clinical competence provided by the Practitioner. 

 

iv. Reappointment Process 

 

Thereafter, the procedure provided for in Section 4, i., of these Bylaws, 

relating to an initial appointment should be followed. 

 

c. Allied Health Professional Appointment 

 

i. Application 

 

Each application for appointment to the Allied Health Professional staff 

shall be signed by the Applicant, and include a statement by a sponsoring 

Physician who is currently on the MHSC Medical Staff.   Said sponsorship 

shall remain adequate, regardless of the status of the sponsor, until the 

48/321



 

24 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

expiration of the Applicant’s term, and shall be submitted on a form 

prescribed by the Governing Board after consultation with the Medical 

Executive Committee.  The application shall require detailed information 

concerning the Applicant's professional qualifications including: 

 

1. All schools and date of degree/registration/ certification; 

 

2. All special training programs with dates of successful completion; 

 

3. All state licenses, their licensure dates, and history of adverse 

actions, if any; 

 

4. All staff membership and privileges at other institutions, dates of 

privileging, and history of adverse or corrective actions, if any; 

 

5. A statement specifying any circumstances and judgments and/or 

settlements of any previous malpractice actions, as well as the 

circumstances of any pending malpractice actions, involving the 

Allied Health Professional; 

    

6. The names of at least three persons who have had extensive recent 

experience in observing and working with the Allied Health 

Professional and who can provide adequate references pertaining 

to the Allied Health Professional's professional competence and 

ethical character, health status and ability to work cooperatively 

with others and who will provide specific written comments on 

these matters.  The named individuals must have acquired the 

requisite knowledge through recent observation of professional 

practice over a reasonable period of time and preferably have a 

current affiliation with an acute care institution and at least one 

must be from a colleague in the Applicant's specialty.  The 

references may not be relatives or have any recently initiated, or 

impending, professional partnership/financial associations with 

Applicant; 

 

7. A statement that the Allied Health Professional has received or 

been given access to, and read the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations 

of the Medical Staff and that he/she agrees to be bound by the 

terms thereof if he/she is granted membership and/or clinical 

privileges and to be bound by the terms thereof without regard to 

whether or not he/ she is granted membership and/or privileges in 

all matters relating to consideration of his/ her application; 

 

49/321



 

25 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

8. Information as to whether any of the following has ever been, or 

are in the process of being, denied, revoked, suspended, reduced 

not renewed, or voluntarily relinquished:  

 

a. Staff membership status or privileges at any other Hospital 

or healthcare institution; 

 

b. Membership/fellowship in local, state or national 

professional organizations; and 

 

c. License to practice any profession in any jurisdiction. 

 

9. A statement of experience during the most recent five (5) years, 

including a consent to the release of information by his/her present 

and past malpractice insurance carrier(s); 

 

10. A statement whereby the Allied Health Professional agrees that, 

when an adverse ruling is made with respect to his/her staff 

membership, staff status and/or privileges, he/she will resort to the 

administrative remedies afforded by the Medical Staff Bylaws 

Rules & Regulations before resorting to formal legal action; 

 

11. Evidence of current, adequate professional liability insurance, as 

determined by the Governing Board; and 

 

12. A statement regarding physical/mental health status, including 

alcohol abuse and/or drug dependency, as permitted by law; 

 

13. Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements 

as may be imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable 

accreditation agencies. 

 

14. A statement as to whether the Allied Health Professional has ever 

withdrawn his/her application for appointment, reappointment, or 

clinical privileges, or resigned from a medical staff before the final 

decision of the Governing Board of such entity. 

  

15. Information as to whether the Allied Health Professional has ever 

been named as a defendant and/or convicted in a criminal action 

and details about any such instances; 

 

16. Information on the citizenship or visa status of the Allied Health 

Professional; 

50/321



 

26 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

17. Information regarding whether the Allied Health Professional has 

ever been sanctioned by, or excluded or suspended from 

participation in Medicare, Medicaid or any other government 

reimbursement programs. 

 

ii. Responsibilities of the Allied Health Professional 

 

The Allied Health Professional shall have the burden of producing 

adequate information for a proper evaluation of his/her competence, 

character, ethics and other qualifications, and for resolving any doubts 

about such qualifications. Any material misrepresentation in, or omission 

from, the application and related documents, shall be grounds for denial of 

privileges or corrective action regardless of when the misrepresentation or 

omission is discovered.  

 

iii. Appearance, Authorization, and Consent 

 

By applying for appointment to the Allied Health Professional staff, each 

Allied Health Professional thereby signifies: 

 

1. His/her willingness to appear for interviews in regard to his/her 

application; 

 

2. His/her authorization for the Hospital to consult with members of 

Medical Staffs of other Hospitals with which the Allied Health 

Professional has been associated and with others who may have 

information bearing on his/her competence, character, health 

status, and ethical qualifications; 

 

3. His/her consent to the Hospital's inspection of all records and 

documents that may be material to an evaluation of his/her 

professional qualifications and competence to carry out the clinical 

privileges he/she requests as well as his/her moral and ethical 

qualifications for Allied Health Professional staff membership; 

 

4. His/her release from any liability of all representatives of the 

Hospital and its Medical Staff for their acts performed in good 

faith and without malice in connection with evaluating the Allied 

Health Professional and his/her credentials; and 

 

5. His/her release from any liability all individuals and organizations 

who provide information to the Hospital in good faith and without 

51/321



 

27 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

malice concerning the Allied Health Professional's competence, 

ethics, character, health status and other qualifications for Allied 

Health Professional staff appointment and clinical privileges 

including otherwise privileged or confidential information.   

 

6. His/her authorization to third parties to release information, 

including otherwise privileged or confidential information, as well 

as reports, records, statements, recommendations and other 

documents in their possession, bearing on his/her credentials to the 

Hospital, and consents to the inspection and procurement by the 

Hospital of such information, records and other documents.  

 

7. His/her authorization to release information about such individual 

to other healthcare entities and their agents, who solicit such 

information for the purpose of evaluating the individual's 

professional qualifications pursuant to the individuals request for 

appointment, reappointment or clinical privileges.  

 

8. His/her authorization to maintain information concerning the 

Allied Health Professional’s age, training, licensure, and other 

confidential information for the purpose of making aggregate 

information available for use by the Hospital.  

 

9. His/her authorization to release confidential information, including 

peer review and/or quality assurance information, obtained from or 

about the Allied Health Professional to peer review committees of 

the Hospital for purposes of reducing morbidity and mortality and 

for the improvement of patient care. 

 

10. His/her agreement that the foregoing provisions are in addition to 

any agreements, understandings, covenants, waivers, 

authorizations or releases provided by law or contained in any 

application or request forms. 

 

iv. Discrimination 

 

No considerations of sex, race, creed and/or national origin may be used in 

the granting or denying of staff membership or clinical privileges. 

 

v. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff Services Manager 

 

1. The completed application shall be submitted to the Hospital's 

Medical Staff Services Manager who shall be responsible to 

52/321



 

28 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

review the application for veracity.  Initiation of the verification 

process of at least the following items will begin within a 

reasonable time after receipt of a completed application: 

 

a. Degree/certification/registration conferred, when, and the 

institution; 

 

b. Completion of training programs, specialty, date of 

completion; 

 

c. The granting of state licenses, if applicable, dates and 

history of adverse actions;  

 

d. Querying the National Practitioner Data Bank; and 

 

e. At least three references from persons who can provide 

adequate references pertaining to the Allied Health 

Professional's competence and ethical character. 

 

f. On completion of the verification, the Medical Staff 

Services Manager will forward the application to the 

appropriate Departmental Chair. 

 

vi. Responsibilities of Departmental Chair 

 

The Departmental Chair or his/her designated representative to which the 

application is forwarded will review the application and within a 

reasonable time make a report to the Credentials Committee on the 

qualifications of the Allied Health Professional for admission to the Allied 

Health Professional staff as well as for specific privileges requested.  In 

making this report, the Departmental Chair or his/her designated 

representative shall examine evidence of the character, professional 

competence, qualifications, health status and ethical standing of the Allied 

Health Professional, and shall determine, through information contained in 

the references given and from other sources available to him/her whether 

the Allied Health Professional has established, and meets all of the 

necessary qualifications, for the Allied Health Professional staff category 

and the clinical privileges requested by him/her. 

 

vii. Responsibilities of the Credentials Committee 

 

1. The Credentials Committee shall review the Allied Health 

Professional's application for Allied Health Professional staff 

53/321



 

29 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

membership as well as for specific clinical privileges along with 

the report of the Departmental Chair or his/her representative at its 

first meeting following receipt of all these materials/ documents. 

The Credentials Committee shall review the Chair’s 

recommendation, and either approve and adopt the Chair’s 

recommendation, in whole, or in part, or formulate its own written 

recommendation, and transmit the recommendation to the Medical 

Executive Committee.     

 

2. Following a review of the Allied Health Professional's application 

and report of the Department Chair or his/her designated 

representative; the Credentials Committee shall make a 

recommendation with respect to the Allied Health Professional's 

appointment or clinical privileges.  If favorable, it will be 

submitted, together with all supporting documentation, to the 

Medical Executive Committee for review and comment, then to the 

Governing Board for final action. 

 

viii. Adverse Recommendation of the Credentials Committee 

 

When the recommendation of the Credentials Committee is adverse to the 

Allied Health Professional, either in respect to appointment or clinical 

privileges, the Medical Executive Committee shall be so advised and the 

Chief Executive Officer shall promptly notify the Allied Health 

Professional by certified mail, return receipt requested.  No such adverse 

recommendation may be forwarded to the Governing Board until after the 

Allied Health Professional has exercised or has been deemed to have 

waived, his/her rights as provided by Article V of these Bylaws. 

 

ix. Favorable Recommendation of Credentials Committee 

 

At its next regular meeting after receipt of a favorable recommendation by 

the Credentials Committee, along with comments from the Medical 

Executive Committee, the Governing Board shall act in the matter.  If the 

Governing Board's decision is adverse to the Allied Health Professional, in 

respect to either appointment or clinical privileges, the Medical Staff 

Services Manager shall promptly notify him/her of such adverse decision 

by certified mail, return receipt requested, and such adverse decision shall 

be held in abeyance until the Allied Health Professional has exercised, or 

has been deemed to have waived, his/her rights under Article XIII of the 

Bylaws.  The fact that the adverse decision is held in abeyance shall not be 

deemed to confer privileges where none existed before. 

 

54/321



 

30 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

x. Responsibilities of the Governing Board 

 

1. At its next regular meeting after all of the Allied Health 

Professional's rights under Article V of the Bylaws have been 

exhausted or waived, the Governing Board or its duly authorized 

committee shall act in the matter.  The Governing Board's decision 

shall be conclusive except that the Governing Board may defer 

final determination by referring the matter back to the Credentials 

Committee for further reconsideration.  Any such referral back 

shall state the reasons, therefore, shall set a time limit within which 

a subsequent recommendation to the Governing Board shall be 

made, and may include a directive that additional information is 

obtained to clarify issues, which are in doubt.  At its next regular 

meeting after receipt of such subsequent recommendation any new 

evidence in the matter, if any, the Governing Board shall make a 

decision either to provisionally appoint the Allied Health 

Professional to the Allied Health Professional staff or to reject 

him/her for Allied Health Professional staff membership. 

 

2. Whenever the Governing Board's decision will be contrary to the 

recommendation of the Credentials Committee, the Governing 

Board shall submit the matter to the Joint Conference Committee 

for review and recommendation and shall consider such 

recommendation before making its decision final. 

 

3. When the Governing Board's decision is final, it shall send notice 

of such decision through the Chief Executive Officer to the 

Secretary of the Medical Staff, the Chair of the Medical Executive 

Committee, the Chair of the Credentials Committee and the Chair 

of the department concerned, and by certified mail, return receipt 

requested to the Allied Health Professional. 

 

d. Allied Health Professional Reappointment 

 

i. Reappointment Application 

 

Each application for reappointment to the Allied Health Professional staff 

shall be signed by the Applicant and include a statement by a sponsoring 

Physician who is currently on the MHSC Medical Staff.  Said sponsorship 

shall remain adequate, regardless of the status of the sponsor, until the 

expiration of the Applicant’s term, and shall be submitted on a form 

prescribed by the Governing Board after consultation with the Medical 

Executive Committee. 

55/321



 

31 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

ii. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff Services Manager 

 

The reappointment process shall begin ninety (90) days prior to the 

termination of current appointment and privileges.  Requests for additional 

privileges shall be made to the Medical Staff Services Manager at this 

time with accompanying documentation of further training and/or clinical 

experience.  The Medical Staff Services Manager shall gather all pertinent 

information relating to the Allied Health Professional's competence and 

clinical judgment in the treatment of patients (as determined by ongoing 

peer review and quality assurance activities), his/her mental and physical 

condition, ethics, conduct, compliance with Hospital and Medical Staff 

Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, cooperation with Hospital personnel and 

shall check all new information for veracity.  The Allied Health 

Professional shall report the circumstances and outcome of any 

malpractice judgment(s) delivered against him/her during the previous 

appointment period as well as any malpractice actions pending against 

him/her.  The Medical Staff Services Manager shall deliver that 

information to the appropriate Departmental Chair or his/her designated 

representative for review. 

 

iii. Responsibilities of Departmental Chair 

 

The Departmental Chair or his/her designated representative to which the 

application is forwarded will review the application (within 30 days) and 

make a report regarding the qualifications of the Allied Health 

Professional to the Credentials Committee.  In making his/her report the 

Departmental Chair or his/her designated representative shall examine the 

evidence of the character, professional competence, qualifications, health 

status, and ethical standing of the Allied Health Professional and shall 

determine, through information provided by the Medical Staff Services 

Manager whether the Allied Health Professional has established and meets 

all of the necessary qualifications for the Allied Health Professional staff 

membership and the clinical privileges requested by him/her.  Any 

requested change in clinical privileges requested by the Allied Health 

Professional will be supported by evidence of further training and/or 

clinical competence provided by the Allied Health Professional. 

 

iv. Reappointment Process 

 

Thereafter, the procedure provided for in Section c., i. paragraphs 7-10 of 

these Bylaws, relating to the initial appointment shall be followed. 

 

56/321



 

32 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 Section C.    REQUESTS FOR CLINICAL PRIVILEGES  

 

Requests for clinical privileges will be considered only when made on the prescribed form, and 

only when all information specified in the Hospital's description of threshold requirements for 

clinical privileges is provided.  In the event all requested information is not provided, the request 

for clinical privileges will be considered incomplete and will not be processed.  The potential 

Applicant will be notified of the nature of incompleteness.   

 

Section D.    RECOMMENDATIONS FOR PRIVILEGES 

 

1. Clinical Privileges: 

 

a. The clinical privileges of a Practitioner Applicant recommended to the Governing 

Board shall be based upon the following: the Applicant's education, training, 

experience, demonstrated current competence and judgment, references, 

utilization patterns, health status, and any and all other professional criteria used 

in evaluating an Applicant’s qualifications for Medical Staff appointment; 

 

b. Availability of qualified Physicians or other appropriate Appointees to provide 

medical coverage for the Applicant in case of the Applicant's illness or 

unavailability; 

 

c. Adequate levels of professional liability insurance coverage, as determined by the 

Governing Board, with respect to the clinical privileges requested; 

 

d. The Hospital's available resources and personnel; 

 

e. Any previously successful or currently pending challenges to any licensure or 

registration, or the voluntary relinquishment of such licensure or registration, 

information concerning any voluntary or involuntary termination or Medical Staff 

appointment or voluntary or involuntary limitation, reduction or loss of clinical 

privileges at another Hospital; and 

 

f. Other relevant information, including a written report and findings by the Chair of 

each of the clinical departments in which such privileges are sought. 

 
2. Threshold Requirements 

 

a. All requests for clinical privileges will be judged on the basis of established 

threshold requirements consisting of baseline criteria specifying the minimum 

amount of education, training, experience, and evidence of competency required. 

 

b. Recommended threshold requirements will be generated by the Credentials 

Committee in consultation with the appropriate Department Chair.  

57/321



 

33 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Recommended threshold requirements will then be submitted to the Medical 

Executive Committee for comments as well as to the Governing Board.  

Following the review of the Credentials Committee recommendations, as well as 

comments of the Medical Executive Committee, the Governing Board will then 

take action to establish final threshold requirements. 

 

c. All Applicants will be provided with the currently approved description of 

threshold requirements for particular clinical privileges requested. 

 

d. Any request for clinical privileges for which there are no existing approved 

threshold requirements will be tabled for a period not to exceed ninety (90) 

calendar days.  During this time, the Credentials Committee shall generate and 

submit recommended requirements to the MEC and Governing Board.  

Processing of the request will resume when the requirements are approved by the 

Governing Board. 

 

3. Burden of Proof 

 

The Applicant shall have the burden of establishing his/her qualifications for competence 

to exercise the clinical privileges requested. 

 

4. Emergency Privileges 

 

In the case of an emergency, any Physician, to the degree permitted by his/her license, 

and regardless of service or staff status or lack of it, shall be permitted and assisted to do 

everything possible to save the life of a patient, using every facility of the Hospital neces-

sary, including the calling for any consultation necessary or desirable. When an 

emergency situation no longer exists, such Practitioner must request his/her privileges 

necessary to continue to treat the patient.  In the event privileges are denied or he/she 

does not desire to request privileges, the patient shall be assigned to an appropriate 

member of the Medical Staff. For the purpose of this section, an "emergency" is defined 

as a condition in which serious, permanent harm would result to a patient or in which the 

life of a patient is in immediate danger and any delay in administering treatment would 

add to that danger. 

 

5. Disaster Privileges  

 

Disaster privileges may be granted when the emergency management plan has been 

activated and the Hospital is unable to handle the immediate patients’ needs.  Such 

disaster privileges will be granted in accordance with the Medical Staff Policy for 

granting disaster privileges. 

 

 

 

58/321



 

34 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

6. Temporary Appointments  

 

Temporary Appointments constitute temporary permissions to attend patients at the 

Hospital.  Temporary Appointments are distinguished from the privileges of the Hospital 

in that they are not based upon a complete review of credentials and are granted or 

revoked by the President of the Medical Staff, Chief Executive Officer, and Department 

Chair.  Temporary Privileges may be revoked or withdrawn at any time, with or without 

cause.  Temporary Privileges may be granted only for a specific period of time, and shall 

automatically expire at the end of the specified period, without recourse by the 

Practitioner under the Medical Staff Bylaws.  Temporary Privileges are granted only 

under the following circumstances and subject to the following conditions. 

 

a. Circumstances for Granting Temporary Privileges.  Upon the written concurrent 

of the Chair of the department where the privilege will be exercised and the 

President, the Chief Executive Officer may grant a Temporary Appointment in the 

following circumstances: 

 

xi. After receipt of an application for Medical Staff appointment, an 

appropriately licensed Applicant may be granted a Temporary 

Appointment, for an initial period of sixty (60) days, with subsequent 

renewal not to exceed the pendency of the application (the Temporary 

Appointment in such case cannot exceed the regular privileges applied for 

by the Applicant).  In exercising such privileges, the Applicant shall act 

under the supervision of the Chair of the department to which he or she is 

assigned or is appointed; 

 

xii. Upon receipt of a written request, an appropriately licensed Applicant may 

be granted a Temporary Appointment for the care of one or more specific 

patients.  Such Temporary Appointments will be based upon a complete 

review of the application, credentials, and licensure in compliance with 

the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and the Policies.   

 

7. Telemedicine Privileges  

 

Practitioners who are responsible for the patient’s care, treatment, and services via a 

telemedicine link shall be credentialed and privileged to do so by the Hospital in 

accordance with the Bylaws, accreditation requirements, and applicable law.  If the 

Hospital has a pressing clinical need and the Practitioner can supply that service through 

a telemedicine link, the Practitioner may be evaluated for Temporary Privileges in 

accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 6.  Practitioners providing 

telemedicine services to Hospital patients shall be credentialed and privileged to do so 

through one of the following mechanisms: 

 

 

59/321



 

35 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

a. The Practitioner shall be credentialed and privileged by the Hospital in 

accordance with the applicable procedure set forth in these Bylaws. 

 

b. The Practitioner shall be credentialed and privileged by the Hospital in 

accordance with the applicable procedure set forth in these Bylaws with the 

exception that the credentialing information and/or privileging decision from the 

distant site may be relied upon by the Medical Staff and the Governing Board in 

making its recommendations/decision, provided that the Hospital has entered into 

a written agreement with the distant site and all of the following requirements are 

met: 

 

i. The distant site is a Medicare-certified Hospital or a facility that qualifies 

as a “distant site telemedicine entity.” A “distant site telemedicine entity” 

is defined as an entity that (i) provides telemedicine services, (ii) is not a 

Medicare-certified Hospital, and (ii) provides contracted services in a 

manner that enables Hospitals using its services to meet all applicable 

conditions of participation, particularly those requirements related to the 

credentialing and privileging of Practitioners providing telemedicine 

services to the patients of the Hospital; 

 

ii. When the distant site is a Medicare-certified Hospital, the written 

agreement shall specify that it is the responsibility of the distant site 

Hospital to meet the credentialing requirements of 42 C.F.R. 485.616 

(c)(1)(i)-(c)(1)(vii), as that provision may be amended from time to time, 

with regard to the distant site Hospital Practitioners providing 

telemedicine services; and 

 

iii. When the distant site is a “distant site telemedicine entity” the written 

agreement shall specify that the distant site telemedicine entity is a 

contractor of services to the Hospital and, as such, furnishes the contracted 

services in a manner that permits the Hospital to comply with all 

applicable conditions of participation for the contracted services 

including, but not limited to, 42 C.F.R. 485.616 (c)(1)(i)-(c)(1)(vii) with 

regard to the distant site telemedicine entity Practitioners providing 

telemedicine services. The written agreement shall further specify that the 

distant site telemedicine entity’s medical staff credentialing and 

privileging process and standards will, at minimum, meet the standards at 

42 C.F.R. 485.616 (c)(1)(i)-(c)(1)(vii), as that provision may be amended 

from time to time. 

 

c. The individual distant site Practitioner is privileged at the distant site for those 

services to be provided to Hospital patients via telemedicine link and the Hospital 

is provided with a current list of his/her privileges at the distant site. 

 

60/321



 

36 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

d. The individual distant site Practitioner holds an appropriate license issued by the 

State of Wyoming by the appropriate licensing entity. 

 

e. The Hospital maintains documentation of its internal review of the performance 

of each distant site Practitioner and sends the distant site such performance 

information for use in the distant site’s periodic appraisal of the distant site 

Practitioner. At a minimum, this information must include:  

 

i. All adverse events that result from the telemedicine services provided by 

the distant site Practitioner to Hospital patients; and 

 

ii. All complaints the Hospital receives about the distant site Practitioner. 

 

8. Board Certification  

 

Applicants for appointment or re-appointment to the Medical Staff are required to adhere 

to the following requirements relative to board certification: 

 

a. Board certification or the active pursuit of board certification in the specialty in 

which the Applicant seeks privileges, conferred by the American Board of 

Medical Specialties or the American Osteopathic Association is required. 

 

b. In the absence of board certification, an Applicant must have successfully 

completed a residency training program in conjunction with the specialty in which 

the Applicant seeks privileges that are approved by the Accreditation Council for 

Graduate Medical Education or the American Osteopathic Association, or from 

another recognized accredited training program approved by the Governing 

Board, and must be qualified to pursue and receive board certification.   

 

c. Any physician granted clinical privileges, who does not attain board certification 

by their individual certifying board’s deadline will be determined to not meet 

threshold criteria. 

 

d. If a physician does not meet threshold criteria for their specialty, their medical 

staff membership and clinical privileges will be revoked.  As this revocation is 

based solely on the failure of the physician to meet threshold criteria, this will not 

be reportable, and the Physician will not be entitled to a fair hearing.  

 

e. Physician’s eligibility for board certification (board eligible period) expires on a 

date determined by their individual certifying board. On appointment 

applications, Physicians will be required to indicate the date that their board 

certification or board eligibility (if not certified) expires. The Medical Staff Office 

will track these expiration dates.  

61/321



 

37 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

f. When a Physician’s board eligibility lapses and certification has not been 

achieved, the physician must immediately notify the Medical Staff Office. If their 

certifying board allows them to re-establish board eligibility, the candidate must 

complete all requirements set by their board and must provide documentation of 

such, proving that they are once again board eligible or board certified.  

 

Section E.    AGREEMENT OF APPLICANTS 

 

1. Physicians and Licensed Independent Practitioners seeking appointment or reappointment 

agree that if an adverse ruling or other decision which is unfavorable to the Applicant is 

made with respect to Medical Staff membership, status, and/or clinical privileges, the 

Applicant must resort to the administrative remedies afforded by these Bylaws in Article 

XIII before seeking to pursue to any formal legal action. 

 

2. Allied Health Professionals are not members of the Medical Staff and accordingly shall 

have no recourse to the procedural rights set forth in these Bylaws in Article XIII, but 

may file a Grievance with the Medical Executive Committee pursuant to Article V of 

these Bylaws. 

 

Section F.    LEAVE OF ABSENCE 

 

1. A Medical Staff Appointee may obtain a voluntary leave of absence, for good cause, for a 

period not to exceed one (1) year by submitting a written request to the Medical 

Executive Committee and the Chief Executive Officer.  Good cause shall include, but 

shall not be necessarily be limited to, personal illness, death in the family, or significant 

personal problems or hardships. Reasonable notice must be given for a request of leave, 

and there is a reasonable expectation that the cause will be resolved in the time requested. 

The decision as to whether to recommend a leave of absence resides in the discretion of 

the Medical Executive Committee and must be approved by the Governing Board.   

 

2. Upon proper written request to the Medical Executive Committee, prior to the expiration 

of the first period, a Medical Staff Appointee on leave of absence may request an 

extension of his/her leave for one (1) additional period not to exceed one (1) year.  

 

3. At least thirty (30) days prior to the termination of the leave, or at an earlier time, the 

Medical Staff Member may request reinstatement of his or her clinical privileges by 

submitting a written notice to that effect to the Chief Executive Officer for transmittal to 

the Medical Executive Committee.  The Medical Staff Appointee shall submit a written 

summary of his or her relevant activities during the leave if the Medical Executive 

Committee requests.  Thereafter, the procedure provided in Section III, of the Medical 

Staff Rules and Regulations shall be followed. 

 

4. The Medical Staff Appointee may request reinstatement or reappointment as determined 

by the Medical Executive Committee. Based on the information provided, the Medical 

62/321



 

38 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Executive Committee will determine whether the Medical Staff Appointee will be 

reinstated, need to apply for reappointment, or go through the initial appointment process. 

 

5. Failure, without good cause, to request reinstatement or to provide a requested summary 

of activities as provided above shall be deemed a voluntary resignation from the Medical 

Staff and shall result in automatic termination of Medical Staff membership and clinical 

privileges.  A Practitioner whose Medical Staff membership is so terminated shall be 

entitled to the procedural rights provided in Article XIII of the Medical Staff Bylaws for 

the sole purpose of determining the issue of good cause.  A request for Medical Staff 

membership subsequently received from a former Staff member so terminated shall be 

submitted and processed in the manner specified for applications for initial appointments. 

 

 

ARTICLE VII 

OFFICERS 

 

Section A.    OFFICERS OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 

 

The Officers of the Medical Staff shall be: 

 

1. President 

2. Vice-President 

3. Secretary 

 

Section B.    QUALIFICATIONS OF OFFICERS 

 

Officers must be members of the Active Physician Staff with Active status, at the time of 

nomination and election and must remain members in good standing during their term of office.  

Failure to maintain such status shall, loss of licensure, or privileges shall immediately create a 

vacancy in the office involved. 

 

Section C.    NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

 

1. Nomination of Officers  

 

a. At least one (1) candidate for each office shall be nominated by the Nominating 

Committee.  

 

b. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the time of the annual meeting of 

the Medical Staff. 

 

c. All nominations can be made only with the consent of the nominated individual. 

 

 

63/321



 

39 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

2. Election of Officers 

 

Officers shall be elected at the annual meeting of the Medical Staff.  Voting shall be by 

secret written ballots, provided, however, if requested, Medical Staff members may use 

absentee ballots and may vote by phone, e-mail, or by U.S. mail.  Where there are three 

(3) or more candidates and no candidate receives a majority, there shall be successive 

balloting such that the name of the candidate receiving the fewest votes is omitted from 

each successive slate until a majority vote is obtained by one (1) candidate. 

 

Section D.    TERM OF OFFICE 

 

All Officers shall serve a one (1) year term or until resignation or removal, and shall take office 

on the first (1st) day of the Medical Staff year, January 1.  If elected, an Officer may succeed 

himself/herself, for one (1) consecutive, additional one (1) year term.  In the event that an officer 

vacates his or her office prior to the completion of the term, such vacancy shall be filled in 

accordance with Section (E). 

 

Section E.    VACANCIES OF OFFICE 

 

Vacancies in office prior to the completion of the term, except for the President and Vice 

President, shall be filled by the Medical Executive Committee.  If there is a vacancy in the office 

of the President, the Vice President shall serve out the remaining term.  If there is a vacancy in 

the office of the Vice President, the Nominating Committee shall nominate candidates to fill the 

office and a special election will be held.  Such nomination and a special election will be held 

within thirty (30) days of the vacancy. 

 

Section F.    DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 

1. President  

 

The President shall serve as the Chief Administrative Officer of the Medical Staff.  The 

President’s duties include: 

 

a. Act in coordination and cooperation with the Chief Executive Officer in all 

matters of mutual concern within the Hospital; 

 

b. Call, preside at, and be responsible for the agenda of all general meetings of the 

Medical Staff; 

 

c. Serve as Chair of the Medical Executive Committee; 

 

d. Serve as an ex-officio member of all other Medical Staff committees and other 

departments without vote; 

 

64/321



 

40 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

e. Be responsible for the enforcement of Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules & 

Regulations, for implementation of sanctions where these are indicated, and for 

the Medical Staff's compliance with the procedural safeguards in all instances 

where corrective action has been requested against a Practitioner or Allied Health 

Professional; 

 

f. Appoint committee members to all standing, special and multi-disciplinary 

Medical Staff committees and subcommittees, except the Medical Executive 

Committee, and interdepartmental committees; 

 

g. Represent the views, policies, needs, and grievances of the Medical Staff and 

report to the Governing Board and to the Chief Executive Officer; 

 

h. Receive and interpret the Policies of the Governing Board to the Medical Staff 

and report to the Governing Board on the performance and maintenance of quality 

with respect to the Medical Staff's delegated responsibility to provide medical 

care; 

 

i. Be responsible for the educational activities of the Medical Staff; 

 

j. Be the spokesperson for the Medical Staff in its external professional and public 

relations;  

 

k. Attend all regular Governing Board meetings. 

 

2. Vice President  

 

In the absence of the President, the Vice President shall assume all the duties and have 

the authority of the President.  He/she shall automatically succeed the President when the 

latter fails to serve for any reason.  He/she may attend all regular Hospital Board 

meetings and shall serve as a member of the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

3. Secretary  

 

The Secretary shall be responsible for giving proper notice of all Medical Staff meetings, 

maintaining accurate and complete minutes of all Medical Staff meetings, call Medical 

Staff meetings on order of the President, and perform such other duties as ordinarily 

pertains to his/her office.  The Secretary shall attend to all routine and special 

correspondence.  Special Correspondence involving or pertaining to the Activities of the 

Hospital will be referred to the Governing Board through the President.  Where there are 

funds to be accounted for, the Secretary shall also act as Treasurer and account for all 

such funds.  The Secretary shall serve as a member of the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

65/321



 

41 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section G.    REMOVAL FROM OFFICE 

 

1. Officers must remain members of the Active Physician Staff in good standing at all times 

during their term of office.  Resignation from the Medical Staff, failure to maintain 

Active status, loss of license, or privileges shall immediately create a vacancy in the 

office involved. 

 

2. Removal of an officer during his/her term of office may be initiated, for or without cause, 

by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Medical Staff present at any annual or special 

meeting at which a quorum is present, but no such removal shall be effective unless and 

until it has been ratified by the Governing Board .  Cause for such removal may be for 

reasons unrelated to professional capabilities or the exercise of clinical privileges and 

may include failing to perform the duties of the position or exhibiting conduct 

detrimental to the interests of the Hospital.  Without further action pursuant to these 

Bylaws, removal from office does not affect the Medical Staff appointment or clinical 

privileges of the Physician or Licensed Independent Practitioner so removed. 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS 

 

Section A.    ORGANIZATION OF CLINICAL DEPARTMENTS 

 

Each department shall be organized as a separate part of the Medical Staff and shall have a Chair 

and a Vice-Chair. The Chair shall be responsible for the overall supervision of the clinical work 

within the department.  In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall assume all the duties 

and have the authority of the Chair.  The Medical Staff of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater 

County shall be organized into the following departments: 

 

1. Surgery Department 

 

The Surgery Department shall include those Practitioners primarily engaged in surgical 

care. 

 

2. Medicine Department 

 

The Medicine Department shall include those Practitioners primarily engaged in non-

surgical medical care. 

 

 

 

 

 

66/321



 

42 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section B.    FUNCTIONS OF DEPARTMENTS 

 

1. Responsibilities 

 

 Each clinical department shall: 

 

a. Through the Departmental Chair, recommend to the Credentials Committee 

written criteria for the assignment of clinical privileges that are consistent with, 

and subject to, the Bylaws, Policies, Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff 

and Hospital.  Those criteria shall include levels of demonstrated current 

competence, training and experience required for granting privileges within the 

specialties covered by the department; 

 

b. Monitor and evaluate medical care provided by members of the department on a 

retrospective, concurrent and prospective basis, which monitoring and evaluation 

must at least include: 

 

i. The routine collection of information about important aspects of patient 

care provided in the department and about the clinical performance of its 

members; and 

 

ii. The periodic assessment of this information to identify opportunities to 

improve care and to identify important problems in patient care; and 

 

iii. Will routinely review all mortalities, morbidity, and any significant patient 

complications; and 

 

c. Recommend, subject to approval and adoption by the Medical Executive 

Committee and Governing Board, objective criteria that reflect current knowledge 

and clinical experience to be used in the monitoring and evaluation of patient 

care. 

 

d. Each department shall meet at least three (3) times a year, ideally quarterly.  All 

meetings shall be held on such day and at such hour as the Chair of the 

department designates in the call and notice of the meeting. 

 

Section C.    QUALIFICATIONS, SELECTION AND TENURE OF DEPARTMENT 

CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR 

 

1. Qualifications 

 

Each Departmental Chair and Vice-Chair shall be a member of the Active Staff and be 

certified by an appropriate specialty board or, through the privilege delineation process, 

be established to possess comparable competence. 

67/321



 

43 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 
2. Selection 

 

Each Departmental Chair and Vice-Chair shall be elected by the Medical Staff members 

of their respective clinical departments prior to the end of the Medical Staff year.   

 

3. Roles and Responsibilities.  Each Department Chair and Vice-Chair shall be responsible 

and shall perform each of the following: 

 

a. Clinically related activities of the department; 

 

b. Administratively oversee related activities of the department, unless otherwise 

provided by the Hospital; 

 

c. Continuing surveillance of the professional performance of all individuals in the 

department who have delineated clinical privileges; 

 

d. Recommending to the Medical Staff the criteria for clinical privileges that are 

relevant to the care provided in the department; 

 

e. Recommending clinical privileges for each member of the department; 

 

f. Assessing and recommending to the relevant Hospital authority off-site sources 

for needed patient care, treatment, and services not provided by the department or 

the Hospital; 

 

g. Integration of the department or service into the primary functions of the 

organization; 

 

h. The coordination and integration of interdepartmental and intradepartmental 

services; 

 

i. The development and implementation of policies and procedures that guide and 

support the provision of care, treatment, and services; 

 

j. The recommendations for a sufficient number of qualified and competent persons 

to provide care, treatment, and services; 

 

k. Determination of the qualifications and competence of department or services 

personnel who are not Licensed Independent Practitioners and who provide 

patient care, treatment, and services; 

 

l. The continuous assessment and improvement of the quality of care, treatment, and 

services; 

68/321



 

44 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

m. The maintenance of quality control programs, as appropriate; 

 

n. The orientation and continuing education of all persons in the department or 

service; and; 

 

o. Recommending space and other resources needed by the department or service. 

 

4. Tenure 

 

a. Each Departmental Chair and Vice-Chair shall serve for a one (1) year term 

effective the first day of the Medical Staff year, January 1, or until resignation or 

a vacancy is created pursuant to Section (5).  If elected, a Department Chair 

and/or Vice-Chair may succeed himself/herself for one (1) consecutive, additional 

one (1) year term, subject to the approval of the Governing Board. 

 

b. If there is a vacancy in the office of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall serve out the 

remaining term.  If there is a vacancy in the office of the Vice-Chair, a special 

election will be held within thirty (30) days of the vacancy to elect a successor to 

serve for the remainder of the term. 

 

5. Removal 

 

a. Department Chairs and Vice-Chairs must remain members of the Active 

Physician Staff in good standing at all times during their term of office.  

Resignation from the Medical Staff, failure to maintain Active status, loss of 

license, or privileges shall immediately create a vacancy in the office of Chair or 

Vice-Chair involved. 

 

b. Each Departmental Chair and/or Vice-Chair may be removed from his or her 

office with or without cause when initiated by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of 

all Active Physician Staff members of the department but no such removal shall 

be effective unless, and until, it has been ratified by the Governing Board.    

Cause for such removal may be for reasons unrelated to professional capabilities 

or the exercise of clinical privileges and may include failing to perform the duties 

of the position or exhibiting conduct detrimental to the interests of the Hospital.  

Without further action pursuant to these Bylaws, removal from office does not 

affect the Medical Staff appointment or clinical privileges of the Physician so 

removed. 

 

 

 

 

69/321



 

45 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section D.    ASSIGNMENT TO DEPARTMENTS 

 

Applicants for appointment and reappointment will request departmental assignments at the time 

of application.  If any Departmental Chair feels that the Applicant's choice is not appropriate, the 

Medical Executive Committee will determine the final departmental assignment. 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

COMMITTEES OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 

 

Section A.    COMPOSITION 

 

Medical Staff committees established to perform one or more of the staff functions required by 

these Bylaws, Rules and Regulations shall consist of Appointees to the Active and Associate 

Physician Staff categories and may include, where appropriate, Licensed Independent 

Practitioners, Allied Health Professionals, and representatives from Hospital management, 

nursing, medical records, pharmacy, or social services, and such other departments as are 

appropriate to the function(s) to be discharged. 

 

Section B.    APPOINTMENT AND TERM 

Except as otherwise provided, members of each committee shall be appointed yearly by the 

President of the Medical Staff, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief 

Executive Officer and the President of the Medical Staff or their respective designee(s) shall be 

members, ex-officio, without a vote, of all committees.  There is no limit to the number of one-

year terms committee members may serve.   

 

Section C.    CHAIRS 

 

All committee Chairs, unless otherwise provided for in these Bylaws, will be appointed by the 

President of the Medical Staff.  All such appointments will be subject to final approval by the 

Governing Board.   

 

1. Term  

 

Initial appointments of the committee Chair, unless otherwise provided for in these Bylaws, 

shall be for a period of one (1) year, after which a Chair may be reappointed for unlimited 

one (1) year terms. 

 

Section D.    REMOVALS AND VACANCIES 

 

All appointed members and Chair may be removed and vacancies filled at the discretion of the 

President of the Medical Staff unless otherwise provided for in these Bylaws. 

 

70/321



 

46 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section E.     MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (MEC) 

 

1. Composition: 

 

a. The Medical Executive Committee shall be composed of the officers of the 

Medical Staff, the Chair of each clinical department and the Immediate Past 

President of the Medical Staff if he or she continues to be a member of the Active 

Medical Staff. 

 

b. The President of the Medical Staff shall be Chair of the MEC. 

 

c. The Chief Executive Officer shall be an ex officio member of the Medical 

Executive Committee, but without a vote, and shall be present at all meetings of 

the Medical Executive Committee.  Members of the Governing Board and the 

Chief Nursing Officer may attend meetings of the Medical Executive Committee 

and participate in its discussions but without a vote. 

 

2. Duties:  

 

The duties of the Medical Executive Committee shall be: 

 

a. To represent and to act on behalf of the Medical Staff in all matters, without the 

requirement of subsequent approval by the staff, subject only to any limitations 

imposed by these Bylaws, Rules, Regulations, and Policies; 

 

b. To coordinate the activities and general policies of the various departments; 

 

c. To receive and to act upon the committee and departmental reports as specified in 

these Bylaws, and to make recommendations concerning them to the Medical 

Staff, Chief Executive Officer, and the Governing Board; 

 

d. To implement policies of the Hospital that affect the Medical Staff, and those 

policies of the Medical Staff not otherwise the responsibility of the departments; 

 

e. To provide liaison among the Medical Staff, the Chief Executive Officer, and the 

Governing Board; 

 
f. To keep the Medical Staff abreast of applicable accreditation and regulatory 

requirements affecting the Hospital; 

 

g. To enforce Hospital and Medical Staff rules in the best interest of patient care and 

of the Hospital with regard to all persons who hold an appointment to the Medical 

Staff; 

 

71/321



 

47 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

h. To resolve situations involving questions of the clinical competency, patient care, 

and treatment, case management, or inappropriate behavior of any Medical Staff 

Appointee; 

 

i. To be responsible to the Governing Board for the implementation of the 

Hospital's quality assessment plan as it affects the Medical Staff; 

 

j. To review the Bylaws, Policies, Rules and Regulations and associated documents 

of the Medical Staff at least once a year and to recommend such changes as may 

be necessary or desirable; 

 

k. To act for the organized Medical Staff between meetings of the organized 

Medical Staff;  

 

l. To review clinical pertinence, accuracy and timely completion of medical records 

on a quarterly basis; 

 

m. To review the appropriateness of admissions and stays at the Hospital; 

 

n. To review processes related to medication use;  

 

o. To make recommendations to the President and Chief Executive Officer on 

matters of medico-administrative nature; 

 

p. To make recommendations on Hospital management matters to the Medical Staff, 

the Governing Board, the President, and the Chief Executive Officer; 

 

q. To fulfill the Medical Staff’s accountability to the Governing Board for the 

medical care rendered to patients in the Hospital; 

 

r. To review the recommendations of the Credentials Committee concerning all 

applications and to make written comment to the Governing Board on the 

recommendations from the Credentials Committee regarding the appointment, 

assignments to services, and delineation of clinical privileges; 

 

s. To review periodically all information of Medial Staff Appointees and other 

Practitioners with clinical privileges, including, but not limited to Peer Review 

Information and Credentialing Data, and, as a result of such reviews, make 

recommendations for reappointments and renewal or changes to clinical 

privileges; 

 

 

 

72/321



 

48 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

t. To take all reasonable steps to ensure professional ethical conduct and competent 

clinical performance on the part of all Appointees of the Medical Staff, including 

the initiation of and/or participation in staff corrective or review measures when 

warranted; and 

 

u. To report at each general Medical Staff meeting. 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Medical Executive Committee shall meet at least ten (10) times per year, ideally 

monthly.  The Secretary will be responsible for maintaining reports of all meetings, 

which shall include the minutes of the various committees and departments of the staff.  

Copies of all Medical Executive Committee minutes and reports shall be transmitted to 

the Chief Executive Officer and the Departmental Chair routinely as prepared.  

 

4. Reports and Recommendations: 

 

Recommendations of the Medical Executive Committee shall be transmitted to the 

Governing Board with a copy to the Chief Executive Officer.  The Chair of the Medical 

Executive Committee shall be available to meet with the Board or its applicable commit-

tee on all recommendations of the Medical Executive Committee.  The minutes of all 

Medical Executive Committee meetings will be reviewed by each Department Chair at 

his/her departmental meetings. 

 

Section F.     CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE 

 
1. Composition: 

 

The Credentials Committee shall consist of the three (3) most recent Past Presidents of 

the Medical Staff who are still Appointees to the Active Staff category.  The Chair shall 

be the member who has the most recent consecutive years of service on the committee.  If 

the functions of the committee are threatened by the inability or unwillingness of any of 

the Past Presidents to serve, as determined by the Medical Executive Committee, the 

President of the Medical Staff shall appoint members to the committee to fulfill those 

terms. 

 

2. Duties: 

 

The duties of the Credentials Committee shall be to: 

 

a. Review the credentials of all Applicants for Medical Staff appointments, 

reappointments, and clinical privileges; to make investigations of, and interview, 

such Applicants as may be necessary; and to submit a written report of its findings 

and recommendations; 

73/321



 

49 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

b. Review the credentials of all Applicants who request to practice at the Hospital as 

Allied Health Professionals; to make investigations of, and interview, such 

Applicants as may be necessary; and to submit a report of its findings and 

recommendations; 

 

c. Annually review and recommend amendments to the policies on appointments, 

reappointments and clinical privileges as outlined in these Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations; and 

 

d. Generate threshold requirements and other criteria for granting of clinical 

privileges in consultation with the appropriate Departmental Chair. 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Credentials Committee shall meet at least ten (10) times per year, ideally monthly, 

unless there is no business to be transacted, and shall maintain a permanent record of its 

proceedings and actions. 

 

4. Reports and Recommendations: 

 

The Credentials Committee shall report its recommendations to the Medical Executive 

Committee, the Chief Executive Officer and the Governing Board.  The Chair of the 

Credentials Committee shall be available to meet with the Governing Board or its 

applicable committee on all recommendations that the Credentials Committee may make. 

 

5. Recusal: 

 

Whenever an Applicant’s or Medical Staff Appointee’s practice is in direct economic 

competition with the practice of a member of the Credentials Committee, such member of 

the Credentials Committee who is in direct economic competition with the Applicant or 

Medical Staff Appointee shall abstain from voting during proceedings involving the 

Applicant or Medical Staff Appointee.  Such abstention shall be recorded in the minutes 

of the meeting. 

 

Section G.    JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
 

1. Composition: 

 

The Joint Conference Committee shall be a standing committee composed of the 

President, Vice President and Secretary of the Medical Staff, two (2) members of the 

Governing Board, and the Chief Executive Officer, who shall serve as an ex officio 

member.  The Chair ship shall be alternated between the Governing Board Chair and the 

President of the Medical Staff every two (2) years. 

74/321



 

50 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

2. Duties: 

 

The Joint Conference Committee shall provide for medico-administrative liaison with the 

Governing Board and the Chief Executive Officer relative to matters of Hospital policy 

and practice.  Its primary function shall be to serve as a forum for discussion of matters 

pertaining to, efficient and effective patient care, credentialing, and identifying those 

skills and values necessary for the future leadership of the Hospital and the Medical Staff.  

The Joint Conference Committee shall further endeavor to formulate and enact the 

mission, core values, and goals of the Hospital and the Medical Staff, as well as perform 

those functions assigned to it by these Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, the Policies, or 

the Governing Board from time to time.  Such duties include: 

 

a. To serve as a forum for education and discussion of issues of mutual concern 

related to patient care, medical policies, staffing and resources, and the 

relationship between the Hospital and members of the Medical Staff. 

 

b. To serve as a forum for education and discussion on all matters related to the 

quality of care, patient safety, customer service, and organizational culture. 

 

c. To serve as a forum for discussion of issues related to new service lines. 

 

d. To address troublesome issues before they burgeon into conflicts. 

 

e. To make recommendations to the Governing Board and the Medical Executive 

Committee, respectively. 

 
3. Meetings: 

 

The Joint Conference Committee shall meet at least annually. 

 

4. Reporting To: 

 

The Joint Conference Committee shall transmit written of its activities to the Governing 

Board and the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

 

Section H.    NOMINATING COMMITTEE 

 

1. Composition: 

 

The Nominating Committee shall be composed of one (1) representative from each 

Medical Staff department.  Each Medical Staff department will elect its representative.  

The term of each member will be for one (1) Medical Staff year. 

 

75/321



 

51 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

2. Duties: 

 

The Nominating Committee shall nominate Medical Staff officers to be presented to the 

Medical Staff at the annual meeting.  The officers shall be the President, Vice President, 

and Secretary. 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Nominating Committee shall meet as determined by the committee, but at least once 

a year at least 60 days prior to the annual meeting. 

 

4. Reporting To: 

 

The Nominating Committee shall transmit their nominations in writing to all members of 

the Medical Staff at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual Medical Staff meeting. 

 

Section I.     SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 

The President of the Medical Staff may appoint special committees as the need arises to carry out 

a specified task.  At such time when such special committee has concluded its assigned duty that 

is upon acceptance of its final report to the Medical Executive Committee, such committee shall 

be terminated. 

 

Section J.     REMOVAL 

 

1. Committee members who are Appointees must remain members of the Medical Staff in 

good standing at all times.  Committee members who are Allied Health Professionals 

must similarly remain in good standing as Allied Health Professional members in good 

standing.  Resignation from the Medical Staff, failure to maintain such Medical Staff 

status, loss of license, or privileges shall immediately create a vacancy in the committee. 

 

2. Officers and Chair shall be subject to automatic removal from a committee upon their 

resignation or removal from office in accordance with Article VII, Section G, and Article 

VIII, Section, C, 4 and 5, respectively.  All other committee members who are 

Appointees of the Medical Staff and Allied Health Professionals may be removed upon 

the determination of the Medical Executive Committee, with or without cause, but no 

such removal shall be effective unless, and until, it has been ratified by the Governing 

Board.  Cause for such removal may be for reasons unrelated to professional capabilities 

or the exercise of clinical privileges and may include failing to perform the duties of the 

position or exhibiting conduct detrimental to the interests of the Hospital.  Without 

further action pursuant to these Bylaws, removal from office does not affect the Medical 

Staff appointment or clinical privileges of an Appointee or Allied Health Professional so 

removed. 

 

76/321



 

52 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

ARTICLE X 

MEDICAL STAFF MEETINGS 

 

Section A.    STAFF MEETINGS 

 

1. Regular Meetings of the Medical Staff 

 

a. Medical Staff meetings shall be held at least annually.  Elections of Medical Staff 

Officers will be held at the annual meeting.  The agenda of such meetings shall 

include reports of review and evaluation of the work done in the clinical depart-

ments and the performance of the required Medical Staff functions. 

 
b. The Medical Executive Committee may provide, by resolution, for the holding of 

additional regular meetings of the Medical Staff for transacting such business as 

may come before the meeting.  All meetings shall be held on such day and at such 

hour as the President of the Medical Staff shall designate in the call and notice of 

the meeting. 

 

2. Special Meetings of the Medical Staff 

 

a. The President of the Medical Staff, the Governing Board, the Medical Executive 

Committee, the Chief Executive Officer, or not less than one/third (1/3) of the 

members of the Active and Associate Physician staff may at any time file a 

written request with the President of the Medical Staff that within seven (7) days 

of the filing of such request, a special meeting of the Medical Staff shall be called. 

 

b. The Medical Executive Committee shall designate the time and place of any such 

special meeting. 

 

c. Written or printed notice stating the place, day and hour of any special meeting of 

the Medical Staff shall be delivered, either personally, via e-mail, in Physicians’ 

Hospital mailboxes, or by placing in the United States mail, to each member of 

the active and Associate Staff members not less than three (3) working days 

before the date of such meeting, by or at the direction of the President of the 

Medical Staff or other persons authorized to call the meeting. If mailed, the notice 

of the meeting shall be deemed delivered when deposited, postage prepaid, in the 

United States mail addressed to each staff member at the address as it appears on 

the records of the Hospital.  Notice may also be sent to members or other Medical 

Staff groups who have so requested.  The attendance of a member of the Medical 

Staff at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of a notice of such meeting.  No 

business shall be transacted at any special meeting except that stated in the motion 

calling the meeting. 

 

 

77/321



 

53 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

3. Quorum 

 

A quorum will consist of those Physicians Appointees present at the Medical Staff 

meeting. 

 

 

ARTICLE XI 

COMMITTEE AND DEPARTMENT MEETINGS 

 

Section A.    REGULAR MEETINGS 

 

Committees and Departments shall provide the time for holding meetings with prior written 

notice. 

 

Section B.    SPECIAL MEETINGS 

 

A special meeting of any committee or department may be called by, the Chair thereof, by the 

President of the Medical Staff, Chief Executive Officer, or by one-third (1/3) of the group's 

membership, but not less than two (2) members. 

 

Section C.    NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

 

Written or oral notice stating the place, day and hour of any special meeting or of any regular 

meeting, not held pursuant to resolution, shall be given to each member of the committee or 

department either personally, via e-mail, placing in the Physicians’ Hospital mailboxes, or by 

placing in the United States mail, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting.  If mailed, the 

notice of the meeting shall be deemed delivered when deposited in the United States mail 

addressed to the member at his/her address as it appears on the records of the Hospital with 

postage thereon prepaid.  The attendance of a member at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of 

notice of such meeting to such member. 

 

Section D.   ATTENDANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. Active and Associate Staff Members 

 

Each member of the Active and Associate Physician Staff, and Licensed Independent 

Practitioners, are strongly encouraged to attend the following meetings, to contribute, and 

to make their voice heard: 

 

a. Clinical departments;  

 

b. Committees; and  

 

c. Administrative and special committees. 

78/321



 

54 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

Section E.    QUORUM 

 

A quorum will consist of those Physicians with voting privileges present at the Medical Staff 

meeting. 

 

Section F.    MANNER OF ACTION 

 

1. Formal Action: 

 

The action of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is 

present shall be the action of a committee or department. 

 

2. Informal Action: 

 

No action of a committee or department shall be valid unless taken at a meeting at which 

a quorum is present except that any actions may be taken without a meeting if a 

unanimous consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by each 

member entitled to vote thereat. 

 

Section G.   RIGHTS OF EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 

 

Persons serving under these Bylaws as ex-officio members of a committee or department shall 

have all rights and privileges of regular members except they shall not be counted in determining 

the existence of a quorum.  They shall be deemed non-voting members of the committee or 

department unless specified to the contrary in the individual committee or department sections of 

these Bylaws, Rules and Regulations or Policies. 

 

Section H.   MINUTES 

 

Minutes of each meeting and special meeting of a committee or department shall be prepared and 

shall include a record of the attendance of members and the result of the vote taken on each 

matter.  The minutes shall be signed by the presiding officer and read for approval at the next 

meeting, and after such approval is obtained, forwarded to the Medical Executive Committee or 

as otherwise specified by these Bylaws, Rules and Regulations and Policies.  Each committee 

and department shall maintain a permanent file of the minutes of each meeting in an accessible 

central location in the Hospital, approved by the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

Section I.     REQUIREMENTS FOR MANDATORY MEETING ATTENDANCE 

 

1. Requirements and Notice  

 

A Practitioner whose patient's clinical course is scheduled for discussion at a committee 

or departmental meeting may be required by the committee or department Chair to attend 

79/321



 

55 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

such meeting.  The Secretary of the Medical Staff will be notified of the attendance 

request and then shall give the Practitioner advance written notice of the time and place 

of the meeting at which his/her attendance is expected.  Whenever apparent or suspected 

deviation from standard clinical practice is involved, the notice to the Practitioner shall so 

state shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, and shall include a 

statement that his/her attendance at the meeting at which the alleged deviation is to be 

discussed is mandatory. 

 

2. Failure to Attend 

 

Failure by a Practitioner to attend any meeting with respect to which he/she was given 

notice that attendance was mandatory, unless excused by the Medical Executive 

Committee upon a showing of good cause, shall result in automatic initiation of a request 

for corrective action by the committee or Departmental Chair or his/her designee as 

outlined by Article XII.  In all other cases if the Practitioner shall make a timely request 

for postponement supported by an adequate showing that his/her absence will be 

unavoidable, such presentation may be postponed by the Chair of the involved committee 

or department, or by the Medical Executive Committee if the Chair is the Practitioner 

involved, until not later than the next regular departmental or committee meeting; 

otherwise the pertinent clinical information shall be presented and discussed as 

scheduled, and Practitioner’s absence will result in an automatic initiation of a request for 

corrective action. 

 

 

ARTICLE XII 

CORRECTIVE ACTION 

 

Section A.    CORRECTIVE ACTION 

 

4. Grounds: 

 

Corrective action may be initiated against a member of the Medical Staff whenever there 

is probable cause that the Practitioner or Allied Health Professional is, or was engaged, in 

any of the following: 

 

a. The use of any false, fraudulent or forged statement or document, or any 

fraudulent or deceitful practice, in the connection with the process of obtaining an 

appointment or clinical privileges; 

 

b. The possession of any physical or mental impairment which renders the exercise 

of their privileges a material risk to patients; 

 

 

 

80/321



 

56 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

c. The performance of any dishonest, fraudulent, slanderous, libelous, unethical or 

unprofessional conduct likely to deceive, defraud or harm the public, the Medical 

Staff, or the Hospital; 

 

d. the habitual use of a drug or intoxicant to such degree as to render one unsafe or 

unfit to exercise his/her privileges; 

 

e. The aiding or abetting of the exercise of privileges in the Hospital by a person not 

appointed to the Medical Staff by the Governing Board pursuant to these Bylaws; 

 

f. The manifest incapacity to exercise privileges; 

 

g. Unprofessional or dishonorable conduct, which includes, but is not limited to, the 

following: 

 

i. any conduct or practice contrary to recognized standards or ethics of the 

medical profession or any conduct or practice which does or might 

constitute a danger to the health or safety of a patient, Hospital personnel, 

or the public or any conduct, practice or condition which does or might 

impair a Practitioner's or Allied Health Professional's ability to safely and 

skillfully practice his/her profession; 

 

ii. Willful and consistent utilization of medical service or treatment which is 

inappropriate or unnecessary; and/or 

 

iii. Gross negligence, gross malpractice or repeated malpractice; 

 

h. Inadequate or substandard clinical performance; 

 

i. Disruptive behavior, as defined in Article XVII, The Medical Staff Code of 

Conduct; and/or 

 

j. Failure or refusal to abide by the terms of the current Bylaws or the Rules and 

Regulations and Policies of the Medical Staff and the Hospital. 

 

k. A restriction, limitation or probation of any sort is placed on a Medical Staff 

Appointee’s or Allied Health Professional’s license by any licensing or certifying 

agency or authority unless such action has resulted in automatic termination of the 

appointment of the Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional subject 

to Section C below. 

 

 

 

 

81/321



 

57 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

5. Initial Submission of Corrective Action and Initiation of Investigation: 

 

a. Corrective action against a Practitioner or Allied Health Professional may be 

requested by a member of the Medical Staff, the President, the Chief Executive 

Officer, or any member of the Medical Executive Committee or Governing 

Board. 

 

b. Requests for corrective action shall be made in writing and shall be supported by 

reference to the specific activities or conduct, which constitutes the grounds for 

the request.  Requests for corrective action shall be submitted to the Medical 

Executive Committee. 

 

c. The President shall promptly notify the Chief Executive Officer of all requests for 

corrective action received by himself/herself or the Medical Executive Committee 

and shall continue to keep the Chief Executive Officer fully informed of all 

activities in connection therewith. 

 
d. The President shall consult with the Medical Executive Committee to determine 

whether such a request for corrective action should be investigated.  In the event 

the Medical Executive Committee determines that the request for corrective 

action should be investigated, the President   shall promptly notify the accused 

individual(s) that an investigation has begun, unless, under extraordinary 

circumstances, in the Medical Executive Committee's and Chief Executive 

Officer's judgment, informing the individual would compromise the investigation, 

or disrupt the operation of the Hospital or Medical Staff. 

 

e. The initiation of an investigation hereunder shall not preclude the imposition of 

summary suspension under Section B below or automatic termination under 

Section C below at any time. 

 

6. Investigation: 

 

a. If a determination is made to investigate formally the necessity or advisability of 

corrective action against a particular Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health 

Professional, as the result of an informal investigation or otherwise, the 

investigation shall be deemed to be conducted by a body conducting Professional 

Review Activities and subject to the limitation from liability provided in Section I 

of Article XIV below. 

 

b. The Medical Executive Committee shall conduct such investigation itself or at its 

option, appoint an Investigation Committee to undertake the investigation.  

 

i. If the Medical Executive Committee elects to appoint an Investigative 

Committee, the Investigation Committee shall consist of the President, 

82/321



 

58 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

two (2) Medical Staff Appointees appointed by the President, and two (2) 

Medical Staff Appointees appointed by the Chief Executive Officer.  A 

designee of the Chair of the department to which the affected Medical 

Staff Appointee is assigned shall serve as a consultant to the Investigation 

Committee. The President shall serve as Chair of the Investigation 

Committee.  

 

ii. If an Investigative Committee undertakes the investigation, a written 

report of the investigation shall be forwarded to the Medical Executive 

Committee as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the investigation.  

 

c. The Medical Executive Committee or the Investigation Committee, as the case 

may be, shall have no voting members who are in direct economic competition 

with the Medical Staff Appointee who is the subject of the investigation.  In the 

event there are not a sufficient number of Medical Staff Appointees who meet 

such criteria, the President along with the Medical Executive Committee may 

appoint Physicians who are not affiliated with the Hospital who meet such 

criteria.  

 

d. The Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional shall be advised of the 

names of the members of the Medical Executive Committee, or if applicable, the 

names of the members of the appointed Investigation Committee within ten (10) 

days of appointment. If the Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional 

who is the subject of the investigation advises the President that he or she believes 

a member of the Medical Executive Committee or the Investigation Committee 

should be recused as being in direct economic competition with such Appointee, 

the President shall determine the merit of such contention and, if the contention is 

found to be correct, shall appoint a substitute to serve therein.  

 

e. An investigation shall be considered an administrative matter and not an 

adversarial proceeding. A Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional 

who is the subject of an investigation shall not be entitled to have legal counsel 

present during any meetings or discussions conducted pursuant to the 

investigation.  The Medical Staff Appointee shall have the opportunity to 

interview with the Medical Executive Committee before the decision is made on 

whether or not to recommend corrective action. 

 

f. At any time in the Medical Executive Committee’s discretion, but in any event, 

within twenty (20) working days after the receipt of the request for corrective 

action, unless such time is extended upon the written consent of the affected 

Appointee, the Medical Executive Committee shall determine whether or not to 

recommend corrective action.  The recommendation of the Medical Executive 

Committee may include, without limitation, the following: 

 

83/321



 

59 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

i. Recommending rejection of the request for corrective action; 

 

ii. Recommending a warning, a letter of admonition or a letter of reprimand; 

 

 

iii. Recommending terms of probation or individual requirements of consulta-

tion; 

 

iv. Recommending reduction, suspension or revocation of clinical privileges; 

 

v. Recommending a reduction of staff category or limitation of any staff 

prerogative directly related to the Practitioner's or Allied Health 

professional's delivery of patient care; or 

 

vi. Recommending suspension or revocation of staff membership. 

 

7. Procedural Rights: 

 

a. If the Medical Executive Committee has made a proposal to recommend an action 

for which the Medical Staff Appointee has the right to request a hearing, pursuant 

to these Bylaws, then notice shall be sent to the Medical Staff Appointee by the 

Medical Executive Committee by certified mail, return receipt requested.  Such 

notice shall advise the Medical Staff Appointee of his/her procedural rights 

pursuant to Article XIII, Section C. 

 

b. If the Medical Executive Committee proposes to recommend an action for which 

the Medical Staff Appointee has the right to request a hearing pursuant to these 

Bylaws, he/she may waive his or her right to a hearing at any time by notifying 

the Medical Executive Committee in writing.  Upon receipt of a waiver of rights 

to a hearing, or alternatively, upon the expiration of the 30 day period within 

which the Appointee may appeal the proposed recommendation but fails to do so, 

then the Medical Executive Committee shall submit the report and its 

recommendation, together with all supporting documentation, to the Governing 

Board in writing for final action.  In instances in which the Medical Staff 

Appointee affirmatively waives his or her right to a hearing, the Appointee shall 

be afforded with an opportunity to interview with the Governing Board before it 

acts upon the recommendation of the Medical Executive Committee.  The 

Medical Staff Appointee shall promptly be notified of the final action adopted by 

the Governing Board by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 

c. If the Medical Executive Committee proposes to recommend an action for which 

a right to a hearing is not required pursuant to these Bylaws (such as, for instance, 

with respect to any recommended action with respect to an Allied Health 

Professional), or alternatively, proposes to reject the request for corrective action, 

84/321



 

60 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

then the report and its recommendation, together with all supporting 

documentation, shall be forwarded to the Governing Board in writing for final 

action.  If the Governing Board determines to adopt such Medical Executive 

Committee recommendation, then the Chief Executive Officer shall provide 

notice of such final action in writing to the Medical Executive Committee.  The 

Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional shall promptly be notified 

of the final action by certified mail, return receipt requested.  If the Governing 

Board proposes to recommend an action that would modify the Medical 

Executive Committee’s recommendation in a manner that would provide a 

Medical Staff Appointee with the right to request a hearing pursuant to these 

Bylaws, then the Chief Executive Officer shall promptly notify the Medical 

Executive Committee in writing of the Governing Board’s proposed 

determination.  Notice shall be sent to the Medical Staff Appointee by the 

Medical Executive Committee by certified mail, return receipt requested advising 

the Medical Staff Appointee of the proposed action.  Such notice shall advise the 

Medical Staff Appointee of his/her procedural rights pursuant to Article XIII, 

Section C.   

 

d. Allied Health Professionals do not have procedural rights pursuant to Article XIII 

of these Bylaws but may pursue the Grievance procedures outlined in Article V, 

Section C of these Bylaws. 

 

Section B.    SUMMARY SUSPENSION 

 

1. Criteria for Initiation: 

 

a. Whenever a Practitioner's or Allied Health Professional's conduct requires that 

immediate action be taken to protect the life of any patient(s) or to reduce the 

substantial likelihood of immediate injury or damage to the health or safety of any 

patient, employee or other person present in the Hospital, either the Chair of the 

Medical Executive Committee, the Department Chair of any department with 

respect to Appointees in that department, the Executive Director or his/her 

designated representative, or the Executive Committee of the staff or Governing  

Board shall have the authority to summarily suspend the Medical Staff 

membership status of all or any portion of such clinical privileges of such 

Practitioner or Allied Health Professional for a period of time not to exceed 

fourteen (14) days.  Such summary suspension shall become effective immediate-

ly upon imposition, and the Chief Executive Officer shall promptly give special 

notice, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or hand-delivered with a signed 

receipt, of the suspension to the Practitioner or Allied Health Professional. 

 
b. In the event of any such suspension, the Practitioner's patients then in the 

Hospital, whose treatment by such Practitioner is terminated by the summary 

suspension, shall be assigned to another Practitioner by the Departmental Chair or 

85/321



 

61 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

the President of the Medical Staff.  The wishes of the patient shall be considered, 

where feasible, in choosing a substitute Practitioner. 

 

2. Medical Executive Committee Action: 

 

As soon as possible after such summary suspension, a meeting of the Medical Executive 

Committee shall be convened to review and consider the action taken.  The Medical 

Executive Committee may modify, continue or terminate the terms of the summary 

suspension. 

 

3. Procedural Rights: 

 

Unless the Medical Executive Committee immediately terminates the suspension and 

ceases all further corrective action, and the Governing Board upholds the Medical 

Executive Committee’s recommendation, the Practitioner or Allied Health Professional 

shall be entitled to the procedural rights as provided in Article XIII. 

 

Allied Health Professionals do not have procedural rights pursuant to Article XIII of 

these Bylaws but may pursue the Grievance procedures outlined in Article V, Section C 

of these Bylaws. 

 

4. Other Action 

 

If the Medical Executive Committee's action is to terminate the suspension and to cease 

all further corrective action, such action shall be transmitted immediately, together with 

all supporting documentation to the Governing Board.  The terms of the summary 

suspension as originally imposed shall remain in effect pending a final decision by the 

Governing Board, which shall be reviewed within seven (7) calendar days of the date the 

Medical Executive Committee provides its recommendation to the Governing Board. 

 

Section C.    AUTOMATIC SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION 

 

1. Termination Events.  An appointment to the Medical Staff, as well as all clinical 

privileges, shall be automatically terminated upon the occurrence of any of the following 

events: 

 

a. A Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional loses his/her license to 

practice his/her profession, or a restriction or condition of any sort shall be placed 

upon such license; provided, however, that the placing of an Appointee or Allied 

Health Professional on probation by the applicable licensing authority shall not be 

the basis for automatic termination alone without the imposition of restrictions or 

conditions which in some way restrict the Appointee’s or Allied Health 

Professional license or ability to practice medicine or to treat patients;  

 

86/321



 

62 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

b. Failure to report to the Hospital any restriction or condition imposed on or 

probation with respect to his/her license by the applicable licensing authority 

within thirty (30) days of the imposition of such restriction, condition or 

probation;  

 

c. A revocation or suspension of the right to prescribe or administer any controlled 

substances, to prescribe medications in any manner, or revocation or termination 

of the Appointee’s Drug Enforcement Administration Number; 

 

d. A Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional who has been requested 

to appear at a meeting of any committee of the Medical Staff or Hospital in order 

to discuss proposed corrective action shall fail to appear;  

 

e. Revocation or suspension of the right to bill Medicare, Medicaid, or any other 

federal or state healthcare program; or 

 

f. Exclusion from billing Medicare, Medicaid, or any other federal or state 

healthcare program.  

 

g. A Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional, who after the 

imposition of six (6) prior suspensions for failure to complete medical records 

during any Medical Staff year fails to complete medical records in a timely 

fashion pursuant to the Rules and Regulations and/or Policies of the Medical 

Staff; 

 

h. Failure to maintain the minimum professional liability insurance coverage as 

required by the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies, unless the 

Medical Staff Appointee or Allied Health Professional has timely requested a 

waiver or reduction of such coverage and is awaiting final action on such request;  

 

i. Failure to comply with the geographic proximity requirement set forth in required 

by the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies; or 

 

j. Failure to meet any certification or other qualification to maintain his/her 

appointment to the Medical Staff pursuant to the Bylaws, the Rules and 

Regulations, and/or the Policies. 

 

2. Automatic Suspension Events. 

 

An appointment to the Medical Staff, as well as all clinical privileges, shall be 

automatically suspended upon the occurrence of any of the following events: 

 

a. Failure to complete medical records in a timely fashion pursuant to the Rules and 

Regulations and/or Policies of the Medical Staff (except with respect to his her 

87/321



 

63 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

patients already in the Hospital and for emergency admissions for forty-eight (48) 

hours following suspension), his/her rights to admit patients and to consult with 

respect to patients, and his/her voting rights and office holding prerogatives shall, 

after 24 hours written warning of delinquency, be automatically suspended until 

medical records are completed. 

 

b. An Appointee’s or Allied Health Professional’s license, certification or other legal 

credentials are limited or restricted by the applicable authority in a manner that  

does restrict the Appointee’s or Allied Health Professional’s license or ability to 

practice medicine or to treat patients, then those clinical privileges or specified 

services that are within the scope of the limitation or restriction shall be 

immediately and automatically suspended, for at least the term of such limitation 

or restriction. 

 

c. When an Appointee’s or Allied Health Professional’s license, certification or 

other legal credentials are placed on probation by an applicable authority, and 

such probation does not restrict the Appointee’s license or ability to practice 

medicine or to treat patients, the Appointee’s voting and office-holding rights 

pursuant to these Bylaws shall be automatically suspended for at least the term of 

the probation. 

 

3. Reinstatement 

 

Reinstatement of a staff member or Allied Health Professional whose membership has 

been terminated pursuant to Article XII Section (C)(1)(g), or suspended in accordance 

with Article XII, Sections C (2) (b) and (c) revoked because of incomplete medical 

records as outlined in Article XI, Section D. and Article IV, Section B. shall be made 

only upon application, and all such applications shall be processed in the same manner as 

applications for original appointment. 

 

 

ARTICLE XIII 

HEARING PROCEDURE 

 

Section A.    LIMITATION 

 

No Applicant or Medical Staff Appointee shall be entitled as a matter of right to more than one 

(1) hearing with respect to the subject matter of any proposed adverse recommendation or action 

giving rise to a hearing right.  Allied Health Professionals do not have procedural rights pursuant 

to Article XIII of these Bylaws but may pursue the Grievance procedures outlined in Article V, 

Section C of these Bylaws. 

 

 

88/321



 

64 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Section B.    APPLICABILITY 

 

1. General 

 

This article shall apply to all hearings required by law or these Bylaws with respect to the 

rights, duties, and privileges of any Practitioner or Allied Health Professional.  The 

Wyoming Administrative Procedures Act applies to all proceedings conducted under 

these Bylaws and Rules and Regulations, but only to the extent the Wyoming 

Administrative Procedures Act is not consistent with these Bylaws and Rules and 

Regulations. 

 

2. Specific Rights. 

 

Unless waived, an Applicant or Appointee shall be entitled to a hearing if any 

professional review body proposes (i) to make a recommendation that any of the 

following adverse actions be taken with respect to him or her for reasons other than 

failure to meet minimum objective criteria specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws the 

Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies, or (ii) to take any of the following adverse 

actions without a prior adverse recommendation of any professional review body for 

reasons other than failure to meet minimum objective criteria specified in the Medical 

Staff Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies:  

 

a. Denial of a completed application for initial appointment or reappointment to the 

Medical Staff for any reason, except where: (i) the application does not meet the 

minimum objective requirements set forth in the Medical Staff Bylaws; or (ii) the 

Applicant is requesting clinical privileges in a department, subspecialty or service 

in which the number of Medical Staff Appointees has been limited in accordance 

with the Medical Staff Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies;  

 

b. Summary suspension or termination from the Medical Staff in accordance with 

the Medical Staff Bylaws; 

 

c. Revocation or termination of appointment to the Medical Staff, except where 

continued appointment to the Medical Staff was contingent upon the continuance 

of a contractual relationship with the Hospital;  

 

d. Denial of requested advancement or requested change in Medical Staff category, 

except for any denial resulting from failure to meet the minimum objective 

criteria for the requested category;  

 

e. Denial of requested advancement or requested change in Medical Staff category, 

except for any denial resulting from a failure to meet the minimum objective 

criteria for the requested category; 

 

89/321



 

65 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

f. Reduction in Medical Staff privileges, other than (i) a change from Active 

Physician Staff  for failure to meet the patient care requirements set forth in the 

Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies; (ii); or (iii) any other 

change in category resulting from a failure to meet the minimum objective criteria 

for a particular Medical Staff category;  

 

g. Denial of requested clinical privileges or requested change in clinical privileges, 

except where (i) the Applicant or Appointee is requesting clinical privileges in a 

department in which the number of Medical Staff Appointees has been limited by 

the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies, or (ii) the Applicant or 

Appointee fails to meet the minimum objective criteria for such privileges; 

 

h. Reduction in, restriction of, or failure to renew clinical privileges, other than (i) a 

temporary restriction in accordance with the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, 

and/or the Policies; or (ii) where such Staff Appointee no longer meets the 

minimum objective criteria for such privileges; 

 

i. Revocation or suspension (summary or otherwise) of clinical privileges, other 

than (i) a temporary suspension as provided by the Bylaws, the Rules and 

Regulations, and/or the Policies; or (ii) where such Appointee no longer meets the 

minimum objective criteria for such privileges; and/or 

 

j. Any other action or recommendation adversely affecting (as such term is defined 

in Section 431(1) of the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986) any 

Applicant or Appointee. 

 

3. Actions Not Giving Rise to Hearing Rights. 

 

A hearing right shall not have arisen in any of the following circumstances:  

 

a. The commencement of an investigation by the Medical Executive Committee or 

the appointment of an Investigation Committee and the commencement of an 

investigation by such Committee;  

 

b. The conduct of an investigation into any matter;  

 

c. The restriction or summary suspension of an Appointee’s clinical privileges for a 

period of no longer than fourteen (14) days while an investigation is pending;  

 

d. The formulation and presentation of any preliminary report of the Medical 

Executive Committee to the Chief Executive Officer or to the officers of the 

Medical Staff, or alternatively, the formulation and presentation of any 

preliminary report of any Investigation Committee to the Medical Executive 

Committee, the Chief Executive Officer, or to the officers of the Medical Staff;  

90/321



 

66 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

e. The making of a request or issuance of a directive to an Applicant or Appointee to 

appear at an interview or conference before the Credentials Committee, the 

Medical Executive Committee, any Investigation Committee, the President or 

Chief Executive Officer, the Governing Board or any other body in connection 

with any investigation prior to a proposed adverse recommendation or action;  

 

f. The denial of or refusal to accept an application for initial appointment or 

reappointment to the Medical Staff (i) where the application is incomplete; (ii) 

where the application reflects that the Applicant does not meet the minimum 

objective requirements for appointment or reappointment; or (iii) where the 

Applicant is requesting clinical privileges in a department, subspecialty or service 

in which the number of Medical Staff Appointees has been limited in accordance 

with the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or the Policies;  

 

g. The denial or revocation of temporary privileges in accordance with the Bylaws;  

 

h. The appointment of a newly-appointed Appointee to the Associate Physician 

Staff; 

 

i. Automatic termination or suspension of privileges as provided by Article XII, 

Section (C) of the Bylaws;  

 

j. The imposition of supervision or observation on an Appointee which supervision 

or observation does not restrict the clinical privileges of the Appointee or the 

delivery of professional services to patients;  

 

k. The issuance of a letter of warning, admonition or reprimand;  

 

l. Corrective counseling;  

 

m. A recommendation that an Appointee be directed to obtain retraining, additional 

training, or continuing education;  

 

n. The denial of a request for a waiver or reduction of the required minimum liability 

insurance coverage as provided in the Bylaws, the Rules and Regulations, and/or 

the Policies;  

 

o. Any change in Medical Staff category resulting from the failure of an Appointee 

to meet the minimum objective criteria for a specific category; or  

 

 

 

 

91/321



 

67 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

p. Any recommendation or action not adversely affecting (as such term is defined in 

Section 431(1) of the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986) any 

Applicant or Appointee, or which is not based upon a subjective determination of 

the professional competence or conduct of the Applicant or Medical Staff 

Appointee.  

 

Section C.    NOTICE 

 

1. Notification to Practitioners and Applicants and Appointees. 

 

Prior to sending a recommendation for corrective action to the Governing Board pursuant 

to Article XII Section (3)(f)(iii), (iv), (v), and (vi), or recommending or taking an adverse 

action against an Applicant or Appointee pursuant to Section (A) above, the Applicant or 

Appointee shall be notified, in writing, by the Medical Executive Committee, of the 

following: 

 

a. That adverse action has been proposed to be taken against the; Applicant or 

Appointee 

 

b. The reasons for the proposed action; 

 

c. That the  Applicant or Appointee has the right to request a hearing on the 

proposed action by notifying the Medical Executive Committee in writing via 

certified mail, return receipt requested,  of such intent within thirty (30) days of 

receipt of the notice; and 

 

d. The rights and procedures to be applied at any such hearing. 

 

2. Notice of Hearing 

 

If a timely request for a hearing is received, the Practitioner or Allied Health Professional 

shall be given written notice stating the following: 

 

a. The place, time and date of the hearing, which date shall not be less than thirty 

(30) days nor more than forty-five ( 45) days after the date of receipt of the notice 

of appeal from the Applicant or Appointee, unless otherwise mutually agreed by 

the Applicant or Appointee and the Hospital; 

 

b. A list of witnesses, if any, expected to testify on behalf of the Governing Board or 

decision-making entity; and 

 

c. The Applicant or Appointee’s rights at the hearing.  

 

 

92/321



 

68 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

3. Waiver of Hearing 

 

a. The Practitioner or Allied Health Professional may waive a hearing at any time by 

notifying the Medical Executive Committee, in writing.  

 

b. If a request for a hearing is not received within (30) days, or upon receipt of a 

written notice of waiver, the Applicant or Appointee shall be deemed to have 

waived all rights to a hearing.  

 

A waiver of a hearing right as to an adverse recommendation also waives a 

hearing right for the adverse action recommended. In the case of waiver of a 

hearing right as to a proposed adverse recommendation by the Credentials 

Committee, the Medical Executive Committee or an Investigation Committee 

pursuant to a request for corrective action, or with respect to any other Medical 

Staff body, the Governing Board shall be notified that the proposed 

recommendation is a final recommendation, and the Governing Board shall take 

final action on the recommendation. Such report and recommendation, together 

with all supporting documentation, shall be submitted to the Governing Board in 

writing for final action.  In instances in which a Medical Staff Appointee 

affirmatively waives his or her right to a hearing arising from a recommendation 

for corrective action, the Appointee shall be afforded with an opportunity to 

interview with the Governing Board before it acts upon the recommendation of 

the Medical Executive Committee.  The Applicant or Appointee shall promptly be 

notified of the final action adopted by the Governing Board by certified mail, 

return receipt requested 

 

c. The Practitioner shall have an opportunity to interview with the Governing Board 

before they act on the recommendation of the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

Section D.   CONDUCT OF HEARING 

 

1. Hearing Authority 

 

Any hearing held pursuant to this Article shall be held before either of the following: at 

the election of the involved Applicant or Appointee, which body shall be deemed a body 

conducting Professional Review Activities and subject to the limitation from liability 

provided in Section I of Article XIV below, or at the election of the involved 

Practitioner(s). 

 

a. A Hearing Officer appointed by the Governing Board, and approved by the 

Medical Executive Committee, who is not in direct economic competition with 

the  Applicant or Appointee involved; or 

 

93/321



 

69 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

b. A panel of three (3) individuals who are appointed by the President of the Medical 

Staff, and approved by the Governing Board, and are not in direct economic 

competition with the Applicant or Appointee involved. 

 
2. Rights of  Applicants and Appointees At the hearing, the Applicants and Appointees shall 

have the following rights:  

 

a. The right to be represented by an attorney or another person of the Applicant or 

Appointee’s choice; (provided, however, that such Applicant or Appointee shall 

promptly provide the Medical Executive Committee with written identification of 

the appointed attorney and such attorney’s contact information); 

 

b. The right to have a record of the proceedings made, copies of which may be 

obtained by the Applicants and Appointees upon payment of any reasonable 

charges associated with the preparation thereof; 

 

c. The right to call, examine and cross-examine witnesses;  

 

d. The right to present evidence determined to be relevant by the hearing authority 

regardless of its admissibility in a court of law; and 

 

e. The right to submit a written statement at the close of the hearing.  

 

3. Pre-Hearing Procedures and Requests for Information or Documents 

 

a. Not later than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled hearing date, the Applicant or 

Appointee will provide written notice to the Medical Executive Committee of the 

witnesses expected to testify on his or her behalf at the hearing. 

 

b. Not later than ten (10) days prior to the scheduled hearing date, each party will 

provide to the other party the documents upon which it expects to rely at the 

hearing.  Each party remains under a continuing obligation to provide the other 

party any documents identified after this date, which the party intends to 

introduce at the hearing.   

 

c. Upon request by either party to the hearing, the hearing officer may require the 

other party to provide information or produce documents in its/his/her possession, 

which the hearing authority concludes in good faith to be reasonably related to the 

subject of the hearing and not subject to any privilege prohibiting such disclosure. 

If the party who is directed to provide such information or documents fails 

without good cause to do so, the hearing authority shall have wide latitude in 

drawing adverse inferences against the party who failed to provide the 

information or documents requested. The party requesting the information or 

documents shall be given the opportunity to state to the hearing officer what such 

94/321



 

70 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

party believes the information or documents would have shown if it had been 

provided as directed by the hearing officer. Such statement, if any, shall be made 

in writing and included as part of the record. Additionally, if the information or 

documents requested and directed by the hearing officer to be provided are 

accessible by alternative means, the hearing officer may in his/her discretion 

direct that the party refusing to provide such information or documents pay the 

cost of obtaining the information by such alternative means.  

 

4. Order of Procedure 

 

To the extent practicable, the hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the following 

order of procedure: 

 

a. The Medical Executive Committee shall make an opening statement explaining its 

position and the evidence it proposes to offer in support of its position. 

 

b. The Applicant or Appointee shall make an opening statement briefly explaining 

their Professional's position and the evidence that he or she proposes to offer in 

support of his/her position. 

 

c. The Medical Executive Committee shall present its evidence, including witnesses 

and exhibits.  The Applicant or Appointee shall be entitled to cross-examine the 

witnesses. 

 

d. The Applicant or Appointee shall present his/her evidence, including witnesses 

and exhibits.  The Medical Executive Committee shall be entitled to cross-

examine the witnesses. 

 

e. The Medical Executive Committee may present rebuttal evidence. 

 

f. The Applicant or Appointee may present rebuttal evidence. 

 

g. The Hearing Authority may allow the taking of evidence out of order.  

 

h. Oral closing statements may be made in the same sequences as the presentation of 

evidence and the parties shall be afforded the right to present a written statement 

at the close of the hearing.   

 

5. Sequence of Presentation of evidence in Appointment, Re-Appointment or Advancement 

Cases 

 

Notwithstanding Article XIII, Section 3, whenever a hearing relates solely to (i) a denial 

of appointment or reappointment to the Medical Staff, (ii) requested clinical privileges or 

(iii) requested advancement in Medical Staff category or privileges, the Applicant or 

95/321



 

71 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Appointee shall present his or her evidence first. After the first party to present evidence 

has completed, the other party shall present his/her evidence. The initial party shall then 

have the opportunity to rebut the evidence presented by the opposing party. The hearing 

officer may in its discretion request or allow opening statements, which if made will be 

presented by the parties in the same sequence as provided for presentation of evidence.  

 

6. Administration of Oath 

 

All persons testifying at any hearing shall be administered the following oath or 

affirmation by a person lawfully entitled to administer oaths, to-wit: 

 

"Do you swear or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth in the 

matter now here pending?" 

 

7. Admissibility of Evidence 

 

a. The Applicant or Appointee shall be permitted to present evidence determined to 

be relevant by the hearing authority, regardless of its admissibility in a court of 

law. The hearing authority shall permit the admission of any evidence, which 

possesses probative value commonly accepted by reasonably prudent persons in 

the conduct of their affairs. The hearing authority shall have broad discretion in 

determining whether evidence proposed to be introduced is merely cumulative in 

nature and does not possess probative value in addition to the evidence already 

admitted, and shall exclude any such cumulative evidence. The hearing authority 

shall give effect to the rules of privilege recognized by law, to the same extent 

recognized in judicial proceedings, communications made or documents prepared 

in anticipation of the hearing provided for in these Bylaws. Objections to 

evidentiary offers may be made and shall be noted in the record. Subject to these 

requirements, when a hearing will be expedited and the interests of the parties will 

not be prejudiced substantially, any part of the evidence may be received in 

written form.  

 

b. Documentary evidence may be received in the form of originals or copies. 

Excerpts of documents may also be received, in the discretion of the hearing 

officer. Upon request, parties shall be given an opportunity to compare a copy 

with the original. Each party shall be responsible for properly identifying any 

exhibits sought to be introduced into evidence. If authenticity is challenged by the 

opposing party, such party shall also be responsible for proving the authenticity of 

the exhibit. The identification or authenticity of any exhibit shall be a matter for 

determination by the Hearing Officer.  

 

c. The Hearing Officer may, in the course of the proceedings, indicate that it will 

take official notice of any matters as to which it believes there can be no 

reasonable dispute. Official notice may also be taken of generally recognized 

96/321



 

72 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

technical or scientific facts within the Hearing Officer’s specialized knowledge. 

Upon challenge of the propriety of taking such official notice, the Hearing Officer 

shall set forth in writing and provide the participants to the hearing a brief 

statement of the basis for such official notice of technical or scientific facts. Any 

party to the hearing is entitled upon a request made within a reasonable time 

thereafter to be heard as to the propriety of taking official notice.  

 

8. Record of Proceedings 

 

In all hearings, the proceeding, including all testimony, shall be reported verbatim by 

stenographic, electronic or other appropriate means as determined by the Governing 

Board or hearing authority. 

 

9. Standard of Proof 

 

a. The Medical Executive Committee shall have the initial obligation to present 

evidence in support of the proposed adverse recommendation or action giving rise 

to the hearing, but the Applicant or Appointee shall thereafter have the burden of 

proving, by clear and convincing evidence, that the adverse recommendation or 

action lacks any factual basis or that such basis or the conclusions drawn 

therefrom are arbitrary, unreasonable, or capricious. 

 

b. Notwithstanding section (9)(a), whenever a hearing relates solely to a proposed 

denial of (i) appointment or re-appointment to the Medical Staff, (ii) requested 

clinical privileges or (iii) requested advancement in Medical Staff category or 

privileges, the Applicant or Appointee who requested the hearing shall have the 

burden of proving, by clear and convincing evidence, (i) that he or she meets the 

standards for appointment or reappointment to the Medical Staff or for the 

granting of the clinical privileges or Medical Staff privileges or category 

requested and (ii) that the denial of appointment or reappointment, requested 

clinical privileges or requested advancement would be arbitrary, unreasonable and 

capricious.  

 

10. Recommendations 

 

Upon completion of the hearing, or within a reasonable time thereafter, not exceeding 

fourteen (14) days, the hearing authority shall submit a written recommendation, 

including a statement of the basis for that recommendation, to be forwarded to the 

Medical Executive Committee and the Applicant or Appointee, or each party's attorney of 

record, as applicable, via certified mail, return receipt requested.  In addition, a copy of 

the written recommendation, together with the entire record, shall be promptly forwarded 

to the Governing Board by the hearing authority. 

 

 

97/321



 

73 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

11. Request for Appellate Review 

 

a. Any party to an original hearing may request an appellate review of the 

recommendations of the hearing authority to the Governing Board.  Requests for 

an appellate review must be made in writing by certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the Governing Board, with copies to the other parties involved in the 

hearing, within seven (7) days of receipt of the recommendation from the hearing 

authority. 

   

b. The failure of any party to request an appellate review in a timely manner shall 

constitute a waiver of the right to appellate review, and such written 

recommendation shall be submitted by the hearing authority to the Governing 

Board for a review pursuant to Section 12 of these Bylaws. 

 

12. Appeal to the Governing Board & Decision  

 

a. Upon receipt of a written notice of appeal, the Governing Board shall review and 

consider the hearing authority's recommendation and findings, and the whole 

record or any portion stipulated to by the parties presented during the hearing.  

The Governing Board shall afford all parties an opportunity to file written 

exceptions to and/or support for the written recommendation, shall permit all 

parties to file a brief.  At the determination of the Governing Board, the parties 

may be permitted to present oral arguments to the Governing Board. 

 

b. The Governing Board shall, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the request for 

an appeal of the recommendation of the hearing authority, make and enter a 

written decision upholding, modifying, or rejecting the hearing authority’s 

recommendation.  Such written decision shall include findings of fact and 

conclusions of law, based upon the evidence adduced from the hearing.  The 

parties shall be notified in writing of the decision, and a copy of the final decision, 

findings of fact and conclusions of law shall be delivered forthwith to each party 

or the party's attorney of record by certified mail, return receipt requested.   

 

13. Governing Board Action When the Hearing Authority’s Decision is not Subject to 

Appeal. 

 

 Where the parties do not provide notice of appeal of the Hearing Authority’s 

recommendation, the Governing Board shall, within thirty (30) days after receipt of the 

recommendation of the hearing authority, review and consider the Hearing Authority's 

recommendation and findings, the whole record, and shall thereafter make and enter a 

written decision upholding, modifying, or rejecting the Hearing Authority’s 

recommendation.  Such written decision shall include findings of fact and conclusions of 

law, based upon the evidence adduced from the hearing.  The parties shall be notified in  

98/321



 

74 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 writing of the final decision, and a copy of the decision, findings of fact and conclusions 

of law shall be delivered forthwith to each party or the party's attorney of record by 

certified mail, return receipt requested.   

 

14. Reports to the National Practitioner Data Bank 

 

The Hospital or its authorized representative shall report adverse actions, as that term is 

defined in the Healthcare Quality Improvement Act of 1986, as amended from time-to-

time to the National Practitioner Data Bank, as required by law.  

 

 

ARTICLE XIV 

IMMUNITY 

 

Section A.    IMMUNITY FROM LIABILITY 

 

1. Persons Protected.   

 

By applying for and/or accepting appointment to the Medical Staff and by applying 

for, accepting and/or exercising clinical privileges within the Hospital, each Applicant 

and Medical Staff Appointee extends absolute immunity to, and releases from all 

claims, damages, and liability whatsoever: 

 

a. The Hospital and any representative thereof for any action taken or statement or 

recommendation made by any Hospital representative within the scope of his/her 

duties as a representative of the Hospital in compliance with the Bylaws, Rules 

and Regulations, or Policies, including disclosures made to other healthcare 

entities pursuant to the Bylaws. 

 

b. Any third party for releasing or disclosing information, including otherwise 

privileged or confidential information, to any representative of the Hospital 

concerning any former or current Applicant or Medical Staff Appointee unless 

such information is false and the third party providing it knew it was false. 

 

2. Acts Covered.   

 

The immunity provided by the Bylaws shall apply to all acts, communications, 

reports, recommendations, or disclosures performed or made in connection with the 

Hospital’s activities, including, but not limited to: 

 

a. Applications for appointment and/or clinical privileges;  

 

b. Periodic reappraisals for reappointment or for changes in clinical privileges; 

 

99/321



 

75 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

c. corrective action; 

 

d. Hearings and appellate reviews; 

 

e. Patient care audits; 

 

f. Medical care evaluations; 

 

g. Utilization reviews; 

 

h. Other Hospital, staff, department, service, committee and subcommittee activities 

related to monitoring and maintaining quality patient care and appropriate 

professional conduct; 

 

i. Matters or inquiries concerning the credentials, or request for credentials, of any 

or Medical Staff Appointee or Applicant; 

 

j. Matters directly or indirectly affecting patient care or the efficient operation of the 

Hospital; and 

 

k. Reports to the National Practitioner Data Bank. 

 

Section B.    FOR ACTION TAKEN 

 

In addition to the foregoing, no representative of the Hospital or the Medical Staff  shall be liable 

to a Practitioner or Allied Health Professional  for damages or other relief for any action taken, 

or statement or recommendation made within the scope of his/her duties as a representative of 

the Hospital or of the Medical Staff, if such representative acts in good faith and without malice 

in the reasonable belief that such acts are in the furtherance of quality health care, and after a 

reasonable effort, under the circumstances, to ascertain the truthfulness of the facts and in the 

reasonable belief that the action, statement or recommendation is warranted by such facts.  Truth 

shall be an absolute defense in all circumstances. 

 

Section C.    FOR PROVIDING INFORMATION 

 

In addition to the foregoing, No representative of the Hospital or Medical Staff and no third party 

shall be liable to a Practitioner or Allied Health Professional for damages or other relief by 

reason of providing information, including otherwise privileged or confidential information, to a 

representative of the Hospital or Medical Staff or to any other healthcare facility or organization 

of health professionals, concerning a Practitioner or Allied Health Professional who is, or has 

been an Applicant to, or a member of, the Medical Staff, or who did, or does, exercise clinical 

privileges or provide specified services at the Hospital, provided that such representative or third  

 

 

100/321



 

76 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

party acts in good faith and without malice and provided further that such information is related 

to the performance of the duties and functions of the recipient and is reported in a factual 

manner. 

 

Section D.    REVIEW ACTIVITY IMMUNITIES 

 

The Governing Board, any committees of the Medical Staff and/or of the Governing Board, the 

President, an Investigating Committee, Hearing Officer, or any other person, entity, or body who 

conducts Professional Review Activities and any individuals within the Hospital authorized to 

conduct Professional Review Activities, hereby constitute themselves as Professional Review 

Bodies as defined in the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986, as amended from time-

to-time, and as defined pursuant to Wyoming law. Each Professional Review Body hereby 

claims all privileges and immunities afforded to it by said federal and state statutes. Any action 

taken by a Professional Review Body pursuant to these Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations and 

the Policies shall be in the reasonable belief that it is in furtherance of quality healthcare 

(including the provision of care in a manner that is not disruptive to the delivery of quality 

medical care at the Hospital) only after a reasonable effort has been made to obtain the true facts 

of the matter, after adequate notice and hearing procedures are afforded to any Applicant or 

Medical Staff Appointee, and only in the reasonable belief that the action is warranted by the 

facts known after a reasonable effort has been made to obtain the facts. 

 

 

ARTICLE XVIII 

AMENDMENTS TO THE BYLAWS 

 

Section A.    AMENDMENT UPON INITIATION OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 

 

A proposed amendment to these Bylaws may be made by an Active or Associate Medical Staff 

Appointee.  Any such proposed amendment shall be referred to the Bylaws Committee, which 

shall report on it at the next regular meeting of the Medical Executive Committee or at a special 

meeting called for such purpose.  In addition to the process set forth above, the Medical Staff 

may directly consider a proposed amendment to these Bylaws upon the written request of at least 

twenty-five (25%) of the Medical Staff.  Prior to a vote on any proposed amendment, it will be 

communicated to the Medical Executive Committee for consideration.  Amendments so adopted 

shall be effective when approved by the Governing Board. The proposed amendment shall be 

mailed to the Medical Staff at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the Medical Staff meeting 

at which it is to be voted upon.  To be adopted, an amendment shall require a two-thirds (2/3) 

vote of the active and associate Physician staff physically present.  Amendments so made shall 

be effective when approved by the Governing Board.  If an amendment is initiated by the 

Medical Executive Committee, they shall be required to follow the same process as above.   

 

101/321



 

77 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

Section B.    AMENDMENT UPON INITIATION BY GOVERNING BOARD OR CHIEF 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

These Bylaws may be amended by the Governing Board at any regular or special meeting of the 

Governing Board. A copy of each proposed amendment to these Medical Staff Bylaws shall be 

distributed to each Medical Staff Member at least thirty (30) days in advance of the meeting at 

which the Governing Board proposes to take final action thereon. Any amendments approved by 

the Governing Board also shall require approval by the Medical Staff as provided herein. The 

Governing Board and Chief Executive Officer shall also have the right to propose amendments 

to the Medical Staff Bylaws, they shall be required to follow the same process above and are 

subject to approval by both the Medical Executive Committee and/or the Medical Staff, as set 

forth above, and the Governing Board.  

 

 

ARTICLE XV 

RULES, AND REGULATIONS AND POLICIES 

 

Section A.    CREATION OF RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES 

 

1. The Medical Staff shall, from time to time, adopt, or assure the adoption of, such Rules 

and Regulations and/or Policies as may be necessary to implement more specifically the 

general principles found within these Bylaws, subject to the approval of the Governing 

Board.  Such Rules and Regulations and Policies shall relate to the proper conduct of 

Medical Staff activities as well as embody the level of practice that is to be required of 

each Medical Staff Appointee in the Hospital.  Such Rules and Regulations and Policies 

shall be incorporated and made a part of these Bylaws herein, as amended.   

 

2. The Medical Staff hereby delegates to the Medical Executive Committee the authority to 

propose and adopt Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff, subject to the limitations 

set forth herein.  The Medical Executive Committee will furnish to all members of the 

Medical Staff, for review and comment, a written copy of any proposed Rule or 

Regulation, or any amendment thereto, at least ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which 

such matter will be considered; provided, however, in the event there is a documented 

need for an urgent amendment to a Rule or Regulation to comply with law or regulation, 

the Medical Executive Committee may provisionally adopt, and the Governing Board 

may provisionally approve, such urgent amendment without prior notification to the 

Medical Staff.  In such cases, the Medical Staff will be immediately notified by the 

Medical Executive Committee and the Medical Staff shall have the opportunity for 

retrospective review of and comment on the provisional amendment.   

 

3. The Medical Staff hereby delegates to the Medical Executive Committee the authority to 

propose and adopt Policies for the Medical Staff, subject to the limitations set forth 

102/321



 

78 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

herein. The Medical Executive Committee shall notify the Medical Staff of its approval 

of a Policy or any amendment thereto.   

 

Section B.    APPROVAL OF RULES, REGULATIONS, AND POLICIES 

 

1. The approval of any Rule and Regulation or Policy shall be submitted to a vote of the 

Medical Staff at the written request of at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the Medical 

Staff, received within thirty (30) days following approval of such Rule and Regulation or 

Policy, or any amendment thereto, by the Medical Executive Committee.  Such matter 

shall be considered at a special meeting of the Medical Staff.   

 

2. Notwithstanding and in addition to the foregoing, the Medical Staff may directly adopt a 

Rule and Regulation or Policy, or any amendment thereto, at any annual or special 

meeting, to the extent such action is requested in writing by at least twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the Medical Staff.  Notice of such proposed Medical Staff action shall be given 

to the Medical Executive Committee by the President at least ten (10) days prior to the 

meeting at which such matter will be considered.  Such changes shall become effective 

when approved by the Governing Board.   

 

3. The Governing Board shall also have the right to propose changes to such Rules and 

Regulations or Policies, subject to approval by both the Medical Executive Committee 

and/or the Medical Staff, as set forth above, and the Governing Board. 

 

 

BYLAWS 

 

These Bylaws, together with the appended Rules and Regulations, shall be adopted at any regular 

or special meeting of the active and associate Physician staff, shall replace any previous Bylaws, 

Rules and Regulations and shall become effective when approved by the Governing Board of the 

Hospital. 

 

ARTICLE XVI 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCEDURES BETWEEN THE MEDICAL STAFF AND 

THE MEDICAL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

  

 

To the extent a conflict arises between at least 25% of the Active Medical Staff and the Medical 

Executive Committee on issues, including, but not limited to, proposed adoption of or 

amendments to these Bylaws, Rules, Regulations, or Policies, the following dispute resolution 

process shall be followed as determined by the President and Vice President before either the 

Medical Executive Committee or the Medical Staff takes an action contrary to an action, 

proposed action, or position of the other group: 

 

 

103/321



 

79 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

1. The President shall appoint at least two Medical Executive Committee members to 

represent the Medical Executive Committee.  The Medical Staff shall select two at large 

Active Medical Staff members to represent the Medical Staff in connection with the 

dispute. 

 

2. Such appointed representatives shall meet in good faith to attempt to resolve the dispute. 

 

3. In the event the dispute has not been resolved after at least two meetings of the 

representatives over at least thirty (30) days, the dispute resolution process will terminate, 

and the Medical Executive Committee and the Medical Staff may proceed to take such 

actions as are otherwise authorized by these Bylaws, Rules, Regulations, and Policies.  

 

 

ARTICLE XVII 

MEDICAL STAFF CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

PURPOSE 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County’s (MHSC) vision is to improve the health of its 

patients and the wellbeing of the community by building relationships, exceeding expectations, 

and enhancing human lives.  This vision may be achieved by setting high standards for safety 

and quality of patient care.  The MHSC Medical Staff recognizes that safety and quality of 

patient care depend on teamwork, communication, and collaboration.  The Medical Staff further 

recognizes that certain behaviors tend to undermine the culture of patient safety and quality that 

MHSC is committed to, specifically intimidating and disruptive behaviors by members of the 

health care team that could potentially contribute to medical errors, poor patient satisfaction, 

preventable adverse outcomes, and increased costs. 

 

This Code of Conduct is intended to: 

 

 Define personal and professional standards of conduct and acceptable behavior for all 

staff while engaged in business or service with MHSC; 

 

 Prohibit intimidating and disruptive behaviors that can foster medical errors, contribute to 

poor patient care,   preventable adverse outcomes, and increase costs; and 

 

 Encourage and promote teamwork, communication and a collaborative work 

environment. 

 

In furtherance of this purpose, acts of retribution or consequence to any Medical Staff member or 

employee who carries out the standards of, or reports violations of this Code of Conduct will not 

be tolerated. Making knowingly frivolous, false or malicious allegations of violations of the 

Code of Conduct, however, has the potential to undermine trust and morale in the workplace.  

 

104/321



 

80 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

Disciplinary action under the relevant MHSC policy, Bylaws, or Code of Conduct may be taken 

against anyone found to have made allegations of violations that are knowingly frivolous, false 

or malicious. 

 

 

STANDARDS OF CONDUCT AND PROFESSIONALISM 

 

I.  APPROPRIATE BEHAVIOR. 

 

All Medical Staff are expected and required to engage in Appropriate Behaviors that foster 

collegial and collaborative relationships, support a health care and workplace environment that 

improves patient quality care, fosters a safety culture, and be professional, courteous and 

respectful to all individuals. Appropriate Behavior is a condition of membership, 

credentialing and privileging of the Medical Staff. 
  

Below is a list of Appropriate Behaviors, however, this list is not intended to be all-inclusive: 

 

 Treat all persons, including patients, families, visitors, employees, trainees, 

students, volunteers, trustees, and healthcare professionals with respect, courtesy, 

caring, dignity and a sense of fairness.  

 Communicate openly, respectfully and directly with team members, referring 

providers, patients, and families in order to promote mutual trust and 

understanding and optimize health services.  

 Encourage, support and respect the right and responsibility of all individuals to 

assert themselves to enhance patient safety and the quality of care.  

 Resolve conflicts in a respectful, non-threatening, constructive and private 

manner. (Wait until emotions have cooled).  

 Demonstrate sensitivity and acceptance of diverse backgrounds (e.g., gender, 

race, age, disability, nationality, sexual orientation, religion, etc.). 

 Adhere to high ethical standards in patient care, teaching, and conducting 

research. 

 Respect the privacy and confidentiality of all individuals.   

 Promptly report adverse events and potential safety hazards and encourage 

colleagues to do the same.  

 Willingly participate in, cooperate with and contribute to briefings, debriefings, 

and investigations of adverse  events.  

 Uphold the Policies of MHSC and the Medical Staff.  

 

105/321



 

81 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 Utilize all MHSC facilities, equipment, and property responsibly and 

appropriately.  

 Be fit for duty during work time, including on-call responsibilities.  

 

II. DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOR. 

 

Medical Staff are expected not to engage in Disruptive Behavior. Disruptive Behavior is 

unacceptable and will not be tolerated.  

 

Disruptive behavior is a style of interaction with Physicians, Hospital personnel, patients, family 

members, or others that interfere with patient care, causes distress among other staff, and affects 

the overall morale and the work environment.  

 

Disruptive Behavior can be either verbal or physical (e.g., personally directed verbal outbursts, 

profanity, condescending attitude, refusal to participate in assigned patient care activities, 

physical threats, blaming / name-calling, or throwing objects, etc.), and is accompanied by strong 

emotion. It includes actions that are detrimental to the quality of patient care, disruptive to 

departmental or facility operations, or in violation of established standards, policies, 

Bylaws, federal or state law, or local ordinances.  
 

Examples of Disruptive Behavior include, but are not limited to: 

 

 Threatening or abusive language directed at patients, visitors, nurses, Physicians, 

Hospital personnel, leadership, or trustees (e.g., belittling, berating, and/or non-

constructive criticism that intimidates, undermines confidence, or implies 

incompetence without justification). 

 Verbal tirades, with or without obscene/abusive language. 

 Use of profanity or other offensive language directed at an individual. 

 Degrading or demeaning comments regarding patients, families, nurses, 

Physicians, Hospital personnel, the quality of care provided by the Hospital, or 

MHSC leadership or trustees. 

 Inappropriate use of cell phones, computers, music players, or other electronic 

devices in a manner that could be detrimental to patient care. 

 Inappropriate physical contact or actions that are threatening or intimidating to 

another individual, with or without injury (e.g., throwing equipment or supplies at 

or near others). 

 Making or posting derogatory or abusive signs, posters, cartoons, or drawings. 

 Disorderly conduct disrupting the performance of assigned functions or 

department operations.  

106/321



 

82 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 Discrimination based on any status protected by law or MHSC policy (e.g., race, 

color,   national origin, sex, age, religion, disability, status as a protected veteran, 

sexual orientation, gender identity/gender expression, etc.).  

 Harassment of any type including sexual harassment, which is defined as verbal 

and/or physical conduct of a sexual nature that is unwelcome and offensive to 

those individuals who are subjected to it or who witness it. 

 Mental / Physical Impairment (e.g., alcohol/drug use, mental impairment that 

prevents successful completion of job duties, etc.).  

 Disruption of Hospital performance review functions (e.g., peer review, 

committee meetings, event reporting, privileging determinations). 

 Intentional and overt Disruption of Hospital meetings. 

 

VIOLATIONS OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

All members of the Medical Staff are expected to adhere to this Code of Conduct, to hold others 

to the same standards, and appropriately address concerns. Disruptive, intimidating, 

inappropriate, or unacceptable behaviors shall be reported to the appropriate departmental, 

administrative, or human resources representative, pursuant to MHSC policies and Medical Staff 

Bylaws. All reports of Disruptive Behavior will be addressed.   

 

In evaluating Disruptive Behavior, consideration will be given to whether the behavior was a 

“Disruptive Episode” or the behavior of a truly “Disruptive Practitioner”. Disruptive Episodes 

are evidenced by infrequent occurrences and behavior out of character for the Practitioner. 

Typically, the Practitioner recognizes and takes responsibility for his or her unacceptable 

behavior. A Practitioner who is found to engage in a Disruptive Episode and has not displayed 

Disruptive Behavior previously should not be treated in the same manner as a Physician who is 

known to have frequent or multiple Disruptive Episodes. Disruptive Episodes will be addressed 

by the President of the Medical Staff, who will discuss the incident with the staff member in a 

non-threatening manner.  The discussion will be followed up and documented with a letter 

summarizing the conversation.  MEC will be responsible for determining if formal corrective 

action will be pursued for a disruptive episode. 

 

A Disruptive Practitioner is a more serious matter and is evidenced after the inception of this 

document by frequent occurrences and behavior that is typical for the Practitioner based on 

repeat documentation of summary letters and as determined by MEC. There will be “zero 

tolerance” for Disruptive Practitioners who direct disruptive, intimidating, inappropriate, or 

unacceptable behavior at any specific individual associated with MHSC (i.e. patients, family 

members, Physicians, nurses, staff, volunteers, managers, executives, trustees or anyone else).  

 

Any report of Disruptive Behavior will be sufficient grounds for immediate action by the 

President of the Medical Staff, the Medical Executive Committee or the Chief Executive Officer, 

as specified in the Medical Staff Bylaws or other applicable policies. A progressive process of 

107/321



 

83 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

rehabilitation/discipline is recommended for most situations.  However, it is not required if it is 

believed that more immediate action is needed based upon the severity of a particular incident. In 

addressing concerns or reports of a violation, the corrective actions outlined in MHSC policies 

and Medical Staff Bylaws will be followed. Generally, the following process is suggested but not 

required: 

 

1. The President of the Medical Staff will discuss the incident with the staff member in a 

non-threatening manner.  The discussion will be followed up and documented with a 

letter summarizing the conversation. MEC will be responsible for determining if formal 

corrective action will be pursued for a disruptive episode. 

 

2. Should the staff member continue to engage in Disruptive Behavior, the staff member 

would be required to meet with the Medical Executive Committee and to sign an 

agreement specifically defining the Disruptive Behavior and outlining the ramifications 

of future disruptive behavior. The discussion will be followed up and documented with a 

letter summarizing the conversation and agreement. 

 

3. Should Disruptive Behavior continue, any member of the Medical Staff, the Chief 

Executive Officer of the Hospital, or any member of the Governing Board may make a 

request for corrective action to the Medical Executive Committee to intervene with 

possible action, which may include, without limitation, further investigation, limitation, 

suspension, or termination of privileges according to the provisions of Article XII of the 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 

AGREEMENT 

Every member of the MHSC Medical Staff must sign and abide by this Code of Conduct. 

Refusal or failure to comply with the Code of Conduct may result in the immediate and 

indefinite suspension of privileges at MHSC as per the Medical Staff Bylaws. 

 

MEDICAL STAFF CODE OF CONDUCT 

AGREEMENT FORM 

 

The Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) Medical Staff has adopted a Code of 

Conduct, a copy of which is attached. The purpose of the policy is to identify unacceptable 

behavior and the consequences of participating in unacceptable behavior. I understand that my 

refusal or failure to comply with the Code of Conduct may result in the immediate and indefinite 

suspension of my privileges at MHSC. 

 

I understand that by failing to sign this Agreement Form indicating my acceptance and 

agreement to abide by the Code of Conduct, I am choosing to immediately relinquish my 

clinical privileges at MHSC. 

 

I understand my obligations under the MHSC Medical Staff Code of Conduct and hereby agree 

to abide by the same during my appointment to the MHSC Medical Staff.  

108/321



 

84 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

 

 

ARTICLE XX 

PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 

 

Except where it may conflict with the procedure stated within these Bylaws, all meetings of the 

Medical Staff, its departments, sections, and committees shall be governed in its procedures by 

the most recent edition of Robert's Rules of Order, as Revised. 

 

 

ARTICLE XXI 

GOVERNING LAW 

 

These Bylaws shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the Health Care Quality 

Improvement Act of 1986, as amended from time-to-time, and the laws of the State of Wyoming.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

109/321



 

85 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Bylaws Approved 08/07/2019 

 

ADOPTION AND APPROVAL 

 

 

Approved and adopted by the Medical Staff of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County on this 

25th day of June 2019. 

 

                                                                          

              

Lawrence Lauridsen, DO     Israel Stewart, DO 

President of the Medical Staff     Secretary of the Medical Staff 

 

 

 

Approved by the Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County on this 7th Day 

of August 2019. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                          

Taylor Jones       Ed Tardoni 

President, MHSC Board of Trustees    Secretary, MHSC Board of Trustees  

 

110/321



 

1 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

MEDICAL STAFF RULES & REGULATIONS 
 

Section I. INTRODUCTION 

 

A. Rules and Regulations 

 

1. Establishment and Amendment: 

 

Rules and Regulations shall be established to control the conduct of work of the medical 

staff as a whole.  Authority for establishing and changing rules, regulations or any 

standing orders, is stated in the Bylaws.   

 

2. Purpose: 

 

Rules shall be established which refer to the medical/administrative conduct of staff work 

in general as well as to specific areas of medical service or clinical activity.  These may 

be recommended by any department or committee of the medical staff and shall require 

approval by the Medical Executive Committee before approval of the governing body. 

 

3. Approval: 

 

No regulations, rules or orders, which in any way limit or conflict with anything in the 

Hospital or medical staff Bylaws, or which are in conflict with any known law or 

regulation thereof, may be approved. 

 

Section II.  PROCEDURE FOR APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT  

 

A. Medical Staff Appointment  

  

1. Application: 

 

Each application for appointment to the medical staff shall be signed by the applicant, 

and shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the governing body after consultation 

with the Medical Executive Committee.  The application shall require detailed 

information concerning the applicant's professional qualifications including: 

 

a. The school and date of degree; 

 

b. All postdoctoral training programs with dates of successful completion; 

 

c. All special training programs with dates of successful completion; 

 

d. The granting of state licenses, their dates, and history of adverse actions; 

 

e. The granting of staff membership and privileges at other institutions; 

111/321



 

2 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

f. A statement specifying any circumstances and judgments and/or settlements of 

any previous or pending malpractice actions involving the Practitioner; 

 

g. The names of three medical or healthcare professionals who have personal 

knowledge of the applicant’s current clinical abilities, ethical character, health 

status and ability to work cooperatively with others and who will provide specific 

written comments on these matters.  The named individuals must have acquired 

the requisite knowledge through recent observation of professional practice over a 

reasonable period of time and preferably have a current affiliation with an acute 

care institution and at least one must be from a colleague in the applicant's 

specialty.  The references may not be relatives or have any recently initiated, or 

impending, professional partnership/financial associations with the applicant. 

 

h. A statement that the Practitioner has received or been given access to, and read 

the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff and that he/she agrees to 

be bound by the terms thereof if he/she is granted membership and/or clinical 

privileges and to be bound by the terms thereof without regard to whether or not 

he/she is granted membership and/or privileges in all matters relating to 

consideration of his/her application; 

 

i. Information as to whether any of the following has ever been, or are in the process 

of being, denied, revoked, suspended, reduced, not renewed or voluntarily 

relinquished: 

 

(1) Staff membership status or privileges at any other Hospital or healthcare  

institution; 

 

(2) Membership/fellowship in local, state or national professional 

organizations; 

 

(3) Specialty board certification; 

 

(4) License to practice any profession in any jurisdiction;  

  

(5) Drug enforcement agency or other controlled substances registration; 

  

  j. A statement of experience during the most recent five (5) years, including a 

consent to the release of information by his/her present and past malpractice 

insurance carrier(s); 

 

k. A statement whereby the Practitioner agrees that, when an adverse ruling is made 

with respect to his/her staff membership, staff status and/or privileges, he/she will 

resort to the administrative remedies afforded by the medical staff Bylaws rules & 

regulation before resorting to formal legal action; 

 

112/321



 

3 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

l. Evidence of current, adequate professional liability insurance as determined by 

the governing body; and 

 

m. A statement regarding physical/mental health status, including alcohol abuse 

and/or drug dependency. 

 

n. Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements as may be 

imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable accreditation agencies and as 

required by the Wyoming Board of Medicine to maintain licensure. 

  

2. Responsibility of the Applicant 

 

The Practitioner shall have the burden of producing adequate information for a proper 

evaluation of his/her competence, character, ethics, health status and other qualifications, 

and for resolving any doubts about such qualifications. Any material misrepresentation 

in, or omission from, the application and related documents, shall be grounds for denial 

of privileges or corrective action regardless of when the misrepresentation or omission is 

discovered.  

 

3. Applicant Authorization and Consent 

 

By applying for appointment to the medical staff, each Practitioner thereby signifies: 

 

a. His/her willingness to appear for interviews in regard to his/her application; 

 

b. His/her authorization for the Hospital to consult with members of medical staffs 

of other Hospitals with which the Practitioner has been associated and with others 

who may have information bearing on his/her competence, character, health status 

and ethical qualifications; 

 

c. His/her consent to the Hospital's inspection of all records and documents that may 

be material to an evaluation of his/her professional qualifications and competence 

to carry out the clinical privileges he/she requests as well as his/her moral and 

ethical qualifications for medical staff membership; 

 

d. His/her release from any liability of all representatives of the Hospital and its 

medical staff for their acts performed in good faith and without malice in 

connection with evaluating the Practitioner and his/her credentials; and 

 

e. His/her release from any liability all individuals and organizations who provide 

information to the Hospital in good faith and without malice concerning the 

Practitioner's competence, ethics, character, health status and other qualifications 

for medical staff appointment and clinical privileges including otherwise 

privileged or confidential information. 

 

 

113/321



 

4 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

4. Discrimination 

 

No considerations of sex, race, creed and/or national origin may be used in the granting 

or denying of medical staff membership or clinical privileges. 

 

5. Responsibilities of the Medical Staff Services Manager 

 

a. The completed application shall be submitted to the Hospital's Medical Staff 

Services Manager.  The Medical Staff Services Manager shall be responsible to 

review the application for veracity. The credentialing process requires that the 

Hospital verifies in writing and from the primary source whenever feasible the 

items listed below. Initiation of the verification process of at least the following 

items will begin within five (5) working days of receipt of a completed 

application: 

 

(1) Degree conferred, when and the institution;  

 

(2) Completion of training programs, specialty, date of completion; 

 

(3) The granting of state licenses, dates, and history of adverse action; 

 

(4) The granting of staff membership and privileges at other institutions and 

adverse actions; 

 

(5) Specialty board certification; 

 

(6) Querying the National Practitioner Data Bank;   

 

(7) At least three references from persons who can provide adequate 

references pertaining to the Practitioner's professional competence and 

ethical character; and  

 

(8) Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements as may 

be imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable accreditation agencies. 

 

b. Upon completion of the verification, the Executive Director will forward the 

application to the appropriate staff departmental chairman. 

 

 6. Responsibilities of Departmental Chairman  

 

The departmental chairman or his/her designated representative, to which the application 

is forwarded, will review the application, and within ten (10) working days make a 

written report to the Credentials Committee on the qualifications of the Practitioner for 

admission to the medical staff as well as for specific privileges requested.  In making this 

report, the departmental chairman or his/her designated representative shall examine 

evidence of the character, professional competence, qualifications, health status and 

114/321



 

5 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

ethical standing of the Practitioner, and shall determine, through information contained in 

the references given and from other sources available to him/her whether the Practitioner 

has established and meets all of the necessary qualifications for the medical staff category 

and the clinical privileges requested by him/her. 

 

7. Responsibilities of the Credentials Committee 

 

a. The Credentials Committee shall review the Practitioner's application for staff 

membership as well as for specific clinical privileges along with the report of the 

departmental chairman or his/her representative at its first meeting following receipt 

of all these materials/ documents.   

 

b. Following the review of the Practitioner's application and report of the department 

chairman or his/her designated representative, the Credentials Committee shall make 

a recommendation with respect to the Practitioner's appointment and/or clinical 

privileges. The Credentials Committee shall review the Chair’s recommendation, and 

either approve and adopt the Chair’s recommendation, in whole, or in part, or 

formulate its own written recommendation, and transmit the recommendation to the 

Medical Executive Committee.   The Medical Executive Committee will review and 

comment, and then forward the credentials file to the Governing Body for final 

action. 

 

8. Adverse Recommendation of the Credentials Committee 

 

When the recommendation of the Credentials Committee is adverse to the Practitioner 

either in respect to the appointment or clinical privileges, the Medical Executive 

Committee shall be so advised and the Executive Director shall promptly notify the 

applicant by certified mail, return receipt requested.  No such adverse recommendation 

may be forwarded to the governing body until after the applicant has exercised, or has 

been deemed to have waived, his/her rights to a hearing as provided by Article XIII of the 

Bylaws. 

 

9. Favorable Recommendation of Credentials Committee 

 

At its next regular meeting after receipt of a favorable recommendation by the 

Credentials Committee, along with comments from the Medical Executive Committee, 

the governing body shall act in the matter.  If the governing body's decision is adverse to 

the Practitioner in respect to either appointment or clinical privileges, the Executive 

Director shall promptly notify him/her of such adverse decision by certified mail, return 

receipt requested, and such adverse decision shall be held in abeyance until the applicant 

has exercised, or has been deemed to have waived, his/her rights under Article XIII of the 

Bylaws.  The fact that the adverse decision is held in abeyance shall not be deemed to 

confer clinical privileges where none existed before. 

 

 

 

115/321



 

6 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

10. Responsibilities of the Governing Body  

 

a. At its next regular meeting after all of the Practitioner's rights under Article XIII 

of the Bylaws have been exhausted or waived, the governing body or its duly 

authorized committee shall act in the matter.  The governing body's decision shall 

be conclusive except that the governing body may defer final determination by 

referring the matter back to the Credentials Committee for further reconsideration.  

Any such referral back shall state the reasons, therefore, shall set a time limit 

within which a subsequent recommendation to the Governing Body shall be 

made, and may include a directive that an additional hearing is conducted to 

clarify issues which are in doubt.  At its next regular meeting after receipt of such 

subsequent recommendation, and any new evidence in the matter, if any, the 

governing body shall make a decision either to provisionally appoint the 

Practitioner to the medical staff or to reject him/her for medical staff membership. 

 

b. Whenever the governing body's decision will be contrary to the recommendation 

of the Credentials Committee, the governing body shall submit the matter to the 

Joint Conference Committee for review and recommendation and shall consider 

such recommendation before making its decision final. 

 

c. When the governing body's decision is final, it shall send notice of such  

decision through the Executive Director to the Secretary of the Medical Staff, the 

Chairman of the Medical Executive Committee, the Chairman of the Credentials 

Committee and the chairman of the department concerned, and by certified mail, 

return receipt requested to the Practitioner. 

 

B. Medical Staff Reappointment 
 

1. Reappointment Application 
 

Each application for reappointment to the medical staff shall be signed by the applicant 

and shall be submitted on a form prescribed by the governing body after consultation 

with the Medical Executive Committee. 
 

2. Responsibilities of Executive Director 
 

The reappointment process shall begin at least ninety (90) days prior to the termination of 

current appointment and privileges.  Requests for additional privileges or for change in a 

staff category shall be made to the Executive Director at this time with accompanying 

documentation of further training and/or clinical experience.  The Executive Director 

shall gather all pertinent information relating to the staff member's professional 

competence and clinical judgment in the treatment of patients (as determined by ongoing 

peer review and quality assurance activities), his/her mental and physical condition, 

ethics, conduct, compliance with Hospital and medical staff Bylaws, Rules and 

Regulations, cooperation with Hospital personnel, and shall check all new information 

for veracity.  The applicant shall report the circumstances and outcome of any 

malpractice judgment(s) delivered against him/her during the previous appointment 

116/321



 

7 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

period as well as the circumstances of any pending malpractice action against him/her.  

The Executive Director shall deliver that information to the appropriate departmental 

chairman or his/her designated representative for review within ten (10) working days. 
 

3. Responsibilities of Departmental Chairman 
 

The departmental chairman or his/her designated representative, to which the application 

is forwarded, will review the application (within 10 working days) and make a written 

report regarding the qualifications of the Practitioner to the Credentials Committee.  In 

making his/her report the departmental chairman or his/her designated representative 

shall examine the evidence of the character, professional competence, qualifications, 

health status and ethical standing of the applicant and shall determine, through 

information provided by the Executive Director whether the Practitioner has established 

and meets all of the necessary qualifications for staff membership and the clinical 

privileges requested by him/her.  Any requested change in the staff category and/or 

clinical privileges requested by the Practitioner will be supported by evidence of further 

training and/or clinical competence provided by the Practitioner. 

 

4. Reappointment Process 

 

Thereafter, the procedure provided for in Section II., A., paragraphs 7-10 of these Rules 

and Regulations, relating to the initial appointment shall be followed. 

 

C. Allied Health Professional Appointment 

 

1. Application 

 

Each application for appointment to the allied health professional staff shall be signed by 

the applicant, and include a statement by a sponsoring Physician who is currently on the 

MHSC medical staff.  Said sponsorship shall remain adequate, regardless of the status of 

the sponsor, until the expiration of the applicant’s term, and shall be submitted on a form 

prescribed by the governing body after consultation with the Medical Executive 

Committee.  The application shall require detailed information concerning the applicant's 

professional qualifications including: 

 

  a. The school and date of degree/registration/ certification; 

 

b. All special training programs with dates of successful completion; 

 

  c. The granting of state licenses, if applicable, their dates, and history of adverse 

actions; 

 

d. The granting of staff membership and privileges at other institutions; 

 

117/321



 

8 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

e. A statement specifying any circumstances and judgments and/or settlements of 

any previous malpractice actions, as well as the circumstances of any pending 

malpractice actions, involving the allied health professional; 

    

f. The names of at least three persons who have had extensive recent experience in 

observing and working with the allied health professional and who can provide 

adequate references pertaining to the allied health professional's professional 

competence and ethical character, health status and ability to work cooperatively 

with others and who will provide specific written comments on these matters.  

The named individuals must have acquired the requisite knowledge through 

recent observation of professional practice over a reasonable period of time and 

preferably have a current affiliation with an acute care institution and at least one 

must be from a colleague in the applicant's specialty.  The references may not be 

relatives or have any recently initiated, or impending, professional 

partnership/financial associations with the applicant; 

 

  g. A statement that the allied health professional has received or been given access 

to, and read the Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of the medical staff and that 

he/she agrees to be bound by the terms thereof if he/she is granted membership 

and/or clinical privileges and to be bound by the terms thereof without regard to 

whether or not he/ she is granted membership and/or privileges in all matters 

relating to consideration of his/ her application; 

 

h. Information as to whether any of the following has ever been, or are in the process 

of being, denied, revoked, suspended, reduced not renewed or voluntarily 

relinquished: 

 

(1) Staff membership status or privileges at any other Hospital or healthcare 

institution; 

 

(2) Membership/fellowship in local, state or national professional 

organizations; and 

 

(3) License to practice any profession in any jurisdiction. 

 

i. A statement of experience during the most recent five (5) years, including a 

consent to the release of information by his/her present and past malpractice 

insurance carrier(s); 

 

j. A statement whereby the allied health professional agrees that, when an adverse 

ruling is made with respect to his/her staff membership, staff status and/or 

privileges, he/she will resort to the administrative remedies afforded by the 

medical staff Bylaws rules & regulations before resorting to formal legal action; 

 

118/321



 

9 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

k. Evidence of current, adequate professional liability insurance, as determined by 

the governing body; and 

 

l. A statement regarding physical/mental health status, including alcohol abuse 

and/or drug dependency; 

 

m. Satisfactory completion of such continuing education requirements as may be 

imposed by law, this Hospital, or applicable accreditation agencies. 

 

 2. Responsibilities of the Allied Health Professional 

 

The allied health professional shall have the burden of producing adequate information 

for a proper evaluation of his/her competence, character, ethics and other qualifications, 

and for resolving any doubts about such qualifications. Any material misrepresentation 

in, or omission from, the application and related documents, shall be grounds for denial 

of privileges or corrective action regardless of when the misrepresentation or omission is 

discovered.  

 

3. Appearance, Authorization, and Consent 
 

By applying for appointment to the allied health professional staff, each allied health 

professional thereby signifies: 
 

a. His/her willingness to appear for interviews in regard to his/her application; 
 

b. His/her authorization for the Hospital to consult with members of medical staffs 

of other Hospitals with which the allied health professional has been associated 

and with others who may have information bearing on his/her competence, 

character, health status and ethical qualifications; 
 

c. His/her consent to the Hospital's inspection of all records and documents that may 

be material to an evaluation of his/her professional qualifications and competence 

to carry out the clinical privileges he/she requests as well as his/her moral and 

ethical qualifications for allied health professional staff membership; 
 

d. His/her release from any liability of all representatives of the Hospital and its 

medical staff for their acts performed in good faith and without malice in 

connection with evaluating the allied health professional and his/her credentials; 

and 

 

e. His/her release from any liability all individuals and organizations who provide 

information to the Hospital in good faith and without malice concerning the allied 

health professional's competence, ethics, character, health status and other 

qualifications for allied health professional staff appointment and clinical 

privileges including otherwise privileged or confidential information.   

119/321



 

10 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

 

 4. Discrimination 

 

No considerations of sex, race, creed and/or national origin may be used in the granting 

or denying of staff membership or clinical privileges. 

 

5. Responsibilities of Executive Director 

 

a. The completed application shall be submitted to the Hospital's Executive Director 

who shall be responsible to review the application for veracity.  Initiation of the 

verification process of at least the following items will begin within fifteen (15) 

working days of receipt of a completed application: 

 

(1) Degree/certification/registration conferred, when, and the institution; 

 

(2) Completion of training programs, specialty, date of completion; 

 

(3) The granting of state licenses, if applicable, dates and history of adverse 

actions;  

 

(4) Querying the National Practitioner Data Bank; and  

 

(5) At least three references from persons who can provide adequate 

references pertaining to the allied health professional's competence and 

ethical character. 

  

(6) On completion of the verification, the Executive Director will forward the 

application to the appropriate departmental chairman. 

 

6. Responsibilities of Departmental Chairman 

 

The departmental chairman or his/her designated representative to which the application 

is forwarded will review the application and within fifteen (15) working days make a 

report to the Credentials Committee on the qualifications of the allied health professional 

for admission to the allied health professional staff as well as for specific privileges 

requested.  In making this report, the departmental chairman or his/her designated 

representative shall examine evidence of the character, professional competence, 

qualifications, health status and ethical standing of the allied health professional, and 

shall determine, through information contained in the references given and from other 

sources available to him/her whether the allied health professional has established, and 

meets all of the necessary qualifications, for the allied health professional staff category 

and the clinical privileges requested by him/her. 

 

120/321



 

11 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

7. Responsibilities of the Credentials Committee 

 

a. The Credentials Committee shall review the allied health professional's 

application for allied health professional staff membership as well as for specific 

clinical privileges along with the report of the departmental chairman or his/her 

representative at its first meeting following receipt of all these materials/ 

documents.   

 

b. Following the review of the Practitioner's application and report of the 

Department Chairman or his/her designated representative, the Credentials 

Committee shall make a recommendation with respect to the Practitioner's 

appointment and/or clinical privileges. The Credentials Committee shall review 

the Chair’s recommendation, and either approve and adopt the Chair’s 

recommendation, in whole, or in part, or formulate its own written 

recommendation, and transmit the recommendation to the Medical Executive 

Committee.   The Medical Executive Committee will review and comment, and 

then forward the credentials file to the Governing Body for final action. 

 

8. Adverse Recommendation of the Credentials Committee  

 

When the recommendation of the Credentials Committee is adverse to the allied health 

professional, either in respect to the appointment or clinical privileges, the Medical 

Executive Committee shall be so advised and the chief executive officer shall promptly 

notify the allied health professional by certified mail, return receipt requested.  No such 

adverse recommendation may be forwarded to the governing body until after the allied 

health professional has exercised or has been deemed to have waived, his/her rights to a 

hearing as provided by Article XIII of these Bylaws. 

 

9. Favorable Recommendation of Credentials Committee 

 

At its next regular meeting after receipt of a favorable recommendation by the 

Credentials Committee, along with comments from the Medical Executive Committee, 

the governing body shall act in the matter.  If the governing body's decision is adverse to 

the allied health professional, in respect to either appointment or clinical privileges, the 

Executive Director shall promptly notify him/her of such adverse decision by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, and such adverse decision shall be held in abeyance until 

the allied health professional has exercised, or has been deemed to have waived, his/her 

rights under Article XIII of the Bylaws.  The fact that the adverse decision is held in 

abeyance shall not be deemed to confer privileges where none existed before. 

 

 

 

 

121/321



 

12 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 10. Responsibilities of the Governing Body 

 

a. At its next regular meeting after all of the allied health professional's rights under 

Article XIII of the Bylaws have been exhausted or waived, the governing body or 

its duly authorized committee shall act in the matter.  The governing body's 

decision shall be conclusive except that the governing body may defer final 

determination by referring the matter back to the Credentials Committee for 

further reconsideration.  Any such referral back shall state the reasons, therefore, 

shall set a time limit within which a subsequent recommendation to the governing 

body shall be made, and may include a directive that an additional hearing is 

conducted to clarify issues which are in doubt.  At its next regular meeting after 

receipt of such subsequent recommendation any new evidence in the matter, if 

any, the governing body shall make a decision either to provisionally appoint the 

allied health professional to the allied health professional staff or to reject him/her 

for allied health professional staff membership. 

 

b. Whenever the governing body's decision will be contrary to the recommendation 

of the Credentials Committee, the governing body shall submit the matter to the 

Joint Conference Committee for review and recommendation and shall consider 

such recommendation before making its decision final. 

 

c. When the governing body's decision is final, it shall send notice of such decision 

through the Executive Director to the Secretary of the Medical Staff, the 

Chairman of the Medical Executive Committee, the Chairman of the Credentials 

Committee and the chairman of the department concerned, and by certified mail, 

return receipt requested to the allied health professional. 

 

D. Allied Health Professional Reappointment 

 

1. Reappointment Application 

 

Each application for reappointment to the allied health professional staff shall be signed 

by the applicant and include a statement by a sponsoring Physician who is currently on 

the MHSC medical staff.  Said sponsorship shall remain adequate, regardless of the status 

of the sponsor, until the expiration of the applicant’s term, and shall be submitted on a 

form prescribed by the governing body after consultation with the Medical Executive 

Committee. 

 

2. Responsibilities of Executive Director 

 

The reappointment process shall begin ninety (90) days prior to the termination of current 

appointment and privileges.  Requests for additional privileges shall be made to the 

Executive Director at this time with accompanying documentation of further training 

122/321



 

13 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

and/or clinical experience.  The Executive Director shall gather all pertinent information 

relating to the allied health professional's competence and clinical judgment in the 

treatment of patients (as determined by ongoing peer review and quality assurance 

activities), his/her mental and physical condition, ethics, conduct, compliance with 

Hospital and medical staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, cooperation with Hospital 

personnel and shall check all new information for veracity.  The allied health professional 

shall report the circumstances and outcome of any malpractice judgment(s) delivered 

against him/her during the previous appointment period as well as any malpractice 

actions pending against him/her.  The Executive Director shall deliver that information to 

the appropriate departmental chairman or his/her designated representative for review. 

 

3. Responsibilities of Departmental Chairman 

 

The departmental chairman or his/her designated representative to which the application 

is forwarded will review the application (within 30 days) and make a report regarding the 

qualifications of the allied health professional to the Credentials Committee.  In making 

his/her report the departmental chairman or his/her designated representative shall 

examine the evidence of the character, professional competence, qualifications, health 

status and ethical standing of the allied health professional and shall determine, through 

information provided by the Executive Director whether the allied health professional has 

established and meets all of the necessary qualifications for the allied health professional 

staff membership and the clinical privileges requested by him/her.  Any requested change 

in clinical privileges requested by the allied health professional will be supported by 

evidence of further training and/or clinical competence provided by the allied health 

professional. 

 

4. Reappointment Process 

 

Thereafter, the procedure provided for in Section II., C. paragraphs 7-10 of these Rules 

and Regulations, relating to the initial appointment shall be followed. 

 

 

Section III. PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE EVALUATION 

 

A. Evaluation of Practitioner’s Performance 

 

1. The Medical Staff will monitor and evaluate a Practitioner’s professional  

performance in an objective and evidence-based manner by collecting,   

verifying and evaluating data relevant to a Practitioner’s professional   

performance.  This may be done in two ways:  

 Focused professional practice evaluation 

 Ongoing professional practice evaluation 

 

123/321



 

14 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

2. Focused professional practice evaluation is a time-limited evaluation of a Practitioner’s 

clinical competence that may be done when:  

 

a. An initial request for privileges is made (effective January 2008); 

 

b. A Practitioner does not have documented evidence of performing a requested 

privilege; 

 

c. A question arises regarding a Practitioner’s ability to provide safe, high-quality 

patient care; 

 

d. Examples of triggers for focused professional practice evaluation include but are 

not limited to: 

 

1) Low volume procedures 

 

2) Sentinel event 

 

3) Complaint 

 

4) Variance from acceptable practice patterns 

 

5) Variance from comparative peer performance data 

 

3. Ongoing professional practice evaluation is factored into the decision to maintain, revise, limit or 

revoke existing privileges.  The following general competencies are included in the ongoing 

professional practice evaluation: 

 Patient care:  Practitioners are expected to provide patient care that is 

compassionate, appropriate and effective for the promotion of health, 

prevention of illness, treatment of disease, and care at the end of life 

 Medical/Clinical Knowledge:  Practitioners are expected to demonstrate 

knowledge of established and evolving biomedical, clinical and social 

sciences, and the application of their knowledge to patient care and the 

education of others. 

 Practice-based Learning and Improvement:  Practitioners are expected to be 

able to use scientific evidence and methods to investigate, evaluate and 

improve patient care practices. 

 Interpersonal and Communication Skills:  Practitioners are expected to 

demonstrate interpersonal and communication skills that enable them to 

establish and maintain professional relationships with patients, families and 

other members of healthcare teams. 

 Professionalism:  Practitioners are expected to demonstrate behaviors that 

reflect a commitment to continuous professional development, ethical 

practice, an understanding and sensitivity to diversity and a responsible 

attitude toward their patients, profession, and society. 

124/321



 

15 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 Systems-based Practice:  Practitioners are expected to demonstrate both an 

understanding of the contexts and systems in which healthcare is provided and 

the ability to apply this knowledge to improve and optimize healthcare. 

 

3. Focused Professional Practice Evaluation 

 

a. When a focused evaluation is triggered, an evaluation by an external or internal 

source may be required. The data supporting the trigger is reviewed and analyzed by 

the Physician member of the Quality Steering committee.   

 

b. The Physician member of the Quality Steering committee meets with the Practitioner 

to discuss the identified issues and obtain his/her input on the issues. 

 

c. The Physician member of the Quality Steering committee meets with the Medical 

Executive Committee (MEC) to review the results of the data analysis and input from 

the Practitioner.  

 

d. If the MEC determines that monitoring is indicated, it will direct the department chair 

to develop a monitoring plan in conjunction with the Practitioner, and with the 

approval of the MEC.  The plan will contain, at a minimum: 

 

(1) The type of monitoring, which may include but is not limited to one or 

more of the following: 

--Chart review 

--Direct observation 

--Discussion with other individuals involved in a patient’s care 

--Monitoring of diagnostic and treatment techniques 

--Simulation 

--Proctoring 

 

(2) The individual responsible for overseeing the plan 

 

(3) The specific criteria that will be monitored 

 

(4) The measures of success 

 

(5) The timeframe for the plan, usually 3-12 months, depending on practice 

volumes and current performance 

 

(6) Parameter(s) for extending the plan 

 

(7) Actions that may be taken if the performance is not satisfactory 

 

(8) Frequency of progress reports to MEC and the Practitioner 

 

125/321



 

16 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

e. Upon completion, the department chair will report to MEC, who will notify the 

Practitioner of the results. 

 

f. Correspondence with the Practitioner regarding the monitoring plan, progress reports, 

and the final report will be included in the Practitioner’s peer review file, which is 

reviewed by Credentials Committee as a part of the appointment/reappointment 

process. 

 

Section IV. PROFESSIONAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

 

This policy has been developed to establish a mechanism for education, referral, investigation, and 

intervention of health issues specific to Physicians and other licensed independent Practitioners, and to 

inform Practitioners and staff members about the Wyoming Professional Assistance Program. 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County recognizes that often, health professionals ignore their own 

physical and emotional needs while dedicating their lives to the needs of their patients.  They are often 

reluctant to admit that they need help or that they are experiencing difficulties in coping with potentially 

impairing conditions. 

 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County has contracted with the Wyoming Professional Assistance 

Program (WPAP) to assure that Practitioners suffering from illness or impairment are offered assistance 

to help resolve these problems. 

 

The Wyoming Professional Assistance Program (WPAP) was established in 1997 to provide resources 

and support to include the identification, referral and ongoing monitoring of impaired Wyoming health 

professional's in order to preserve the personal health and professional talents of the individual and to 

maintain the economic viability of the Wyoming health care system. 

 

A. Eligibility 

 

All Practitioners with current privileges at Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County are eligible to use 

the Wyoming Professional Assistance Program.  All Practitioners, staff members, and contract 

employees are eligible to make referrals to the WPAP, or other MEC approved program. 

 

B. Referral, Self-Referral, Evaluation, and Treatment 

 

1. WPAP provides education, through informational brochures and in-services, to all 

contracting Hospitals.  This education addresses how to recognize signs of impairment, how 

to make a referral, self-referrals, evaluation, and intervention. 

 

2. Anyone may call WPAP (or other MEC approved program) to discuss concerns about a 

health professional:  MHSC staff members, colleagues, friends, family members, supervisors, 

employees, or any concerned individuals. 

 

126/321



 

17 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

3. Health professionals may also call WPAP (or other MEC approved program) to make a self-

referral. 

 

4. Each call to WPAP will be handled promptly.  Information will be gathered with discretion 

and confidentiality.  The identity of the caller is kept confidential to the maximum extent 

possible. 

 

5. If concerns of impairment are validated in telephone or on-site interviews, arrangements will 

be made for an informal meeting with the professional who is the object of concern. 

 

6. Recommendations for a referral to evaluate (and treat, if needed) are most often accepted at 

the informal level; if the professional accepts evaluation and treatment recommendations, his 

or her identity remains completely anonymous to the licensing board. 

 

7. All communications with WPAP (or other MEC approved program) are protected and 

confidential.  WPAP assures confidentiality for participants and immunity for all reporting 

entities and/or individuals in accordance with Wyoming statute. 

 

8. WPAP provides for early intervention; avoidance of emergency suspensions; assurance that 

healthcare professionals have met the terms for a safe return to employment; and 

establishment of an ongoing monitoring system. 

 

 

9. WPAP can be contacted at: 

Wyoming Professional Assistance Program 

Post Office Box 1496 

Casper, WY 82602 

307-472-1222 

Fax: 307-472-1221 

E-mail: wpapro@qwest.net 

 

10. For individuals that have been referred to WPAP, or other MEC approved program, failure to 

participate in the program or complete the recommended rehabilitation may result in further 

action under section XII of the medical staff Bylaws.   

 

Section V.   ADMISSION AND DISCHARGE OF PATIENTS 

 

A. Admission Policy 

 

The Hospital shall accept all patients for care and treatment. 

 

1. General 

 

a. A patient may be admitted to Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County by 

Physician members of its medical staff or other qualified licensed individuals.  All 

Practitioners shall be governed by the official admitting policy of the Hospital. 

127/321



 

18 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

b. The management and coordination of each patient’s care, treatment, and services 

is the responsibility of a Practitioner with appropriate privileges.  Such 

Practitioner shall be responsible for the medical care and treatment, for the 

prompt completeness and accuracy of the medical record, for necessary special 

instructions, and for transmitting reports on the condition of the patient to the 

referring Physician and to relatives of the patient.  Whenever these responsibilities 

are transferred to another Practitioner a note covering the transfer of responsibility 

shall be entered on the order sheet of the medical record and the transferring 

Practitioner shall personally notify the receiving Practitioner. 

 

2. Admission of Patients of Independent Limited Practitioners 

 

When a patient's care involves the above listed Independent Limited Practitioner the 

following will apply: 

 

a. Responsibilities of Independent Limited Practitioner 

 

(1) A detailed history (specific) justifying Hospital admission;  

 

(2) A detailed description of the examination (specific) and a preoperative 

diagnosis where applicable; 

 

(3) A complete operative/procedural report where applicable, describing the 

findings and technique; (all tissues, including teeth and fragments, shall be 

sent to the Hospital pathologist for examination.  In cases of extraction of 

teeth, a dentist shall clearly state the number of teeth and fragments 

removed). 

 

(4) Progress notes as are pertinent to the patient's condition; and  

 

(5) Clinical summary statement. 

 

b. Responsibilities of Physician: 

 

(1) Supervision of the patient’s general health status while Hospitalized. 

 

(2) The discharge of the patient will be on a written or verbal order of the 

Physician member of the medical staff.  

 

3. Emergency Admissions  

 

a. Except in an emergency, no patient shall be admitted to the Hospital until a 

provisional diagnosis or valid reason for admission has been stated.  In the case of 

an emergency, such statement shall be recorded as soon as possible. 

 

128/321



 

19 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

b. In the case of an emergency admission, patients who do not have a private 

Physician may request any known Physician in the department or service to which 

he/she needs to be admitted, or be assigned to the on-call Physician member of 

the active or associate staff on duty in the department or service to which the 

illness of the patient indicates assignment in accordance with Section VIII, E. of 

these Rules and Regulations. The chairman of each department shall provide an 

assignment schedule for attendance to such patients. 

 

4. Physician Coverage  

 

Each member of the medical staff shall provide assurance of immediacy of adequate 

professional care for his/her patients in the Hospital by being available or having 

available, within a reasonable period of time, an eligible alternate Practitioner with whom 

prior arrangements have been made.  The alternate must be a member of the medical 

staff.  Failure of the attending Practitioner to meet the above requirements may result in 

loss of medical staff privileges.  Staff members who will be unavailable should indicate, 

in writing, on the order sheets of the patient's chart, the name of the Practitioner who will 

be assuming the responsibility for the care of those patients during his/her absence. 

 

5. Patient Placement 

 

No patient's attending Physician or location will be changed without such transfer being 

approved by all Practitioners involved (change of bed location within one care unit does 

not apply).  Approval for transfer need not be obtained from the responsible Practitioner 

if the patient's location change is felt to be necessary to control nosocomial infection risk 

by the Chairman of the Infection Control Committee and the appropriate department 

chairman (or the President of the Medical Staff if a disagreement between the above two 

parties occurs, or if one is absent). 

 

6. Involuntary Detention 

 

The admitting Physician shall be held responsible for taking appropriate measures and for 

giving such information as may be necessary to assure the protection of the patient from 

self-harm and to assure the protection of others whenever his/her patients might be a 

source of danger from any cause whatever.  All patients admitted or detained under 

involuntary detention statutes will be admitted to special lockup rooms unless there are 

over-riding reasons to do otherwise. 

 

7. Length of Stay 

 

The attending Physician is required to document the need for continued Hospitalization 

when requested by the Utilization Management Committee and/or the Medical Executive 

Committee after specific periods of stay and is required to abide by the Utilization 

Management Plan, which will be approved, by the Medical Executive Committee and the 

governing body. 

129/321



 

20 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

B. Discharges 

 

Patients may be discharged on a written or oral order of the attending Physician.  Should a 

patient leave the Hospital against the advice of the attending Physician, or without proper 

discharge, a notation of the incident shall be made in the patient's medical record by the nursing 

staff and the Physician and, if possible, a signed release obtained from the patient or his/her 

representative. 

 

C. Deaths and Autopsies 

 

1. Deaths 

 

In the event of a Hospital death, the deceased shall be pronounced dead by a Physician 

member of the medical staff, or house officer, as designated, within a reasonable time.  In 

the case of a DNR patient, the patient may be pronounced dead by Two R.N.’s following 

the nursing protocol, and the date and time will be entered in the medical record.   The 

body shall not be released until a written pronouncement of death entry has been made in 

the medical record of the deceased.   
 

2. Autopsies  
 

a. The Hospital will attempt to secure autopsies in all cases of unusual deaths and 

cases with medical, legal, and education interest and will inform the medical staff 

(specifically the attending Physician) of autopsies that the Hospital intends to 

perform. Which include, but not limited to the following: 
 

(1) Unanticipated death; 
 

(2) Death during treatment with a new therapeutic trial regime; 
 

(3) Intraoperative or intra procedural death; 
 

(4) Death occurring within 48 hours after surgery or an invasive diagnostic 

procedure; 
 

(5) Death incident to pregnancy or within seven days following delivery; 
 

(6) Deaths where the cause is sufficiently obscure to delay completion of the 

death certificate; 
 

(7) Deaths in infants and children. 

 

b. An autopsy may be performed on all patients whose death does not come under 

the coroner's jurisdiction only with a written consent, signed in accordance with 

state law.  All autopsies shall be performed by the Hospital pathologist, the 

coroner or by a Physician delegated this responsibility.  When an autopsy is 

130/321



 

21 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

performed, provisional anatomic diagnoses shall be recorded in the medical 

record within three days, and the complete protocol shall be made part of the 

record within thirty (30) days unless exceptions for special studies are established 

by the medical staff. 

 

 

Section VI.   MEDICAL RECORDS 

 

A. Practitioner Responsibilities 

 

1. The attending Physician shall be responsible for the preparation of a complete and legible 

medical record for each patient.  This record shall, at a minimum, include a complete 

admission H&P, all special reports such as consultations and pathology findings, clinical 

laboratory results, interpretations of studies performed by Medical Imaging, operative 

reports, progress notes, autopsy report (when performed), and a discharge summary. 

 

2. Completion of medical records by locum tenens Physicians will be according to policies 

and procedures developed by the Medical Records Committee and approved by the 

Medical Executive Committee. 

 

 3. All Physician Assistant and Nurse Midwife inpatient medical record entries shall be 

countersigned by the appropriate Practitioner’s authorized, supervising Physician within 

48 hours. 

 

B. History and Physical Examination 

 

A complete admission history and physical examination shall be performed and recorded within 

twenty-four (24) hours of admission.  This report should include identifying data, chief 

complaint, history of present illness, significant past medical and surgical history, relevant 

family history, social history, a review of all systems of the body, physical examination, 

significant laboratory results, provisional diagnosis and treatment plan.  If a complete history has 

been recorded and a physical examination performed within one week prior to the patient's 

admission to the Hospital, a reasonably durable, legible copy of these reports may be used in the 

patient's Hospital medical record in lieu of the admission history and report of the physical 

examination, provided these reports were recorded by a member of the medical staff.  In such 

instances, an interval admission note that includes all additions to the history and any subsequent 

changes in the physical findings must always be recorded. 

 

C. Readmissions 

 

When a patient is readmitted within thirty (30) days, a brief interval history and physical may be 

recorded in lieu of a full exam, provided a copy of the most recent Hospitalization H&P and 

discharge summary are placed in the current chart. 

 

 

 

131/321



 

22 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

D. Surgery 

 

An adequate history and physical shall be recorded within the chart of each patient within 24 

hours prior to surgery unless any delay for recording the history and physical would be 

detrimental to the patient. 

 

E. Outpatients 

 

Each outpatient admission will have a note/report adequately describing the medical 

circumstances surrounding that visit. 

 

F. Twenty Three and One Half Hour Outpatient Stays 

 

1. Surgical procedures involving anesthesia, done in the OR Suite, require a complete H&P, 

operative report and a dictated or written discharge note. 

 

2. Medical outpatient admissions require an H&P (to include chief complaint, pertinent 

history, and pertinent physical findings), and a dictated or written discharge note.  A full 

H&P will be required if the patient is admitted. 

 

3. Obstetrical outpatient admissions require a prenatal H&P, results, order for discharge and 

nursing discharge instructions. 

  

4. Chemo or other cycle patients require an initial H&P with the plan of therapy, which will 

be valid for one year.  An interval note will be required if there is any change in condition 

or if treatment is stopped and started again. 

 

 5.   Observation patients will be treated in accordance with the Observation/Surgical 

Outpatient Admissions Policy. 

 

 6. In all cases in this section F, if the patient becomes an inpatient, all requirements for 

inpatient charting must be observed. 

 

G. Progress Notes 

 

Pertinent progress notes shall be recorded at the time of observation sufficient to permit 

continuity of care and transferability.  Whenever possible each of the patient's clinical problems 

should be clearly identified in the progress notes and correlated with specific orders as well as 

results of tests and treatment.  Progress notes shall be written at least daily on critically ill 

patients, and those where there is difficulty in diagnosis or management of the clinical problem.  

All other patients will have progress notes recorded at least every other Hospital day. 

 

 

 

 

132/321



 

23 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

H. Operative Reports 

 

A written operative note, for both inpatients and outpatients, will be entered in the chart 

immediately following surgery.  That note will include pre and post-operative diagnosis, the 

operation performed, surgeons involved, anesthesia type and other information pertinent to the 

immediate postop care of the patient.  In addition, a comprehensive operative report shall be 

dictated or written at the conclusion of the procedure which includes findings found at surgery, 

details of surgical technique, specimen(s) removed, pre and post-operative diagnosis, surgeon(s)  

and assistant(s) and type of anesthetic used.  Dentists shall record the number of teeth and/or 

fragments removed on the operative report.  Reports shall be promptly signed by the surgeon and 

made a part of the patient's current medical record. 

 

I. Consents 

 

All procedures listed below require written consent from the patient or parent/guardian/next of 

kin, in the case of a minor, and adequate documentation of the procedure or transfer recorded in 

the chart or dictated within twenty-four (24) hours except for transfers to another acute care 

facility (see 3., a. below).  In those situations wherein the patient’s life is in jeopardy and suitable 

signatures cannot be obtained, these circumstances should be fully explained on the patient’s 

medical record. 

 

1. General Anesthesia 

 

All procedures with general anesthesia, regional anesthesia or Bier Block. 

 

 2. Other  

 

Other procedures not using general anesthesia, including, but not limited to: 

  Amniocentesis 

  Arteriography 

  Arthrography 

Aspiration of hematomas or other body fluid collections (cysts, purulent  

  Accumulations, etc.) 

Biopsies of all types (liver, lung, skin, etc.) 

Bone marrow aspiration/biopsy 

Bronchography 

  Chest tube insertion 

  Circumcision 

  Closed reduction of fractures 

  Debridement, major burns and wounds 

  Dilation and curettage 

  Elective DC cardioversion 

Endoscopic procedures (esophagogastroduodenoscopy,  

Sigmoidoscopy, colonoscopy, bronchoscopy, cystoscopy, etc.) 

Excision, removal or destruction of skin or subcutaneous tissues 

  Hysterosalpingography 

133/321



 

24 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

Invasive vascular line placements (central venous lines, Swan-Ganz, catheters, arterial       

Lines, external jugular lines, pacemakers, etc.) 

  Kirshner wire insertion 

  Myelography 

  Paracentesis 

  Pacement of posterior nasal packs 

  Removal of external fixation devises 

  Spinal taps 

  Steinman pin insertion 

  Suction curettage 

  Thoracentesis 

  Umbilical artery catheterization 

  Vasectomy 

  Venous cutdown 

  Moderate sedation/analgesia 

 

3. Special Consents 

 

Special consents are required for the following: 

  Transfusion of blood or blood products 

  Autopsy 

  Therapeutic abortion 

  All experimental treatments and medications 

  Sterilization procedures 

  Rubella vaccine 

  Transfer to another acute care facility 
 

  a.  Whenever a patient is transferred to another acute care facility, the attending 

Physician must explain the benefits versus risks of the transfer with the patient 

and/or parent/guardian/next of kin, in the case of a minor, and sign a certification 

that he/she has discussed the benefits versus risks of a transfer.  In the event the 

Physician is unavailable at the time of transfer, the certification may be signed by 

the case manager or house supervisor in consultation with the attending Physician.  

If the certification is signed by anyone other than the Physician, the Physician 

must countersign the certification within twenty-four (24) hours of the transfer. 
 

J. Consultations  
 

Consultations shall show evidence of a review of the patient's record by the consultant, pertinent 

findings on examination of the patient, the consultant's opinion and recommendations.  This 

report shall be made a part of the patient's record.  A limited statement such as "I concur" does 

not constitute an acceptable report of the consultation.  Except in an emergency, so verified on 

the record, when operative procedures are involved the consultation note shall be recorded prior 

to operation.  (See  VII, B. of these Rules & Regulations). 

 

134/321



 

25 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

K. Obstetrical Records 
 

The current obstetrical record shall include a complete prenatal record.  This may be a legible 

copy of the attending Physician's office record transferred to the Hospital before admission.  In 

such instances, an interval admission note must be recorded that includes pertinent additions to 

the history and any subsequent changes in physical findings. 
 

L. Authentication 
 

All clinical entries in the patient's medical record shall be accurately dated and authenticated.  

Authenticated means to prove authorship, for example, by written signature or identifiable 

initials. 

 

M. Symbols and Abbreviations 

 

Symbols and abbreviations may be used only in accordance with the Abbreviation Usage Policy. 

 

N. Discharge Summary 

 

A discharge clinical summary shall be recorded within seven (7) days of the date of discharge on 

all medical records of patients Hospitalized.  The discharge summary shall accurately reflect the 

patient's reason for admission, clinical course, all operations and procedures performed, findings 

of various investigations, response to treatment, condition at discharge, recommended activity 

and diet, medications on discharge, follow-up instructions and final diagnoses.   

 

O. Release of Medical Records 

 

The written consent of the patient or guardian is required for release of medical information. 

 

P. Removal of Medical Records 

 

Records may be removed from the Hospital's jurisdiction and safekeeping only in accordance 

with a court order, subpoena or statute.  All records are the property of the Hospital and shall not 

otherwise be taken away without the permission of the Executive Director.  All records shall be 

available for the use of all involved Practitioners.  

 

 Q. Access to Medical Records 

 

Free access to all medical records of all patients shall be afforded to members of the medical 

staff for bona fide study and research consistent with preserving the confidentiality of personal 

information concerning the individual patients.  All such projects shall be approved by the 

Medical Executive Committee before records can be studied.  Former members of the medical 

staff shall be permitted access to information from the medical records of their patients covering 

all periods during which they attended such patients in the Hospital.  

135/321



 

26 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

R. Filing of Medical Records 

 

A medical record shall not be permanently filed until it is completed by the responsible 

Practitioner or is ordered filed by the Medical Record Committee. 

 

S. Completion of Medical Records 

 

All records shall be completed within thirty (30) days following the discharge of the patient. 

 

T. Incomplete Medical Records  

 

 1. Emergency Admissions 

 

In cases where a member of the medical staff has had his/her privileges suspended by 

virtue of incomplete medical records, in accordance with ARTICLE XII, Section C. 4. of 

the Bylaws, and has a patient who requires admission to the Hospital, the following will 

be applied: 

 

a. The attending Physician must contact the Hospital admitting office and declare 

the admission to be an emergency.  Such declarations may be made verbally over 

the phone to the Hospital admitting personnel, if necessary, but must be set forth 

in writing on the patient's chart on admission.  This initial progress note will also 

contain sufficient medical information to justify and support the declared 

emergency. 

b. The Hospital admitting office, when in receipt of a declared and written 

emergency, will expedite such admissions without delay.  They will then report 

the following information to the Executive Director's office: 

 

(1) Name of admitting Physician; 

 

(2) Patient's name, Hospital and room number; 

 

(3) Date and time Physician declared the emergency admission; 

 

(4) Date and time admitted; 

 

(5) Service to which patient was admitted; and 

 

(6) Admitting diagnosis; 

 

c. Administration will forward information pertaining to each emergency admission 

to the President of the Medical Staff and to the chairman of the department 

appropriate by the medical nature of the admission. 

136/321



 

27 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

d. Administration will cause to be mailed a letter to the admitting Practitioner 

informing him/her that:   

 

(1) He/she is under suspension for incomplete medical records; 

 

(2) He/she had admitted an emergency patient under Rules & Regulations 

Section  IV., S.;  

 

(3) Unless his/her records are completed within forty-eight (48) hours of the 

initial emergency admission he/she will not be allowed to admit even 

emergency cases; and  

 

(4) He/she is responsible, upon expiration of the forty-eight (48) hours, for 

making arrangements with another Practitioner to handle such cases or 

he/she could be exposing himself/ herself as well as the Hospital to 

subsequent liability. 

 

e. The chairman of the department will review and report the declared emergency 

admission at the next meeting of the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

f. The President of the Medical Staff shall cause to have investigated any cases 

which appear to be improper declarations of an emergency for subsequent 

disciplinary action as deemed appropriate by the Medical Executive Committee, 

consistent with the existing staff Bylaws. 

 

 

Section VII.   GENERAL CONDUCT OF CARE 

 

A. Consent Forms 

 

Procedural consent forms for treatment and/or transfer to another facility shall be prepared by the 

Hospital, taking into account all special procedures.  These are to be adopted by the medical staff 

and governing body. 

  

B. Orders 

 

All orders for treatment (both inpatient and outpatient) shall be in writing, typed or dictated by 

an authorized Practitioner to an appropriate person. [Appropriate persons shall include 

Registered Nurses (R.N.'s) for patient care orders; Medical Imaging Department employees for 

Medical Imaging orders; clinical lab employees for Clinical Laboratory orders; Certified 

Respiratory Therapy Technologists (C.R.T.T's) and Registered Respiratory Therapists (R.R.T.'s) 

for Respiratory Care orders, Registered Physical Therapists (R.P.T.'s) for Physical Therapy 

orders; Registered Pharmacists or Pharmacy Interns verified by a Registered Pharmacist for 

137/321



 

28 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

Pharmacy orders; any Materials Management Personnel for Central Supply orders and 

Registered Dieticians (R.D.'s) for Dietary orders].  All verbal orders shall be signed by the 

ordering Practitioner or the Physician responsible for the patient within forty-eight (48) hours 

with the exception of restraint and seclusion orders which must be signed in accordance with 

SPP 120, and attached protocols, approved July 18, 2001. 

 

   1. Outpatient Orders by Non-Hospital Staff Members 

 

a. Any utilization of the Hospital's outpatient diagnostic services assumes eligibility 

for Wyoming State licensure and Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County staff 

membership and must be within the scope of practice ordinarily associated with 

the Practitioner's specialty, or his/her allied health professional's specialty or 

practice scope.  Written documentation of eligibility may be required. 

 

b. Any utilization of the Hospital's outpatient therapeutic services requires Memorial 

Hospital of Sweetwater County staff membership or acceptance of an order by a 

staff Physician. 

 

2. Illegible Orders 

 

The Practitioner's order must be written clearly, legibly and completely.  Orders which 

are illegible or improperly written will not be carried out until rewritten or understood by 

the nurse.  The use of "Renew", "Repeat", and "Continue Orders" are not acceptable. 

 

3. Routine and Standing Orders 

 

Routine and standing orders may be formulated by any member of the staff.  These shall 

be approved by the Forms Committee and the Medical Executive Committee before 

becoming effective. 

      

4. Cancellation of Orders 

 

All previous orders are canceled when patients undergo surgery which involves 

administration of medications by an anesthesiologist or anesthetist, except when a “do 

not resuscitate” (DNR - No Code) patient is to have surgery, a “do not resuscitate” 

(DNR) order may be carried out in surgery by consensual agreement between the 

patient/agent/family, the attending Physician and/or surgeon, and the anesthesiologist.  

This agreement will be documented in the medical record prior to the patient having the 

planned surgery. 

 

 

 

 

 

138/321



 

29 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

5. Medication Orders 

 

All drugs and medications administered to patients shall be those listed in the latest 

edition of United States Pharmacopeia, National Formulary, American Hospital 

Formulary Service, or AMA Drug Evaluations. 

 

a. Drugs brought into the Hospital by patients shall not be administered unless the 

drugs have been identified and there is a written order from the responsible 

Practitioner to administer the drugs.  If the drugs are not to be used during the 

patient's Hospitalization, they should be packaged and sealed, and either given to 

the patient's designee or stored and returned to the patient at the time of discharge 

provided such action is approved by the responsible Practitioner. 

 

b. Narcotics, sedatives and anticoagulant drugs that are ordered shall automatically 

be discontinued after ninety-six (96) hours.  All antibiotics, antibacterial drugs, 

and corticosteroids that are ordered shall automatically be discontinued after 

ninety-six (96) hours unless a specific termination date is indicated by the 

Physician.  Drugs should not be discontinued without notifying the Physician.  If 

the order expires during the night, medications should be continued until the 

automatic expiration is called to the attention of the Physician the following 

morning. 

 

6. Respiratory Therapy Orders 

 

 a. Respiratory Therapy orders (excluding ventilators) prescribed without time 

limitation shall be automatically discontinued after three (3) days unless the 

Physician renews the order.  Standby respiratory equipment shall be automatically 

discontinued after seventy-two (72) hours unless the Physician renews the order.  

Stop order notification stickers shall be placed on the Physician order form in the 

patient's chart twenty-four (24) hours before the automatic stop order is effective. 

 

C. Restraints/Seclusion 

 

Restraints/seclusion, the standard practice of medical immobilization, and reserving of 

patients with altered mental status, or who are at risk for falls, will be implemented in 

accordance with the Restraint and Seclusion Policy. 

 

D. Unanticipated Outcomes of Treatment 

 

All Practitioners are required to inform the patient (or the patient’s family) when treatment 

outcomes vary considerably from the anticipated result(s).  This information shall be 

documented in the patient’s medical record. 

 

 

139/321



 

30 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

E. Abortions 

 

Elective or demand abortions are not permitted on the premises of the Hospital.  Therapeutic 

abortions may be performed only for the therapeutic purpose of saving the life of the mother and 

require written consultation from at least two disinterested, qualified Physician consultants. 

 

 

Section VIII. CONSULTATIONS 

 

A. Responsibilities of Practitioners 

 

The good conduct of medical practice includes the proper and timely use of consultation.  

Judgment as to the serious nature of the illness and the question of doubt as to the diagnosis and 

treatment rests with the Practitioner who has responsibility for the care of the patient.  On the 

other hand, it is the duty of the organized medical staff, through its departmental chairmen and 

the Medical Executive Committee, to see that those with clinical privileges do not fail in the 

matter of consultants as needed. 

 

B. Qualifications for Consultants 

 

Any qualified Practitioner with clinical privileges in this Hospital can be called for consultation 

within his/her area of expertise. Consulting Physicians will provide documentation for the 

Hospital’s EMR. This documentation shall be entered directly, scanned in, or dictated. 

 

C. Requests for Consultation 

 

1. Recommendations for Consultation 

 

Except in an emergency, consultation is recommended in the following situations: 

 

a. When the patient is not a good risk for operation or treatment; 

 

b. Where the diagnosis is obscure after ordinary diagnostic procedures have been 

completed; 

 

c. Where there is a doubt as to the choice of therapeutic measures to be utilized; 

 

d. In unusually complicated situations where specific skills of other Practitioners 

may be needed; 

 

e. When requested by the family; and 

 

f. For therapeutic abortions.  

 

 

140/321



 

31 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

D. Responsibilities of Attending Practitioner 

 

The attending Practitioner is primarily responsible for requesting consultation when indicated 

and for calling a qualified consultant.  He/she will provide written authorization to permit 

another attending Practitioner to attend or examine his/her patient, except in an emergency. 

 

E. Responsibilities of Nursing and Chain of Command 

 

If a nurse has any reason to doubt or question the care provided to any patient or feels that 

appropriate consultation is needed and has not been obtained, he/she shall call this to the 

attention of the attending Physician.  If the nurse still has doubt or questions he/she shall call this 

to the attention of his/her supervisor who in turn may refer the matter to the Assistant Executive 

Director - Nursing.  If warranted, the Assistant Executive Director - Nursing will bring the 

matter to the attention of the chairman of the department, wherein the Practitioner has clinical 

privileges, or the President of the Medical Staff.  Where circumstances are such as to justify such 

action, the departmental chairman or the President of the Medical staff may request a 

consultation. 

 

 

Section IX.   GENERAL RULES REGARDING SURGICAL CARE 

 

A. Responsibilities of Surgery Department 

 

The Surgery Department shall establish policies, Rules and Regulations for the surgical suite.  

 

 1. Policies, Rules and Regulations 

 

  Policies, Rules and Regulations shall be established regarding, but not limited to, the 

following: 

 

 a. Scheduling operations; 

 

 (1) Priority: 

 

 (a)  Definition of priority time; 

 

 (b) First priority;  

 

 (c) Second priority; 

 

(2) Scheduling periods; 

 

(3) Assignment of priority; 

 

 (4) Loss of priority; 

141/321



 

32 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

 b. Reservations for operations; 

 

 c. Information required to make reservations; 

 

 d. Change of schedules; 

 

 e. Emergency operations; 

 

 f. Requirements prior to anesthesia and operation: 

 

(1) Identification of the patient; 

 

(2) Preoperative evaluation and documentation: 

 

(a) Medical record content, including diagnosis; 

 

(b) Laboratory procedures; 

 

(c) Informed consent; 

 

(3) Time of admission; 

 

(4) Time out protocol 

 

g. Starting time of operations; 

 

h. Outpatient operations requiring general anesthesia; 

 

i. Care and transport of patients: 

 

(1) To the surgical suite; 

 

(2) Within the surgical suite; 

 

 (3) To the recovery room; 

 

j. Efficient utilization of operating rooms; 

 

k. Contaminated cases; and 

 

c. Conductivity and environmental control. 

 

 

 

142/321



 

33 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

B. Consents 

 

Written, signed, informed, surgical/procedural consent shall be obtained prior to the operative 

procedure except in those situations wherein the patient's life is in jeopardy and suitable 

signatures cannot be obtained due to the condition of the patient.  In emergencies involving a 

minor or unconscious patient in which consent for surgery cannot be immediately obtained from 

parents, guardian or next of kin, these circumstances should be fully explained on the patient's 

medical record. 

 

C. Anesthesia 

 

The anesthetist shall maintain a complete anesthesia record to include evidence of pre-anesthetic 

evaluation and postanesthetic follow-up of the patient's condition.  The pre-anesthesia evaluation 

is completed and documented by an individual qualified to administer anesthesia within 48 hours 

prior to surgery or a procedure requiring anesthesia.  A post-anesthesia evaluation will be 

completed no later than 48 hours after a surgery or procedure requiring anesthesia services. 

 

D. Requirements for Patients Coming to the Operating Room 

 

1. Inpatients 

 

a. All patients shall have been admitted through proper channels and have an 

identification bracelet. 

 

b. Except in a life-threatening emergency, all patients shall have as part of their 

records: 

 

(1) A history and physical examination;   

 

(2) Required consultation performed and on the chart prior to surgery; 

 

(3) Indicated laboratory procedures; 

 

(4) A preanesthesia evaluation performed by the anesthesiologist; 

 

(5) A properly completed, signed, dated and witnessed permission for 

operation; and 

 

(6) Preoperative medication and time given. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

143/321



 

34 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

2. Outpatients 

 

a. Surgical procedures on outpatients shall be limited to such procedures and 

patients in which it is deemed that the surgical procedure, anesthesia, and 

medication will in no way be harmful to the patient by his/her immediate return to 

an uncontrolled environment. 

 

b. All outpatients shall be properly admitted to the operating room and identified. 

 

c. The outpatient record shall include a description of the pathology, diagnosis, 

evidence of preanesthesia evaluation, operative procedure and condition at 

discharge. 

 

 

Section X.   EMERGENCY SERVICES 

 

A. Medical Coverage in the Emergency Department 

 

The medical staff shall adopt a method of providing medical coverage in the emergency services 

area. This shall be in accordance with the Hospital's basic plan for the delivery of such services, 

including the delineation of clinical privileges for all Physicians who render emergency care. 

 

B. Emergency Room Medical Record  

 

An appropriate medical record shall be kept for every patient receiving emergency medical 

service.   

 

1. Contents of Medical Record 

 

The medical record shall include: 

 

a. Adequate patient identification; 

 

b. Information concerning the time of the patient's arrival means of arrival and by 

whom transported; 

 

c. Pertinent history of the injury or illness including details relative to first aid or 

emergency care given the patient prior to this arrival at the Hospital; 

 

d. Description of significant clinical, laboratory, and roentgenology findings; 

 

e. Diagnosis and treatment given; 

 

f.  The condition of the patient on discharge or transfer; and 

 

144/321



 

35 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

g. Final disposition, including instructions given to the patient and/or his/her family, 

relative to necessary follow-up care. 

 

C. Emergency Medicine Physician's Responsibility 

 

Each patient's emergency medical record shall be signed by the Practitioner in attendance, who is 

responsible for its clinical accuracy. 

 

D. Hospital's Responsibility  
 

The Hospital shall contract with an independent group of Physicians to provide twenty-four (24) 

hours per day, seven (7) days per week, primary Physician coverage of the Emergency Room. 
 

E. Emergency Services 
 

1. Treatment of Patients in the Emergency Department 
 

All patients presenting to the ER will be evaluated by the ER Physician on duty, and or the AHP, 

in accordance with current Wyoming Statutes, unless specific arrangements have been made 

with their private Physician. 
 

2. Admitting and Inpatients 
 

a. The Emergency Medicine Physicians shall not admit patients to the Hospital on 

their own and are not permitted to treat inpatients at the Hospital except in acute 

emergency situations when neither the patient's Physician nor any other qualified 

member of the medical staff is available within the time limits dictated necessary 

by good medical judgment. 
 

b. The Emergency Medicine Physician on duty will respond to all "Code Blues" and 

he/she may pronounce inpatients dead if requested by the attending Physician. 
 

c. The Emergency Medicine Physician on duty may assist attending Physicians with 

the renewal of orders and evaluations of restraint/seclusion patients, as defined 

by, and in accordance with the Restraint and Seclusion Policy. 
 

3. Referrals 
 

a. All patients, having been initially treated by the Emergency Medicine Physician, 

shall be referred for admission and inpatient care or for subsequent outpatient care 

to their private Physician or the appropriate "on-call" Physician. For patients not 

requiring admission but requiring outpatient follow-up, each Department of the 

Medical Staff (Medicine, Surgery and General Services) shall formulate a written 

policy for appropriate and timely follow-up specific to their respective 

departments and the subspecialties represented therein.  If necessary, follow-up 

arrangements may be made with the Emergency Room. 
 

145/321



 

36 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

b. All individual department policies for ER outpatient referral shall be approved by 

the Emergency Services Committee and the Medical Executive Committee before 

being adopted.  

 

4. "On-Call" Lists  

 

a. Each clinical department will be responsible for generating "on-call" lists for the 

various specialties contained within that department, and equitable participation in 

the "on-call" list will be required of all Practitioners on the medical staff.  The 

"on-call" lists will be distributed to all nursing units, the Emergency Department, 

and all medical staff members on a monthly basis by Medical Staff Services.  

 

Departments may excuse individual Practitioners from emergency room call for 

good cause subject to the approval of the Medical Executive Committee.  

 

b. Senior active staff Physicians may, at their option, choose to not take call, 

provided they have reached a score of 72 or more (scoring is based on a 

combination of age and years of service at MHSC.)  In order to exercise this 

clause, Physicians must give at least a one-year notice to the Hospital 

administration. 

 

F. Policies and Procedures 

 

The Emergency Services Committee shall establish policies, procedures, Rules and Regulations 

for Emergency Services not covered by the above Section VIII. 

 

 

Section XI.   MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES 

 

A. Intensive Care Unit Committee 

 

1. Composition: 

 

The Intensive Care Unit Committee shall be composed of a representative of each 

medical staff department who admits to the Intensive Care Unit, in addition to the head 

nurse of the Intensive Care Unit.  A representative from Administration may also serve 

on the committee. 

 

2. Duties: 

 

The duties of the Intensive Care Unit Committee shall be to monitor and evaluate the 

quality of care in the Intensive Care Unit. 

 

 

 

146/321



 

37 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Intensive Care Unit Committee shall meet at least three (3) times per year, ideally 

quarterly, and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

4. Reports To: 

 

The Intensive Care Unit Committee shall report to the Department of Medicine and the 

Department of Surgery.  

 

 B. Infection Control Committee 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Infection Control Committee shall be composed of a representative from each of the 

medical staff departments, a representative from Nursing Services, the Infection Control 

Coordinator, a representative from Administration and a representative from the clinical 

lab as ex-officio, without a vote.  

 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Infection Control Committee shall: 

 

a. Develop a Hospital-wide Infection Control Program and maintain surveillance 

over the program; 

 

b. Develop a system for reporting, identifying and analyzing the incidence and cause 

of nosocomial infections, including assignment of responsibility for the ongoing 

collection and analytic review of such data, and follow-up activities; 

 

c. Develop and implement a preventive and corrective program designed to 

minimize infection hazards, including establishing, reviewing and evaluating 

aseptic, isolation and sanitation techniques; 

 

d. Develop written policies defining special indications for isolation requirements; 

 

e. Act upon recommendations related to infection control received from the 

President of the Medical Staff, the Medical Executive Committee, departments, 

and other committees; 

 

f. Review sensitivities of organisms specific to the facility and disseminate 

biannually summaries to the medical staff. 

 

 

147/321



 

38 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Infection Control Committee shall meet at least three (3) times per year, ideally 

quarterly, and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

 4. Reports To: 

 

The Infection Control Committee shall report to the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

C. Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee (P&T) 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee shall be composed of a representative from 

each of the medical staff departments as well as a representative from nursing and a 

representative of the pharmacy service.  A representative of Administration may also 

serve on the committee.   

 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee shall:  

 

a. Be responsible for the development and surveillance of all drug utilization 

policies and practices within the Hospital in order to assure appropriate clinical 

results and minimum potential for hazard;   

 

b. Formulate broad professional policies regarding the evaluation, appraisal, 

selection, procurement, storage, distribution, use safety procedures and all other 

matters relating to drugs in the Hospital; and 

 

c. Develop and review annually a formulary or drug list for use in the Hospital. 

 

 3. Meetings: 

 

The Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee shall meet at least three (3) times per year, 

ideally quarterly, and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

 4. Reports To: 

 

The Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee shall report to the Medical Executive 

Committee.       

 

 

 

 

148/321



 

39 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

D. Medical Records Committee 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Medical Records Committee shall be composed of one representative from each of 

the medical staff departments, a representative from nursing services and a representative 

from Medical Records. A representative of Administration may also serve on the 

committee. 

 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Medical Records Committee shall: 

 

a. Be responsible for assuring that all medical records meet the standards for patient 

care usefulness and be of historical validity;   

 

b. Conduct a quarterly review of currently maintained inpatient and outpatient 

medical records to assure that they properly describe the condition and progress of 

the patient, the therapy provided, the results thereof, and the identification of 

responsibility for all actions taken, and that they are sufficiently complete at all 

times so as to meet the criterion of medical comprehension of the case in the 

event of transfer of Physician responsibility for patient care of the patient;  

 

c. Review patient records to determine the promptness, pertinence, adequacy, and 

completeness thereof; and 

 

d. Make recommendations to Administration on the inclusion of forms, and their 

content, for medical records. 

 

 3. Meetings:  

 

The Medical Records Committee shall meet at least once per year or as needed, and shall 

maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

 4. Reports To: 

 

The Medical Records Committee shall report to the Medical Executive Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

149/321



 

40 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

E. Tissue & Blood Committee (T&B)  

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Tissue & Blood Committee shall be composed of a representative of each medical 

staff department and a representative from Pathology (who may also represent the 

General Services Department).  A representative from Administration may also serve on 

the committee. 

 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Tissue & Blood (T&B) Committee shall: 

 

a. Develop policies and procedures for the ordering, distribution, handling, use, and 

administration of blood and blood components; 

 

b. Develop screening mechanisms to identify problems in blood usage for more 

intensive evaluation; 

 

c. Review transfusions of blood and its components or substitutes throughout the 

Hospital for appropriate use; 

 

d. Educate the medical staff on the appropriate use of blood and its components or 

substitutes; 

 

e. Review all confirmed blood transfusion reactions; 

 

f. Develop policy for handling of all specimens removed during surgery, which 

specimens can be submitted for "gross examination only,” and which specimens 

do not need to be submitted to the pathologist; 

 

g. Develop screening mechanisms based on predetermined criteria for identifying 

surgical cases for more intensive review; 

 

  h. Perform surgical case review on all procedures, both tissue and nontissue 

producing, monthly for surgical indications and quality of individual surgical 

procedures performed by individual Practitioners (review of a representative 

sample of cases is adequate); and 

 

 3. Meetings: 

 

The Tissue & Blood Committee shall meet at least once per year or as needed, and shall 

maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities.  

 

150/321



 

41 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 4. Reports To:  

 

The Tissue & Blood Committee shall report to the Utilization Management Committee. 

 

F. Perinatal Committee 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Perinatal Committee shall be composed of a pediatrician, an obstetrician, and a 

representative of the nursing staff of OB/nursery.  A representative from Administration 

and a family Practitioner may also serve on the committee. 

 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Perinatal Committee shall: 

 

a. Review records of obstetric and newborn patients in meeting the requirements of 

maintaining the quality standards of patient care;  

 

b. Conduct chart review in the manner of an audit of patient care to determine if the 

current practice of care and policies are in line with current, valid standards of 

medical practice; and 

 

c. Review all protocols for obstetrics/nursery nursing units prior to presentation to 

other committees or departments. 

 

 3. Meetings: 

 

The Perinatal Committee shall meet at least three (3) times per year, ideally quarterly, 

and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

 4. Reports To: 

 

The Perinatal Committee shall report to the Department of Medicine and The Department 

of Surgery. 

 

G. Trauma Committee 

 

1. Composition: 

 

The Trauma Committee shall be composed of the Trauma Program Manager, the Emergency 

Medical Director, the Trauma Medical Director, the ER Nurse Manager, the Director of 

Nursing, the Director of Quality and Accreditation, the OR Nurse Manager, and 

representatives from local ambulance services. A representative from Administration, 

151/321



 

42 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

Medical Imaging, the Clinical Lab, and local clergy members may also serve on the 

committee. Anesthesiologists and other Surgery Department members are also encouraged to 

attend. The Trauma Committee may be chaired by an ED Physician or a general surgeon. 

 

2. Duties 

 

The Trauma Committee shall: 

 

a. Be responsible for establishing guidelines for Trauma Team activation; 

 

b. Ensure that the Hospital meets the necessary requirements for trauma designation; 

 

c. Ensure that the Hospital participates in the State Trauma Registry; 

 

d. Participate in quality improvement evaluation, including the development of the standard 

of care, and on-going chart review. 

 

3. Meetings: 

 

The Trauma Committee shall meet at least three (3) times per year, ideally quarterly, and 

shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

4. Reports To: 

 

The Trauma Committee shall report to the General Services Department. 

  

H. Radiation Safety Committee 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Radiation Safety Committee shall be composed of the Radiation Safety Officer, a 

Physician representative of Medical Imaging and representatives from Administration 

and Nursing Services.  The chairman shall be the Medical Imaging Physician 

representative.  Another representative from administration may also serve as ex-officio, 

without a vote. 

 

 2. Duties: 

The Radiation Safety Committee shall: 

a. Be familiar with all pertinent Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) regulations, 

the terms of the license and its amendments; and 

 

b. Take necessary action to maintain compliance with pertinent NRC regulations. 

 

152/321



 

43 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 3. Meetings: 

 

The Radiation Safety Committee shall meet annually or semi-annually, and shall 

maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

 4. Reports To: 

 

The Radiation Safety Committee shall report to the Department of General Services. 

 

I. Utilization Management Committee 

 

1. Composition: 

Physician Members  

a. Physician members will be appointed annually by the President of the Medical    

Staff 

b. Committee will consist of at least two Physicians 

c. One Physician member must be present at each meeting 

d. The President of the Medical Staff will appoint the Physician Chair 

Non-Physician members may include, but are not limited to:  

e. Administration 

f. Health Information Management 

g. Nursing 

h. Quality 

i. Case Management 

j. Clinical Documentation Improvement 

k. Patient Financial Services 

l. Other healthcare Practitioners and professionals as necessary 

m. Case Management 

 

 

153/321



 

44 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

2. Duties:   Please reference the Utilization Management plan, per current CMS guidelines. 

 

 3. Meetings: 

The Utilization Management Committee shall meet at least three times per year, ideally 

quarterly, and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

4. Reports To: 

The Utilization Management Committee shall report to the Medical Executive 

Committee. 

  

J. Bylaws Committee 

 

 1. Composition: 

 

The Bylaws Committee shall be composed of a representative of each medical staff 

department.  A representative from Administration may serve as ex-officio, without a 

vote. 

 2. Duties: 

 

The Bylaws Committee shall: 

 

a. Conduct an annual review of Medical Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations; 

 

b. Submit recommendations to the Medical Executive Committee for changes in 

these documents as necessary to reflect current medical staff practice; and 

 

c. Receive and evaluate for recommendation to the Medical Executive Committee 

suggestions for modification of the items specified in a. above. 

 

 3. Meetings: 

 

The Bylaws Committee shall meet as often as necessary at the call of its Chairman, but at 

least annually and shall maintain a permanent record of its proceedings and activities. 

 

4. Reports To: 

 

The Bylaws Committee shall report to the Medical Executive Committee.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

154/321



 

45 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

Section XII.  NON MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES 

 

In the interest of quality patient care and enhanced communication between the medical staff and 

the Hospital, it shall be the prerogative of the President of the Medical Staff or his/her designee, 

in his/her capacity as chief medical officer of the Hospital, to attend, as ex-officio without vote, 

any and all Hospital assemblies, including, but not limited to, Hospital/staff committees, 

councils, team meetings, group meetings, department meetings, etc. 

 

 

Section XIII.    ITINERANT SURGERY 

 

Itinerant surgery, as defined by the American College of Surgeons, is prohibited. 

 

 

Section XIV.   HEALTH POLICIES 

 

All medical staff and allied health professionals shall make every reasonable effort to minimize the 

possibility of a communicable disease being passed to the Hospital staff, patients, visitors or other 

medical staff and allied health professional members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

155/321



 

46 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County Medical Staff Rules & Regulations | 08/07/2019 

 

 

 

ADOPTION AND APPROVAL 

 

 

Approved and adopted by the Medical Staff of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County on this 25th 

day of June 2019. 

 

                                                                          

             

Lawrence Lauridsen, DO    Israel Stewart, DO 

President of the Medical Staff    Secretary of the Medical Staff 

 

 

 

Approved by the Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County on this 7th 

Day of August 2019. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                         

Taylor Jones      Ed Tardoni  

President, MHSC Board of Trustees   Secretary, MHSC Board of Trustees  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

156/321



DRAFT

Current Status: Draft PolicyStat ID: 6652067

Approved: N/A
Review Due: N/A
Document Area: Corporate Compliance
Reg. Standard:

Code of Conduct

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

TEXT
I. General

A. The underlying principles of these standards are based on common sense, courtesy, ethical and

legal conduct that are essential to govern the business of MHSC.

B. It is important that the entire workforce understand these standards and abide by them daily.

II. PRINCIPLE 1 - Legal Compliance: We will strive to ensure all activity by or on behalf of the

organization is in compliance with applicable laws.

A. Employees and subcontractors are expected to follow these guidelines for compliance with

applicable laws. Knowledge (first or second hand) or suspicion of any violation of any law, regulation

or rule must be reported to the Compliance Hotline (307 ~ 362 ~ 5291) or other appropriate staff.

MHSC employees:

1. Will not solicit, receive or offer to give anything of value to anyone in exchange for referral of

patients.

2. Will not accept bribes or kickbacks of any kind intended to induce referrals.

3. Will not make false statements or representations to any person or entity in order to gain or

retain participation in a federal program or to obtain payment for any service.

4. Will submit claims for reimbursement accurately and only for services rendered.

5. Will not enter into any agreements with competitors to share or fix prices.

6. Will maintain complete and accurate medical records to support all medical decisions.

7. Will collect all applicable co-payments and deductibles in accordance with acceptable business

practices.

It is the policy of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County (MHSC) that all of the business be conducted

according to high ethical standards, including compliance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations. This

Code of Conduct (henceforth referred to as Code) is integral to the MHSC Compliance Plan and the provision

of care and services that is consistent with the mission and vision of MHSC. This Code applies to any and all

members of the workforce operating for or within MHSC. This includes employees, providers, volunteers and

contractors.

Code of Conduct. Retrieved 07/15/2019. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/6652067/. Copyright

© 2019 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 4

157/321

www.princexml.com
Prince - Non-commercial License
This document was created with Prince, a great way of getting web content onto paper.



DRAFT

8. Will store, dispense and transport all drugs and biologicals in accordance with accepted

guidelines.

9. Will adhere to sound environmental and safety practices, including the proper handling of

medical or hazardous waste.

10. Will respect our obligations as individuals and as health care providers, and neither express nor

imply a promise of performance which we cannot reasonably expect to fulfill.

11. Will assure that all practices of write-offs, discounts, or forgiveness of debt are based solely on

justifiable business practices and conform to federal and state statutes.

III. PRINCIPLE 2 - Quality of Care: We are committed to providing the highest quality of care and

delivering services in an ethical manner. MHSC employees:

A. Will treat patients with dignity, respect, and compassion at all times.

B. Will provide high quality care to patients without regard to race, creed, age, gender, religion, national

origin, or disability.

C. Will honor the rights afforded to patients, advocates and family to receive education in a manner that

is understandable and to provide informed consent for care.

D. Will honor the right of patients, or their legal designees, to participate in decision making regarding

their care, including refusing treatment to the extent permitted by law and being informed of the

consequences of such action.

IV. PRINCIPLE 3 - Confidentiality: We shall strive to maintain the confidentiality of patient and other

confidential information in accordance with applicable legal and ethical standards. MHSC

employees:

A. Will protect the confidentiality of patient information in accordance with all applicable laws and

regulations.(Such as HIPAA)

B. Will refrain from revealing any personal or confidential information concerning patients or members

unless supported by legitimate business or patient care purposes.

C. Information pertaining to our competitive position or business strategies, payment and

reimbursement information, and information relating to negotiations with the workforce or third parties

should be protected and shared only with those having a need to know such information in order to

perform their job responsibilities.

D. Will hold all investigatory information, data, and reports collected and/or made in connection with

compliance issues in the highest confidence and not disclose such information outside of the

confines of the activities of the Compliance Work Team or Compliance Committee of the Board of

Trustees, except as is otherwise required by applicable law.

E. Will ensure that information received in confidence is not used for personal gain and divulge no such

information with the intent of giving or receiving an unfair advantage in a personal business

transaction.

V. PRINCIPLE 4 - Valuing The MHSC Workforce: We value our workforce and are committed to their

protection and success.

A. MHSC shall afford all people equal employment and advancement opportunities without regard to

age, gender, race, creed, national origin, religion, or disability.

B. No form of harassment or discrimination will be permitted.

Code of Conduct. Retrieved 07/15/2019. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/6652067/. Copyright

© 2019 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 4

158/321



DRAFT

C. We shall treat each other with respect, dignity, and fairness.

D. Sexual harassment, sexual advances, request for sexual favors or other verbal or physical conduct

of a sexual nature that would create a hostile working environment are absolutely prohibited.

E. We shall exhibit acceptable behaviors that enhance the quality with which we meet the mission of

MHSC. Such behaviors include but are not limited to, those that help to promote quality in the work

place, integrity, innovation, diversity in the work place and teamwork.

F. We shall refrain from displaying inappropriate behaviors in the work place. Inappropriate behaviors

are those that are disruptive to the work environment and interpersonal relationships and

surroundings.

VI. PRINCIPLE 5 - Conflicts of Interest: We shall avoid conflicts or the appearance of conflicts of

interest between our private interest and the fulfillment of our duties.

A. No employee may represent MHSC in any transaction in which he or she or a member of their

immediate family has a personal interest.

B. We shall not disclose or use confidential, special or inside information of or about MHSC for personal

profit or advantage.

C. MHSC workforce shall disclose all potentially conflicting activities in the annual Conflict of Interest

disclosure statement.

D. We shall avoid any real or potential conflicts of interest and disclose, to the fullest extent possible,

any significant proprietary or financial interest in any organization with which MHSC does business.

VII. PRINCIPLE 6 - Business Relationships: Business relationships with third parties shall be free

from offers or solicitation of gifts or other inducements in exchange for influence or business.

A. We will not solicit tips, personal gratuities or gifts from patients or vendors.

B. No gifts of any kind that are offered by contractors, vendors, suppliers, potential employees, potential

contractors, vendors or suppliers, or any other individual or organization, no matter the value, may be

accepted by any employee at any time, on or off the work premises. This no-gift policy includes any

business courtesy offered such as a product discount or any other benefit if the benefit is not

extended to all employees.

1. Exempted from this policy are:

a. Gifts given at conferences, etc. that are offered equally to all attendees.

b. Food and beverages provided at conferences, etc. funded by conference or event

supporter.

c. Occasional food items provided to a hospital department where all departmental

employees may partake, even if addressed to a singular employee, provided it is of a

nominal value.

C. Gifts to, and from, referring physicians must follow Stark monetary guidelines.

D. MHSC will not provide gifts to patients with the intent to induce business or referrals. All gifts

provided to patients will follow the Social Security Act provisions.

E. Any questions regarding gifts, and their appropriateness, are to be directed to the Compliance

Department.

VIII. PRINCIPLE 7 - Protection of Assets/Research: All employees will strive to preserve and protect

Code of Conduct. Retrieved 07/15/2019. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/6652067/. Copyright

© 2019 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 4

159/321



DRAFT

the organization's assets by making prudent and effective use of MHSC resources and properly

and accurately reporting its financial condition.

A. MHSC has established control standards and procedures to ensure that assets are protected and

properly used and that financial records and reports are accurate and reliable.

B. All financial reports, accounting records, research reports, expense accounts, time sheets and other

documents must accurately and clearly represent the relevant facts or the true nature of a

transaction.

C. All employees are expected to refrain from converting assets of the organization to personal use.

D. All property and business of the organization shall be conducted in the manner designed to further

the organization's interest rather than the personal interest of an individual.

E. Employees are prohibited from the unauthorized use or taking of equipment, supplies, materials or

services.

F. We shall collect and report scientific research validly and accurately, consistent with the Belmont

report provisions.

IX. Responsibility and Enforcement

A. All employees must abide by the principles set forth in this Code.

B. Failure to abide by the principles set forth in this Code may lead to corrective action.

C. Any suspected violation of this Code must be reported to the Compliance Officer, the Compliance

Hotline, or other authorized reporting mechanism without the fear of retaliation.

D. Reports of suspected violations may be made anonymously.

E. All employees must understand that actions will be taken to uphold and enforce these standards.

F. This standards set for in this Code are integral to the facility compliance program.

G. This Code will be read and acknowledged in writing upon hire and annually.

H. Employee acknowledgements shall be maintained in the employee file housed in Human Resource

Department.

REFERENCES

Attachments: No Attachments

Code of Conduct. Retrieved 07/15/2019. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/6652067/. Copyright

© 2019 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 4

160/321



Quality Committee 

Consent Agenda Summary 

June and July 2019 

 

Four Priority/Focus Areas (Bolded in Summary Below) 

1. ED Patient Flow 

2. HCAHPS/Patient Experience 

3. Sepsis  

4. Hand Off  

 

1) Star Rating 

a. There are seven categories within the Star Rating and they are as follows: mortality, 

readmission, safety of care, efficient use of medical imaging, timeliness of care, patient 

experience (see next bullet) and effectiveness of care. Each of these seven categories 

contain several data metrics. Data within the following categories continues to trend in 

right direction: mortality, readmissions, safety of care. Efficient use of medical imaging 

has mixed results. MHSC received our annual facility specific report from CMS for 

efficient use of Medical Imaging (claims based measures). For OP – 8: MRI Lumbar 

Spine for Low Back Pain measure and OP-10: Abdomen CT Use of Contrast Material, 

we are performing a deep dive into data with medical imaging department and HIM 

director to identify potential opportunities for improvement. For OP-10, we are projected 

to continue improvement towards the national average of 7.8%. Within the Timeliness of 

Care category, Ed-2b: ED Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time, is 

seeing fluctuation, however the last few months have been trending down, with 89 

minutes in May 2019 being the lowest time since we’ve began this journey in June 2017. 

We have completed two Lean projects for ED Patient Flow and have one Lean project 

still in progress. Please see separate Lean Summary on following page for more 

information. Within the Effectiveness of Care category, we have fluctuations with the 

data for Core Sep1 – Early Management Bundle, Severe Sepsis/Septic Shock, and 

have a Lean project and medical staff plan to improve this data metric. We also have 

fluctuation in data for Core Op 29- Colonoscopy-Follow up for average risk patients and 

we are working with physician related to this measure. 

b. Patient Experience-HCAHPS: The “Overall Inpatient HCAHPS Dashboard” is the 

survey data that affects our Star Rating and Value Based Purchasing reimbursement 

program. This survey includes OB, ICU, and Med-Surg. Within this survey, we saw a 

steady decrease in our scores within all questions from Q3 2018 to Q1 2019. With Q2 

2019, the scores are improving again and each department is working on improvements 

to keep this momentum going.  

i. Our plan with the new fiscal year is to focus on the “Overall Quality of Care” 

questions score at the QAPI Committee level. Our vendor for HCAHPS provides 

a statistical analysis of our HCAHPS and targets the three questions, known as 

Key Drivers, within the HCAHPS that will improve our “Overall Quality of 

161/321



Care” Score. Research has shown that if our patients perceive our “Overall 

Quality of Care” as excellent, they are more likely to rate us better in all 

HCAHPS questions. Each department has been provided with 3 key drivers, 

specific to their department, and are asked to pick a key driver to focus on and 

incorporate into a quality improvement project already occurring in the 

department. The Medical Staff have also received the Key Drivers pertaining to 

their departments and we are providing simple suggestions for improvement. The 

Quality Department is also rounding on the floors to assist in educating staff on 

HCAHPS. This direction for targeting HCAHPS improvement efforts is quite 

new, we are in the process of educating staff, as well as setting goals, and target 

completion dates. Please see the “Priorities Work Plan” document for further 

information on interventions.  

ii. Data for Overall Quality of Care by Department 

1. ED: Goal 42.2% - Q2 2019*-44.4% Highest result since July 2016.  

2. ICU: Goal 59% - Q2 2019* - 80% Highest results since July 2016 

3. Med/Surg: Goal 60.6% - Q2 2019* - 58.1%-Noted improvements in each 

of last three quarters  

4. OB: Goal 71.9% - Q2 2019* - 64%- Improvement since last quarter 

5. Surgery: Goal 73.1% - Q2 2019* - 77.6%- exceeded goal for quarter  

iii. * Q2 2019 data not yet complete 

 

2) Risk/Safety 

a. Please see separate report/summary. 

3) PI Standards 

a. Our PI Standards within the dashboard include data metrics defined by Centers for 

Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) and The Joint Commission (TJC), as well as 

priorities identified by MHSC on the Quality Assessment Performance Improvement 

(QAPI) plan. Data is trending in right direction on all metrics except Maternal Deliveries 

- % with Labor Induction. We have completed a Lean project surrounding the scheduling 

of inductions and our physicians and OB department are working together to ensure we 

are providing safe care. 

4) Accreditation 

a. Please see separate report/summary.  

 

162/321



 

  Page 1 of 2 

Confidential   8/1/2019 

Quality Committee Meeting 

Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County 

July 1, 2019 

 
  

Present:  Cindy Nelson, Dr. Banu Symington, Kara Jackson, Tami Love, Dr. Kristy Nielson, Leslie 

Taylor, Kari Quickenden, Jodi Corley, Dr. Cielette Karn, Clayton Radakovich, Marty 

Kelsey, Suzan Campbell, Dr. Barbara Sowada, Irene Richardson, 

 

Visitor: Richard Mathey 

 

Absent/Excused:    

 

Chair:   Dr. Barbara Sowada   

 

 

Approval of Agenda & Minutes 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order at 8:15 am. Dr. Sowada present the Agenda for 

appoval, with correction to “III. Approval of November 20, 2013 Minutes” to Old Business. Motion 

to approve by Mr. Radakovich and seconded by Ms. Richardson. Minutes for May 15, 2019 were 

presented, motion to approve by Mr. Radakovich, seconded by Dr. Symington. Motions 

approved. 

 

New Business 

Ms. Jackson gave updates on the OPPE. Working on the process and currently waiting for 

feedback before taking to MEC. A few specialties have already responded and they are 

working to build those in MIDAS. For those specialties that don’t respond, they will be using 

national standards. We are limited with outside specialties that don’t document in our in-house 

EMR it does not communicate with MIDAS. They are working with Rich Tyler, Director IT and Leslie 

Taylor, MOB Manager to find ways to pull this information. We will revisit in November. 

 

LEAN project update by Dr. Nielson, 9 of the 11 projects are completed. 

 

Ms. Jackson reminded that the Hospital Compare data is 8-9 months old when it is published. 

They did an update last month and we are officially listed as a 4-Star facility. Biggest 

opportunities for improvement is our HCHAPS and MI measures. We have identified and started 

some improvement projects for MI as of last year. A deep dive of statistics is being reviewed, 

with plans for provider education. We will review again next month. 

 

Dr. Nielson announced that we have no reportable infections for last month. Additionally, Dr. 

Nielson announced we have a new locum Infection Preventionist that started this month that 

will help us to reorganize our Infection Control Department and will also assist with the hiring of a 

new Infection Preventionist. 

 

Ms. Corley reported the MIPS results, we received a positive 1.57 adjustment. 

 

Ms. Nelson reported that the Planetree Steering Committee met yesterday. There are 5 

workgroups each working on different goals. One of the work groups is the Person Centered 

Care training, we have currently had 112 staff members complete this program. Another group 

is working to improve patient communication by updating the information in patient rooms that 

 

163/321



 

  Page 2 of 2 

Confidential   8/1/2019 

reminds and advises them on how to “speak up” during morning rounds with the care staff. The 

team has also, with the help of Housekeeping staff, begun placing small “speak up” notepads 

in patient rooms, to help patients to record their questions and thoughts. 

 

Ms. Richardson reported on Patient & Family Advisory Council, they have had their third 

meeting. Typically the agenda starts out with a patient story, both positive and not so positive, 

and some are from years past. Council advised what they want to see is a focus on the patient. 

Cleanliness was addressed and one simple change was to increase size of trash cans that 

appear “full” with just a few items. They are looking into feasibility of upgrading. Comfort of 

visitor chairs was also addressed, with some samples for testing. The council toured the 

Med/Surg floor and gave feedback on the whiteboards. They will meet again on August 19th 

where we will address “what have you heard about us in the community?”.  

 

Mr. Radakovich reviewed the CMS Final Rule. Currently our systems don’t all communicate, 

QuadraMed is working to upgrade, but if we had to there are free systems we could access. A 

work group is forming to evaluate our Quadramed system.  

 

Could it happen here? Dr. Sowada provided “Ten Insights on Reducing Care Variation”. 

Discussion ensued upon the topics. Ms. Jackson stated #”Set the pace based on your capacity 

to implement, rather than define, standards” spoke to her. We see so many projects starting and 

follow up or closure is not always there. We are working on circling back and following up, to 

complete and close loops. Hardwiring those processes is key. Dr. Karn noted #3 “Stop working 

around pockets of change-resistant physicians” and #4 “Minimize physician involvement in 

designing standards for routine care” both spoke to her. Involving providers when needed is 

essential, but not “abusing” their time for areas that they don’t affect is important. 

 

Consent Agenda  

Dr. Sowada requested any pullout from Consent Agenda? Dr. Sowada questioned the “Data for 

Overall Quality of Care”. Ms. Jackson referred her to the dashboard for the breakdown of 

statistics.  

 

Ms. Jackson noted we are currently using PRC for our HCHAP scores, but we are assessing other 

companies (NRC and Press Ganey) to determine if we would be better served with a vendor 

change. Our contract with PRC ends June 2020 and we need to notify of a change 120 days 

prior. If we decide to move forward we would be bringing it to the Board by November.  

 

In closing, Ms. Richardson commended our staff for all their hard work. You can see the upward 

trending in quality within the many statistics we evaluate. Additionally, Ms. Jackson announced 

that for the third year in a row we have won the “Excellence in Quality” award from Mountain 

Pacific Quality Health. 

 
Meeting Adjourned   The meeting adjourned at 9:45 am 

 

Next Meeting    August 21, 2019 at 08:15 am, CR 1 & 2 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

_____________________________________________      

Robin Fife, Recording Secretary 

164/321



HR Chair Report to the Board for July 2019 

 

The Turnover and Open Positions Reports were reviewed and may be found in the Board Packet. 

 

 

Code of Conduct 

The board, at the May meeting, voted to send a provision of the existing code of conduct to the 

HR committee for review.  Specifically --- Section VII, Principle 6, Item C.  The stated section 

covers the acceptance of vendor gifts by hospital personnel.   The HR Committee has completed 

the assigned review of that section.  The committee, by majority vote, has sent the revised 

language to the board with a do pass recommendation.  The new section is included in the board 

packet.  The HR committee also suggests that the board may want to consider a vote at the 

August board meeting.  The change involves only the paragraphs in Principle 6.  The entire policy 

has previously been reviewed by the board . 

 

 

Telecommuting Agreement  

The Chief Legal Officer and the Human Resources Director reviewed a webinar on 

telecommuting policy.  Based on what was learned; the Chief Legal Officer drafted a list of 

requirements that our telecommuting agreement must meet.  The committee, by majority vote, 

approved the document as the guiding principle for development of the policy.  Work will now 

start on drafting of the policy. 

 

 

  

165/321



166/321



167/321



168/321



169/321



170/321



171/321



172/321



173/321



174/321



175/321



176/321



177/321



178/321



179/321



180/321



181/321



182/321



183/321



184/321



185/321



186/321



187/321



188/321



189/321



190/321



191/321



192/321



193/321



194/321



195/321



196/321



197/321



198/321



199/321



200/321



201/321



202/321



203/321



204/321



205/321



206/321



207/321



208/321



209/321



210/321



211/321



212/321



213/321



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
  

Wednesday ~ July 31, 2019  4:00 p.m.   Classrooms 1 & 2 
      

   Voting Members:     Non-Voting Members: 
  Marty Kelsey, Chairman  

Richard Mathey 
Irene Richardson 
Tami Love 
Jan Layne 

       Ron Cheese 
       Angel Bennett 
       Rich Tyler 
       Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Kristy Nielson 
Kari Quickenden 
Suzan Campbell 
Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
 

  Guests:                        

 Jeff Smith, Commission 
Kerry Downs 

 Jim Horan 
Tasha Harris 

Leslie Taylor 
 

     

I. Call Meeting to Order      Marty Kelsey 

II. Approve June 26, 2019 Meeting Minutes    Marty Kelsey 

III. Capital Requests FY 20      Marty Kelsey 

A.  Central Plant Upgrade project    Tami Love/Jim Horan 

IV. Financial Report        

A. FY2019 Year-End status     Tami Love 

B. FY2020 Reduction of Revenue    Tami Love     

V. Old Business  

A.  BCBS Updates       Ron Cheese   

VI. New Business 

A. Independent Insurance Consultant    Tami Love 

B. Financial Forum Discussion     Marty Kelsey 

              

VII.  Adjournment        Marty Kelsey  

        

1/64214/321



Finance and Audit Comm Minutes June 26 2019 Draft

Separator Page

2/64215/321



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Finance & Audit Committee Meeting 

June 26, 2019 
 

 

Voting Members Present:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

Mr. Taylor Jones, Trustee 

Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Ms. Jan Layne, Controller 

 

Non-Voting Members Present: Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services  

Dr. Kristy Nielson, CNO 

Ms. Angel Bennet, Director of Materials  

Dr. Larry Lauridsen 
 

Non-Voting Members Absent: Ms. Suzan Campbell, Chief Legal Exec/General Counsel  

Dr. Augusto Jamias 

Mr. Rich Tyler, Director of Information Technology 

Ms. Kari Quickenden, CCO 

 
    

Guests:    Ms. Leslie Taylor, Clinic Director    

     Ms. Amber Fisk, Director of Human Resources 

     Mr. Noah Newman, HR Assistant 

     Ms. Deb Sutton, Director of Marketing & PR 

   

 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 
 

Approve Meeting Minutes 
 

A motion to approve the meeting minutes of May 29, 2019 as presented was made by Mr. Jones; 

second by Ms. Richardson.  Motion carried.  
 

Capital Requests 
 

Ms. Sutton explained capital request FY20-1 for the website redesign and host service.  Our 

current internet is outdated and hard to work on.  A patient friendly internet is needed to better 

serve our patients needs.  Three quotes were obtained.  The preferred vendor is Scorpion Digital.  

They offered more services and came in with the lowest overall price.  Mr. Kelsey asked if Ms. 

Sutton had considered hiring a webmaster to be on our staff.  Ms. Sutton thought that it was a 

good idea, but that it would delay updating the internet even longer.  Ms. Sutton explained that 

this contract is for 3 years.  Mr. Kelsey asked if we had the option to opt out early.  Ms. Sutton 

said that we would only have to give a 30 day notice to terminate the contract.  The motion to 

approve the request to forward to the full Board was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. 

Richardson.  Motion carried. 

 

Ms. Fisk presented FY20-2 for a website design for an intranet upgrade.  Ms. Fisk explained that 

our current intranet is in need of an upgrade.  It is very hard to administer and the support is very 

3/64216/321



 

 

Minutes of the June 26, 2019 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 2 

costly and not very helpful.  They have had several suggestions from staff, leadership and board 

members on the need to update.  The motion to approve the request to forward to the full Board 

was made by Mr. Jones; second by Ms. Layne.  Motion carried. 

 

Mr. Kelsey commented that he was very thankful for the new capital summary.  It was very easy 

to read. 

 

 

Financial Report 
 

Monthly Finance Statements & Statistical Data 
 

Ms. Love reviewed the narratives included in the meeting packet. Mr. Kelsey asked Ms. Love to 

give an explanation of the May financials.  Ms. Love explained that we use a model given to us 

by the auditors to determine our amount of reduction of revenue.  We were off $900,000 in May 

and took $400,000 of that.  We will need to take more in June. Mr. Kelsey noted that the gross 

revenue is close to budget, but the reduction of revenue is over $1 million for the month.  Ms. 

Love explained that the problems this year with collecting Medicare and Blue Cross Blue Shield 

made it difficult in determining our reduction level each month.  We have also had a change with 

the Medicare payor mix increasing and the Commercial and BCBS decreasing.  Mr. Jones asked 

if we are going to have a $700,000 loss every month.  Ms. Love said that June will probably be 

about the same loss and she is not sure about July yet.  Mr. Kelsey asked how confident Ms. 

Love was with the budgeted 48.7% reduction in revenue for FY20.  Ms. Love said that she thinks 

it will run closer to 49%.  Mr. Jones said we need to have a plan if this is the new norm.  Ms. 

Taylor explained that they are currently working on an insurance optimization plan to help save 

money on drugs that the insurance does not cover. Mr. Jones asked how long before we see the 

savings.  Ms. Taylor said they are just now deciding on what company they want to use.   

 

Mr. Kelsey said that typically we do not have a Finance Meeting in July.  He thinks we need to 

have one this year.  He said that we have a hard time controlling our revenue and that our only 

control is through the expenses.  Mr. Jones said that we have already whittled down our 

expenses.  They would like to discuss a plan. 

 

Ms. Richardson said that they are thinking about shifting the LEAN program to include the 

revenue cycle.  She mentioned that other WY hospitals have done this and it seems to be 

working for them.   

 

Ms. Taylor mentioned that the clinic was down in revenue due to many providers being out on 

vacation.  She also said that the clinic billing did a great job at bringing the days in AR from to 

72 to 56.  Mr. Jones asked if monthly goals are set for the collectors.  Mr. Cheese said that he has 

goals for his staff and that they meet monthly to discuss. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if there was an update on the bad debt question from last month.  Ms. 

Richardson said that she reached out to Wyoming Hospital Association and that we are not 

obligated to follow it.  She said that Board member Ed Tardoni asked if we would consider 

adding the number of accounts turned, the largest amount turned, the smallest amount turned, 

and the mean and median to our bad debt reports.   

 

4/64217/321



 

 

Minutes of the June 26, 2019 Finance & Audit Committee 

Page 3 

Other Business 
 

Mr. Cheese distributed the potential bad debt information for review.   

 

Mr. Cheese gave an update on BCBS.  He said that we called them last Friday and asked if we 

could be paid by June 30th.  BCBS explained that they are working the old claims first.  Mr. 

Cheese said that we still have $1.6 million outstanding in old claims.  Ms. Richardson said that 

PFS is working with BCBS by showing them claims that should not be denied.  Mr. Kelsey 

suggested to call the Wyoming State Insurance Commission to see if they are aware of the 

problem.  He thinks there is a need for regulatory oversite.  

 

Mr. Kelsey stated that the next meeting will be July 31st. 

 

 

 

New Business 
 

Financial Forum Discussion 

 

 

 

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 5:30PM. 

 
 

 

Submitted by Jan Layne 

5/64218/321



Capital Requests FY 20

Separator Page

6/64219/321



 YTD CAPITAL 

APPROVED 

 GRANT OR 

DONATION 

REIMBURSED 

 2020 APPROVED 

BUDGET REMAINING YTD BALANCE

As of June 2019 54,475.00              -                        3,000,000.00      2,945,525.00                            

CAPITAL 

REQUEST # REQUESTED ITEM/REQUESTOR

CAPITAL AMOUNT 

TO BE APPROVED

 MAINTENANCE 

SUPPORT COSTS FREIGHT COSTS  TOTAL AMOUNT COMMENTS

FY20-3

Harris QCPR 6.3 Upgrade with Linux server 

conversion 74,561.00              14,070.00            88,631.00                                 

Rich Tyler

FY20-5 GE Optima CT850 RT-16 - FMV lease buyout 225,000.00           225,000.00                               

Tasha Harris

FY20-8

MD-Staff Credentialing & Provider Enrollment 

Software 44,900.00              44,900.00                                 

Kerry Downs

TOTAL AMOUNT REQUESTED 344,461.00           14,070.00            -                       358,531.00                               

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REQUESTS

WEDNESDAY ~ July 31, 2019

7/64220/321



FY20-3 QCPR upgrade 6.3

Separator Page

8/64221/321



9/64222/321



10/64223/321



11/64224/321



12/64225/321



13/64226/321



14/64227/321



15/64228/321



16/64229/321



17/64230/321



18/64231/321



19/64232/321



20/64233/321



21/64234/321



22/64235/321



23/64236/321



24/64237/321



25/64238/321



FY20-5 RadOnc CT FMV

Separator Page

26/64239/321



27/64240/321



28/64241/321



29/64242/321



30/64243/321



31/64244/321



32/64245/321



FY20-8 credentialing software

Separator Page

33/64246/321



34/64247/321



35/64248/321



36/64249/321



37/64250/321



38/64251/321



39/64252/321



40/64253/321



41/64254/321



42/64255/321



43/64256/321



FY2019 Year-End status

Separator Page

44/64257/321



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

ROCK SPRINGS, WY 

 

 

 

NARRATIVE TO JUNE 2019 PROJECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for June was a loss of 

$755,071, compared to a gain of $227,713 in the budget.  This yields a -11.9% operating 

margin for the month compared to 3.0% in the budget. The YTD net operating gain is 

$141,053, compared to a gain of $1,709,309 in the budget.  This represents a YTD 

operating margin of 0.16% compared with 1.89% in the budget.  The total net gain YTD 

is $1,068,160, compared to $676,294 in the budget.  This represents a YTD total profit 

margin of 1.23% compared to 0.75% in the budget. 

 

REVENUE.  Revenue for the month was $13,069,675, under budget by $707,325.  

Inpatient revenue was under budget by $504,277, outpatient revenue was under budget by 

$278,971 and the employed Provider Clinic was over budget by $75,923.  Year-to-date 

gross revenue was $164,916,540 compared to $164,984,757; under budget by $68,217. 

 

Net patient revenue for the month was $6,149,721, under budget by $1,161,988.  YTD 

net patient revenue was $93,600,184, under budget by $3,957,079.   

 

Other operating revenue for the year was $3,173,482.  This includes County routine 

maintenance funds, Foundation unrestricted income, cafeteria revenue, occupation 

medicine industry contracts and collection agency interest income. 

 

Non-operating revenue for the year was $927,106, over budget by $1,960,121.  This 

includes interest income and expense, special purpose taxes, rental income and County 

capital maintenance funds. 

 

Days in AR were 58.8 combined; 51 in the Hospital and 58 in the Clinic. 

 

REDUCTION OF REVENUE.  Deductions from revenue were booked at 52.9% for 

June and 49.3% year-to-date.  Reductions of revenue came in over budget $454,663 for 

June and ended the year over budget $3,957,079. As June is the last month of the fiscal 

year, we made the needed adjustment to reductions to increase our allowance estimate on 

the balance sheet.  We had recognized in May that we would need to make this 

adjustment in June to make sure our AR is reserved adequately for year-end.  The audit 

model for reduction of revenue and balance sheet allowance reserves for year-end 

calculates to 49.3% for reductions and 47.6% for balance sheet reserves, a difference of 

1.7%.  The auditors recommend we are within a 2-3% variance.  The audit will include a 

detailed analysis of our reserves which may result in additional adjustments. 

 

45/64258/321



 The 3.45% increase in Medicare payor mix this fiscal year resulted in the 

following: 

o Medicare gross revenue increased $7.4 million from FY18 

o Medicare write offs increased $3.9 million from FY18 

o Medicare collections increased $3.1 million from FY18 

o Medicare accounts receivable at year end increased $824,131 from FY18 

 

 The 4.45% decrease in Blue Cross and Commercial payor mix this fiscal year 

resulted in the following: 

o Gross revenue decreased $3.9 million from FY18 

o Write offs decreased $732,860 from FY18 

o Collections decreased $4.1 million from FY18 

o Accounts receivable at year end increased $410,512 due to the delayed 

payments from BCBS 

 

While the combined outcome from the change in our top three payors was only $1 

million in cash, the net increase to reduction of revenue was $3.2 million, which directly 

affected the bottom line.  We budgeted FY19 reductions of revenue using FY18 actuals.  

Reductions were budgeted at 46.9% for FY19 as compared to actual of 46.5% in FY18. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses for the month were $7,120,832, under budget by $230,244.  

YTD expenses came in under budget by $2,055,419.  The following are the year-end 

variances for expense categories in FY19: 

 

Salary & Wages – This expense is under budget by $658,558.  Budgeted paid 

FTEs came in under budget by 7.87. 

Fringe Benefits – This expense is under budget by $316,931.  Group health 

claims came in under budget by $247,824.  FICA, disability and unemployment 

also came in under budget while retirement expense was over budget for the year. 

Contract Labor – This expense is over budget by $206,643 for the year.  

Contract labor was used in Behavioral Health, OB, ICU,Surgery, Emergency 

Room, Laboratory, Ultrasound, Respiratory, Infection Control and BioMed. 

Physician Fees – This expense ended the year under budget $14,712. 

Other Purchased Services – This expense came in under budget $490,246.  Most 

subcategories came in at or under budget including consulting, advertising, legal 

fees, bank fees and collection agency. Lab send out testing came in over budget 

for the year due to the increase in lab volumes. 

Supplies – This expense came in under budget $769,229 for the year.  Over 

budget expenses include radioactive materials, lab supplies, blood, implants, 

med/surg supplies, maintenance and outdated supplies.  Expenses under budget 

include patient chargeables, drugs, minor equipment, office supplies and non 

med/surg supplies. 

Utilities – This expense came in under budget for the year $43,065. All utilities 

were under budget except telephone and sewer expense. 

Repairs and Maintenance – This expense is over budget by $147,347 year to 

date.  Reimbursement from the County maintenance fund of $607,635 was 

46/64259/321



received during the fiscal year.  These funds are reported under other operating 

revenue and not an offset to expenses. 

Insurance – This expense is over budget $13,186. 

Other Operating expenses – This expense is under budget $95,601 year to date. 

Postage, freight, memberships, software and employee recruitment were over 

budget.  Education & travel and physician recruitment came in under budget for 

the fiscal year. 

Leases and Rentals - This expense is over budget $154,824 year to date.  

Equipment rent lease came in over budget due to the end of term on two leases 

that are being paid monthly until a fair market value contract is approved. 

Depreciation – This expense is under budget $189,078.  Capital purchases of 

$2,662,860 were approved of the $3 million budget.  Additionally, the Foundation 

purchased $179,154 in capital equipment and County funds of $692,064 were 

used for capital projects.  

 

 

Collections for the month of June were $7,166,619 and $81,332,164 year-to-date.  The 

Days of Cash on Hand are at 135 in June, up 5 days from last month.   

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 3.76.   

 

CLINIC.   The bottom line for the Provider Clinic for June was a loss of $495,282, 

compared to a loss of $452,523 in the budget. The YTD net operating loss is $5,521,305, 

compared to a loss of $5,432,073 in the budget and a loss of $7,220,859 in the prior year. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR JULY.  Gross patient revenue is projecting to come in at $14.6m, 

which is right at budget, net revenue is projecting to $7.3m, which is under budget. 

Collections are projecting to come in around $6.1m.  With expenses expected to come in 

under budget at $7.4m, we are projecting to a slight loss in the month of July.   

 

 

 

47/64260/321



MHSC Combined Financial Statements 063019

Preliminary

Separator Page

48/64261/321



49/64262/321



50/64263/321



51/64264/321



52/64265/321



53/64266/321



54/64267/321



55/64268/321



56/64269/321



57/64270/321



58/64271/321



59/64272/321



60/64273/321



61/64274/321



62/64275/321



63/64276/321



64/64277/321



B&G Chair Report to the Board for July 2019 
 
 
 

The B&G Committee meeting was held July 11th, earlier than normal, to allow members to 
meet with the engineering group handling the Central Plant Upgrade Project. 
 
 
Retaining Wall Project 

This project has been completed. 

 

Central Plant Upgrade Project 

Committee members met with the engineers and reviewed the mechanical status of the project. 

We are at the stage where the project will go out to bid.  It is appropriate to consider if there are cost 

savings that may be realized.  The following actions were approved by the committee: 

1.  Equipment quality is to be preserved.  The intent of a 30 year project life stands.  Savings related 

to lower quality equipment were discussed but such actions would result in a 15 year project life. 

2. The committee agreed that we should identify two to three items, in the construction bid package, 

as optional additions to the base bid.  Jim Horan was directed to work with the engineers to define 

what those would be.  Two possibilities are connection of the chillers to emergency power and 

extended grading of the area around the Central Plant Building.  Both of these items are worth doing 

and are related to function of the Central Plant.  However we have operated without them and they 

were not detailed as part of the original project scope. 

 

Next B&G Committee Meeting 

The next meeting will be held on August 20, 2019. 

 

 

 

278/321



 
Board Compliance Committee 

Minutes 

July 24, 2019 

Present: Ed Tardoni, Irene Richardson, Clayton Radakovich, Suzan Campbell 

Excused: Barbara Sowada 

Guest: Richard Mathey 
 
Ed called the meeting to order. 

Minutes and agenda were approved as written. 

The following items were discussed: 

1. Old Business 

a. Risk Assessment Update: Clayton said the report in the packet reflects half of the risk assessment. 

The facility’s vulnerability involves what do we have in place to monitor. We can turn the assessment 

into a compliance plan. We were incredibly optimistic about completing the risk assessment in a 

couple of months. Irene said the compliance work team invites input from numerous departments. 

Clayton said there are three sections left to complete. The arbitrary numbers are meant to point you 

in the right direction. Irene said the higher the score, the higher the risk.  

b. Fair Warning Update:  Clayton said this is the last time he will report at this committee meeting 

because we went live with QuadraMed and the information will be reported elsewhere. Our 

electronic medical records flag when an unauthorized user enters the chart. We have been operating 

on suspected user access. Fair Warning puts a watchdog on all systems. We will see a spike and then 

hopefully a decrease when people see evidence we are doing what we said we would do. The intent 

is to target inappropriate access. HIPAA privacy violations usually follow breaches. Fair Warning is 

inappropriate access.  
  

2. New Business 

a. June Compliance Report: Clayton reported the 2019 investigations are complete and have been 

reviewed with the work team. When we receive notice of a breach, Human Resources is notified and 

they complete the process. Clayton does not update the report to show completion until he receives 

notification that action is complete. We did not receive any compliance hotline calls in May or June. 

The routine credentialing process audit is underway. We do not see any issues. We are looking at the 

process before information is submitted to the Credentials Committee. The audit is listed in the 

Credentials Committee Charter to review annually. We set up a control mechanism and audit that 

mechanism.  

b. Code of Conduct Follow-Up: Clayton said that, following approval, we are ready to adjust our 

education and signature sheets.  

Ed asked Richard for his observations. Richard said he is impressed with the progress that has been made and thinks 

we are headed in the right way. Ed asked Clayton to give the work group the message that what they have done is 

good and appreciated. Ed thanked Clayton, also. 

Next Meeting: Wednesday – August 28, 2019 at 3:00 pm 

Meeting was adjourned. 

Submitted by Cindy Nelson 

279/321



280/321



281/321



282/321



283/321



284/321



285/321



286/321



287/321



288/321



289/321



290/321



291/321



292/321



293/321



294/321



295/321



296/321



297/321



298/321



299/321



300/321



301/321



302/321



303/321



304/321



305/321



306/321



307/321



308/321



309/321



310/321



311/321



312/321



313/321



314/321



315/321



316/321



317/321



318/321



319/321



320/321



321/321


	Agenda - August 7 2019 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision 

	Minutes 

	1. Proposed Changes to Medical Staff Bylaws 
	MHSC Medical Staff Bylaws approved 08072019
	MHSC Rules and Regulations approved 08072019
	1. Code of Conduct Policy 
	Quality Committee 

	7.17.19 Quality Minutes
	Human Resources Committee 

	July 15 2019 HR Committee Packet
	Capital Expenditure Requests 

	FY 20-5
	FY 20-8
	Narratives 

	4. Finance &amp; Audit Committee Packet 
	Building &amp; Grounds Committee 

	Compliance Committee 

	1. Amendment to Affiliation Agreement with U of U 
	Facility Use Agreement for U of U Dermatology 
	NaVectis 
	1. Check List for American Association of Critical Care Nurses 
	Check List for Gallagher Employee Engagement Survey 
	Check List for Hospice Services Cowboy Cares 
	Check List for Mission Health Clinical Agreement 
	Check List for Vivor 

